AGENDA
SILOAM SPRINGS BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OCTOBER 18, 2022
BOARD MEETING / 6:30 PM
WORKSHOP / BUDGET / 5:30 PM
Regular Board of Directors Meeting:
Opening of Regularly Scheduled Meeting
Call to Order
Roll Call
Prayer
Pledge of Allegiance
I.
Public Input
The public may address the Board of Directors regarding any item on the consent agenda or any city
business NOT listed on the Board’s regular agenda.
II. Presentations:
A. 2021 Independent Auditor’s Report / Landmark Certified Public Accountants
III. Consent Agenda
B. Workshop Minutes / October 4, 2022
C. Regular Meeting Minutes / October 4, 2022
D. Dedication of Utility Easements / 930 E. Jefferson Steet
E. Dedication of Utility Easements / 1803 N. Dawn Hill Road
F. Grant Acceptance / Walton Tree Initiative Grant / Parks & Recreation / $79,532.00
IV. Regularly Scheduled Items
Ordinances
G. Ordinance 22-24 / 2nd Reading / Amending Section 102-21 of the City Municipal Code / Rezoning
from I-1 to C-2 / 800 Block of Hwy. 412 West
Resolutions
H. Resolution 60-22 / Golf Course Improvements / Siloam Springs Country Club / $30,000
I. Resolution 61-22 / 2023 Compensation Plan
Contracts
J. Contract / Highway 412 Median Improvements Phase 1 / OELKE / $309,957.73
Appointments
K. Utility Commission Interview Committee
Staff Reports
L. Employee Benefits Comparison Summary
M. 3rd Quarter Reports: Chamber, Main Street; and History Museum
N. Annual Makerspace Report
O. 3rd Quarter 2022 Board Goal Update
P. Administrator’s Report
Q. Directors Reports
R. Adjournment
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Board of Directors
City of Siloam Springs
Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas (the
“City”), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of December 31, 2021, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
The City’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as
a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are issued.
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Honorable Mayor and Board of Directors
City of Siloam Springs
Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Generally Accepted
Government Standards (GAGAS) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and GAGAS, we:
•
•

•

•
•

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required
supplementary information, such as management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison and
pension plan information on pages 4 through 8 and 52 through 59 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
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City of Siloam Springs
Siloam Springs, Arkansas
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
Additional Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying other supplementary information, such
as the combining schedules of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the additional
supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 6, 2022
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Fort Smith, Arkansas
October 6, 2022
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City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2021
As management of the City of Siloam Springs (the “City”), we offer readers of the City’s financial
statements this narrative review and analysis of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2021. This analysis focuses on the 2021 and 2020 fiscal year activities and should be
considered in conjunction with the information contained in the Independent Auditor’s Reports and
Financial Statements that follow.
Overview of the Financial Statements
In addition to Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”), the report consists of government- wide
statements, fund financial statements, notes to the financial statements, combining schedules of nonmajor funds and supplementary information. The first statements presented are highly condensed and
provide a government-wide perspective of the City’s finances. In the government-wide perspective, all City
operations are categorized and reported as either governmental or business-type activities.
Governmental activities include basic services such as police, fire, court, streets, parks and recreation,
library, cemetery, building inspections, community development, animal services and general
government administration. Business-type activities include utilities (electric, water, wastewater, and
solid waste) and the airport. These government-wide statements are designed to be more corporate- like,
in that all activities are consolidated into a total for the City.
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 10 and 11 of this report.
Basic Financial Statements
•

•

•

•

The Statement of Net Position focuses on resources available for future operations. This
statement presents a snap-shot view of the assets and deferred outflows of resources the City
owns, the liabilities and deferred inflows of resources it owes and the net difference. The net
difference is further separated into amounts restricted for specific purposes and unrestricted
amounts. A significant difference from fund financial statements is that governmental activities
reflect capital assets and long-term liabilities. Also, governmental activities are reported on the
accrual basis of accounting.
The Statement of Activities focuses on gross and net costs of City programs and the extent to
which such programs rely upon general tax and other revenues including internal transfers from
the enterprise funds. This statement summarizes and simplifies the user’s analysis to determine
the extent to which such programs are self-supporting and/or subsidized by general and other
revenues.
Fund financial statements focus separately on major governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Governmental fund statements follow the more traditional presentation of government financial
statements. The City’s major governmental funds are presented in their own column and the
remaining non-major governmental fund – Debt Service is presented in its own column on the
statements. A budgetary comparison is presented for the general fund and street fund in the
required supplementary information. Statements for the City’s proprietary funds follow the
governmental funds and include net position, revenues, expenses, changes in net position, and
cash flows.
The notes to the financial statements provide additional disclosures required by governmental
accounting standards and provide information to assist the reader in understanding the City’s
financial condition.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2021
City as a Whole
Government-wide Financial Statements
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of
the City as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City’s finances. These statements include all
assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources using the
accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All
current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.
These two statements report the City’s net position at a point in time and the changes in net position over
a period of time. The City’s net position, the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources
and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, is one way to measure the City’s financial position. Over
time, increases or decreases in the City’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial position is
improving or deteriorating.
A condensed version of the Statements of Net Position at December 31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:
Net Position
(Amounts in Millions)
Governmental
Activities
2021
2020
Cash and investments
Other assets
Capital assets (net)
Total assets

$

23.4
13.7
57.2
94.3

$

Business-type
Activities
2021
2020

17.3
9.7
58.1
85.1

$

16.1
28.0
97.7
141.8

$

Total
2021

11.6
26.4
75.2
113.2

$

39.5
41.7
154.9
236.1

2020
$

28.9
36.1
133.3
198.3

Deferred outflows of resources

2.8

3.2

-

-

2.8

3.2

Current liabilities

3.0

1.4

12.4

5.4

15.4

6.8

12.3
15.3

13.2
14.6

30.8
43.2

10.2
15.6

43.1
58.5

23.4
30.2

3.1

2.3

-

-

3.1

2.3

56.9
9.2
12.6
78.7

57.8
6.4
7.2
71.4

65.8
12.1
20.7
98.6

66.1
9.6
21.9
97.6

122.7
21.3
33.3
177.3

123.9
16.0
29.1
169.0

Long-term liabilities
Total Liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

$

$

$

$

$

$

The City’s combined net position increased from $169.0 million to $177.3 million, a 4.9% increase in 2021.
Unrestricted net position for governmental activities, which is the portion of net position that can be used
to finance day to day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation or
other legal requirements, increased $5.4 million, from a balance of $7.2 million to $12.6 million. The driver
for this increase is an increase in tax revenue. Net position of the business-type activities reflects a $1.0
million or 1% increase ($98.6 million compared to $97.6 million).
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December 31, 2021
A condensed version of the Statements of Activities for the periods ending December 31 is as follows:
Changes in Net Position
(Amounts in Millions)
Governmental
Activities
2021
2020
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for Services
Grants and contributions
General revenues
Taxes
Investment
Intergovernmental
Employer contributions
Other
Total revenues

$

4.5
1.0

$

2.7
1.4

Business-type
Activities
2021
2020

$

40.8
0.5

$

Total
2021

36.4
-

$

45.3
1.5

2020

$

39.1
1.4

13.0
0.2
2.3
2.5
0.9
24.4

11.2
0.9
3.0
0.3
0.5
20.0

4.5
0.1
45.9

4.6
0.1
0.5
41.6

17.5
0.2
2.3
2.5
1.0
70.3

15.8
1.0
3.0
0.3
1.0
61.6

10.8
10.3
1.6

9.4
9.7
1.5

-

-

10.8
10.3
1.6

9.4
9.7
1.5

2.0
1.7
26.4

1.8
1.7
24.1

34.7
0.9
35.6

27.8
0.8
28.6

2.0
1.7
34.7
0.9
62.0

1.8
1.7
27.8
0.8
52.7

before transfers
Transfers

(2.0)
9.3

(4.1)
8.8

10.3
(9.3)

13.0
(8.8)

8.3
-

8.9
-

Increase (decrease) in net position
Net position - beginning of year
Net position - end of year

7.3
71.4
78.7

4.7
66.7
71.4

1.0
97.6
98.6

4.2
93.4
97.6

8.3
169.0
177.3

8.9
160.1
169.0

Expenses
General government
Public safety and judiciary
Transportation
Cultural, parks and
recreation
Community development
Utilities
Airport
Total expenses
Increase in net position

$

$

$

$

$

$

The City’s total revenue of $70.3 million in 2021 reflects a $8.7 million, or 14.1%, increase over total
revenue of $61.6 million in 2020. This increase in total revenue in 2021 is primarily due to an increase in
local and county taxes. The total operating expense, or cost of all programs and services provided by the
City, increased 17.7% (to $62.0 million, from a total cost of $52.7 million). This increase in total cost was
a combination of an increase in personnel in general government and an increase in old fire pension
expense. Our analysis below separately considers the operations of governmental and business-type
activities.
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City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2021
Governmental Activities
Revenue for the City’s governmental activities in 2021 came in at $24.4 million which is approximately a
$4.4 million dollar increase from 2020. The main driver for the increase is additional sales tax received in
2021. In the context of total revenue versus total expense, the City’s governmental activities ran a $2.0
million deficit before transfers from the business-type activities funds of $9.3 million.
Governmental activities total expenses increased $2.3 million in 2021 from 2020, a 9.5% increase. The
expense included an increase in personnel costs for salaries and healthcare.
Business-type Activities
Revenues of the City’s business-type activities or enterprise funds increased by $4.3 million or 10.3%
($45.9 million in 2021 compared to $41.6 million in 2020). This increase in business activity revenue results
from increased utility sales.
Business-type activities revenue represents 65.3% of total City revenues in 2021. Electric revenues are
equal to 63.2% of the business-type charges for services and 37.6% of the total City revenue. The cost or
expenses of all business-type activities increased by $7 million or 24.5% ($35.6 million in 2021 compared
to $28.6 million in 2020). This increase in business activity expenses results from increased in the cost of
power.
Budgetary Highlights
Over the course of the year, the City Board of Directors revised the budget once. The City develops their
budget on a modified accrual basis. The general fund budget is required to function within the anticipated
revenue from all sources.
Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets
At December 31, 2021, the City had $154.9 million invested in capital assets net of depreciation. These
assets include police and fire equipment, park and recreation facilities, buildings and utility infrastructure,
street infrastructure and land. This balance represents a net increase of $21.6 million or 16.2% ($154.9
million compared to $133.3 million). Significant capital asset projects and capital asset additions during
the year by fund net of accumulated depreciation and adjustments included:
•

Street Fund –

$558,075 Kenwood Rebuild; $626,645 Hico Street Side Path; $206,688 Dozer

•

Utility Fund –

$30,504,855 WTP Improvements; $216,047 Tree Trimmer Bucket Truck

Economic Factors and Management Strategies
The City saw an increase in the economy overall. The City issued a total of 217 for all building permits in
2021 compared to 269 in 2020, 256 issued in 2019, 212 issued in 2018 and 173 issued in 2017. The City’s
expansion in our industrial customer market base and commercial retail markets has recovered and the
City’s residential expansion has increased significantly in 2021.
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December 31, 2021
The City saw an increase in the economy overall. The City issued a total of 217 for all building permits in
2021 compared to 269 in 2020, 256 issued in 2019, 212 issued in 2018 and 173 issued in 2017. The City’s
expansion in our industrial customer market base and commercial retail markets has recovered and the
City’s residential expansion has increased significantly in 2021.
The City sales tax revenue increased in 2021 by 16% after reflecting an increase of 14% in 2020. The City
share of County sales tax revenue increased in 2021 with an increase of 17%. This revenue stream is
primarily allocated to funding governmental activities operations and, therefore, a critical line item that
is closely monitored by City leaders. The City and County sales tax revenue streams were budgeted for a
1% increase and 0% increase in 2022, respectively. Through six months of 2022 the actual receipts appear
to be higher than these projections for City and County.
In 2021, the City continued to execute strategies and plans that have resulted in positive achievements in
the areas of City infrastructure condition, planning and preparing for economic development, and
strengthening revenue streams and operating efficiencies to improve financial condition and fiscal
sustainability. These achievements include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Completed work on the Kenwood Rebuild
Completed work on the Taxiway Lighting Rehab
Completed work upgrading the electrical poles and wires for the South Feeder Loop
Completed work on the upgrade to the City-wide AWIN radio system.
Completed work on the ADA Fishing Pier
Completed work on the Sager Creek Stream Mitigation
Continued work on the Water Treatment Plant
Continued work on Hico Street Side Path
Began work on the Moss Substation

Financial Contact
The City’s financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and
creditors) with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability. If
you have questions about the report or need additional financial information, please contact Phillip
Patterson, the City Administrator at 400 N. Broadway, Siloam Springs, Arkansas 72761.
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City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2021

Governmental
Activities
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Investments
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
Inventories
Prepaids
Restricted assets
Restricted cash and certificates of deposit
Internal balances
Capital assets, non-depreciable
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total Assets

$

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows - benefit plans
Deferred outflows - benefit plan contributions
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Customer deposits
Unearned revenues
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows - benefit plans
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Expendable
Capital projects
Debt service
Other
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$

12,537,033
3,418,819
7,452,612
5,993,740
112,212
196,102

Primary Government
Business-Type
Activities

$

13,730,114
2,346,612
9,211,302
4,257,726
124,445

Total

$

26,267,147
5,765,431
7,452,612
15,205,042
4,369,938
320,547

9,162,273
(1,788,264)
9,390,308
47,809,433
94,284,268

12,141,532
1,788,822
1,209,271
96,473,418
141,283,242

21,303,805
558
10,599,579
144,282,851
235,567,510

1,666,126
1,128,861
2,794,987

59,013
59,013

1,725,139
1,128,861
2,854,000

311,883
437,077
16,617
2,216,762

8,650,929
54,535
124,264
922,214
3,600

8,962,812
491,612
124,264
938,831
2,220,362

1,172,942
11,097,529
15,252,810

2,113,916
30,867,046
42,736,504

3,286,858
41,964,575
57,989,314

3,166,619
3,166,619

7,095
7,095

3,173,714
3,173,714

56,888,136

65,799,470

122,687,606

6,134,323
4,879
3,023,071
12,609,417
78,659,826

1,462,429
8,932,031
1,747,072
20,657,654
98,598,656

7,596,752
8,936,910
4,770,143
33,267,071
177,258,482

$

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Statement of Activities
Year ended December 31, 2021
Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Changes in Net Position
Program Revenues
Functions/Programs

Primary Government

Charges for

Government

Govermental

Business-type

Services

Grants

Activities

Activities

Expenses

Total

Primary Government
Governmental Activities
General government

$

Public safety

10,765,024

$

4,499,644

$

9,300

$

(6,256,080)

$

-

$

(6,256,080)

10,285,445

-

88,219

(10,197,226)

-

(10,197,226)

Culture, parks and recreation

1,968,739

-

23,739

(1,945,000)

-

(1,945,000)

Community development

1,749,849

-

95,404

(1,654,445)

-

(1,654,445)

Street department

1,582,100

-

405,000

(1,177,100)

-

(1,177,100)

Interest on long-term debt

12,778

-

-

(12,778)

-

(12,778)

Total Governmental Activities

26,363,935

4,499,644

621,662

(21,242,629)

-

(21,242,629)

34,654,811

40,279,168

50,490

-

948,223

519,719

409,405

-

35,603,034

40,798,887

459,895

-

Business-Type Activities
Utilities
Airport
Total Business-Type Activities
Total Primary Government

$

61,966,969

$

45,298,531

$

1,081,557

5,674,847

5,674,847

(19,099)

(19,099)

5,655,748

(21,242,629)

5,655,748

5,655,748

(15,586,881)

General Revenues
Property taxes
Sales and use taxes

1,970,594

-

1,970,594

11,026,697

4,499,199

15,525,896

Private grants and contributions
Intergovernmental
Investment income

401,937

-

401,937

2,290,564

-

2,290,564

148,305

65,533

213,838

Employer contributions

2,467,979

-

2,467,979

Miscellaneous

1,061,432

-

1,061,432

Loss on sale of capital assets

(120,431)

Transfers
Total General Revenues and Transfers

9,260,679

(9,261,014)

28,507,756

(4,696,282)

Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of year
Net Position, End of year

$

-

(120,431)
(335)
23,811,474

7,265,127

959,466

8,224,593

71,394,699

97,639,190

169,033,889

78,659,826

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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$

98,598,656

$

177,258,482

City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds
December 31, 2021

Street
Funds

General
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Investments
Tax and other receivables, net of allowance
of $206,449 and $33,583, respectively
Ambulance fees receivable, net of
allowance of $515,643
Inventories
Due from other funds
Prepaid items
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenues - grants

$

12,509,201
3,418,819
7,452,612

$

-

Non-Major
Debt Service
Fund

Total
Governmental
Funds

$

$

27,832
-

12,537,033
3,418,819
7,452,612

4,104,327

1,500,266

-

5,604,593

389,147
112,212
421,265
161,803
2,659,715

160
15,399
6,134,323

4,879

389,147
112,212
421,425
177,202
8,798,917

$

31,229,101

$

7,650,148

$

32,711

$

38,911,960

$

228,282
2,486,788
443,465
2,216,762

$

83,601
62,385
10,229
-

$

-

$

311,883
2,549,173
453,694
2,216,762

Total Liabilities

5,375,297

156,215

-

5,531,512

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenues - property taxes

3,061,389

1,053,655

-

4,115,044

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

3,061,389

1,053,655

-

4,115,044

Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

274,015
2,659,715
1,933
19,856,752

15,399
6,134,323
4,445
286,111

4,879
27,832

289,414
8,798,917
6,378
20,170,695

Total Fund Balance

22,792,415

6,440,278

32,711

29,265,404

Fund Balance

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balance

$

31,229,101

$

7,650,148

$

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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32,711

$

38,911,960

City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds
With the Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2021

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the
Statement of Net Position are Different Because:
Total fund balance of the governmental fund.
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and are not reported in the funds.

$ 29,265,404

57,199,741

Certain tax revenues are deferred and unavailable to pay current fund liabilities.

4,115,044

Amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB are
not received and receivable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

(3,166,619)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB are
not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

2,794,987

Internal service funds are used by management to change the costs of risk
management activities to individual funds. The assets, deferred outflow of resources,
liabilities and deferred inflows of the internal service funds are included in
governmental activities in the statement of net position.
Long-term liabilities and related items are not due and payable in the current
year and, therefore, are not reported in governmental funds:
Capital lease payable
Post-employment benefits liability
Accrued compensated absences
Net pension liability
Total Net Position - Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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721,740

(311,605)
(2,031,474)
(1,071,424)
(8,855,968)
$ 78,659,826

City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances – Governmental Funds
Year ended December 31, 2021
Street
Fund

General
Revenues
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Government grants
Private grants and contributions
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Investment income
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

$

Expenditures
General government
Administration
Finance
Construction
Maintenance
Total General Government
Public safety and judiciary
Police
Fire
Municipal court
Total Public Safety and Judiciary
Transportation
Streets
Cultural, parks and recreation
Library
Parks
Total Cultural, Parks and Recreation
Community development
Building inspections
Debt service
Principal retirement
Interest and other charges
Total Debt Service
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures
Excess Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year
Fund Balance, End of Year

$

1,333,275
8,879,112
427,169
1,005,780
4,499,644
290,394
216,662
401,937
(120,431)
145,876
121,420
17,200,838

$

454,320
2,147,585
220,094
1,284,784
405,000
1,388
2,355
4,515,526

Non-major
Governmental
Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

$

$

7
7

1,787,595
11,026,697
647,263
2,290,564
4,499,644
290,394
621,662
401,937
(120,431)
147,271
123,775
21,716,371

1,364,067
1,638,416
522,789
347,176
3,872,448

-

-

1,364,067
1,638,416
522,789
347,176
3,872,448

4,733,319
5,296,430
255,696
10,285,445

-

-

4,733,319
5,296,430
255,696
10,285,445

-

1,582,100

-

1,582,100

556,065
1,412,674
1,968,739

-

-

556,065
1,412,674
1,968,739

1,749,849

-

-

1,749,849

-

-

385,527
12,778
398,305

385,527
12,778
398,305

1,380,197
19,256,678

1,739,793
3,321,893

398,305

3,119,990
22,976,876

(2,055,840)

1,193,633

(398,298)

(1,260,505)

9,289,785
(433,052)
8,856,733

262,500
262,500

141,446
141,446

9,693,731
(433,052)
9,260,679

6,800,893
15,991,522
22,792,415

$

1,456,133
4,984,145
6,440,278

$

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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(256,852)
289,563
32,711

$

8,000,174
21,265,230
29,265,404

City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances – Governmental Funds With the Statement of Activities
Year ended December 31, 2021
Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the
Statement of Activities are Different Because:
Net change in fund balance of the governmental fund
Government funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense:
Capital outlay
Depreciation expense
Revenues that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues for the
funds, but are reported as revenues in the statement of activities. This is the change in the
amount of unavailable revenues reported in the governmental fund statements.
Deferred inflows/outflows related to the net pension liabilities not due and payable in the current
period that are not reported in the funds. These amounts are amortized into pension expense in
future periods. This is the amount by which the deferred inflows/outflows changed during the
current year.

$ 8,000,174

3,064,152
(4,201,484)

182,999

(1,331,753)

Expenses that do not require the use of current financial resources, such as net pension
liabilities, other postemployment benefits ("OPEB") liabilities, and long-term compensated
absences are not reported as expenditures in the governmental fund financial statements in
the current year, but are reported as expenses in the statement of activities.
Decrease in net pension liabilities
Increase in OPEB liabilities
Increase in accrued long-term compensated absences

1,044,435
(132,929)
(33,552)

The issuance of long-term debt and capital leases provide current financial resources to
governmental funds, but issuing debt and capital leases increases long-term liabilities in the
statement of net position. The repayment of principal on long-term debt and capital leases is an
expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the
statement of net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs and other
similar items when debt is issued, whereas certain immaterial amounts deferred and amortized
in the statement of activities were expensed in connection with the adoption of GASB 65.
Principal repayments

255,000

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of insurance services to
individual funds. The net loss of the internal service fund is reported with governmental activities.
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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418,085
$ 7,265,127

City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Statement of Net Position – Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2021

Utilities
Assets
Current Assets
Cash
Certificates of Deposit
Receivables
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
Taxes
Grants receivable
Inventory
Due from other funds
Prepaid items
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Restricted cash
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Land
Construction in progress
Distribution and collection systems
Buildings, improvements, and equipment
Total Noncurrent Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows - benefit plans
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
Total Assets
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Unearned revenues
Customer deposits
Due to other funds
Current maturities of long-term debt
Compensated absences
Accrued interest payable
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilites
Other postemployment benefits
Long-term debt
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows - benefit plans
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
Total Liabilities
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Capital projects
Debt service
Other
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$ 13,545,749
2,346,612

Enterprise Funds
Airport
Non-major

184,365
-

$ 13,730,114
2,346,612

5,761,002
291,227
3,067,006
4,214,365
2,297,027
114,884
31,637,872

20,426
71,641
43,361
9,561
329,354

5,781,428
291,227
3,138,647
4,257,726
2,297,027
124,445
31,967,226

369,602
18,900
388,502

12,141,532

-

12,141,532

363,356

859,216
31,534,266
55,543,437
6,586,547
106,664,998

350,055
10,770
2,798,398
3,159,223

1,209,271
31,545,036
55,543,437
9,384,945
109,824,221

363,356

59,013
59,013
$ 138,361,883

$ 3,488,577

59,013
59,013
$ 141,850,460

$

751,858

$

$

$

$

8,591,176
53,372
921,214
508,205
1,657,692
449,037
124,264
12,304,960

$

Totals

Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service Fund

59,753
1,163
3,600
1,000
7,187
72,703

8,650,929
54,535
3,600
922,214
508,205
1,657,692
456,224
124,264
12,377,663

$

-

30,118
30,118

641,519
30,225,527
30,867,046

-

641,519
30,225,527
30,867,046

-

7,095
7,095
43,179,101

72,703

7,095
7,095
43,251,804

30,118

62,640,247

3,159,223

65,799,470

-

1,462,429
8,932,031
1,747,072
20,401,003
$ 95,182,782

256,651
$ 3,415,874

1,462,429
8,932,031
1,747,072
20,657,654
$ 98,598,656

363,356
358,384
721,740

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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$

City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – Proprietary Funds
Year ended December 31, 2021

Utilities
Operating Revenues
Charges for Services
Electric
Water
Wastewater
Sanitation
Fuel sales
Rent income
Penalties
Employer contributions
Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues

$ 26,704,924
5,011,124
4,399,316
3,645,319
443,880
67,239
365,479
161,606
40,798,887

19,359,283
4,753,996
127,171
4,738,869
392,472
577,874
4,352,062
34,301,727

368,638
99,828
1,038
157,668
14,668
19,508
286,875
948,223

19,359,283
368,638
4,853,824
128,209
4,896,537
407,140
597,382
4,638,937
35,249,950

2,050,928
2,050,928

Net Operating Income (Loss)

5,977,441

(428,504)

5,548,937

417,051

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Sales tax revenue
Government grants
Interest income
Interest expense
Net Nonoperating Revenues

4,499,199
50,490
65,533
(353,084)
4,262,138

409,405
409,405

4,499,199
459,895
65,533
(353,084)
4,671,543

Income (Loss) Before Transfers

10,239,579

Transfers Out

(9,261,014)

Change in Net Position

(19,099)
-

978,565

Net Position, Beginning of Year
Net Position, End of Year

$

Totals

Governmental
Funds
Internal
Service Funds

443,880
67,239
8,600
519,719

Operating Expenses
Cost of goods sold
Cost of power
Cost of fuel
Personal services
Contracted services
Maintenance and operating expenses
Other services and charges
Utilities
Benefits paid
Depreciation and amortization
Total Operating Expenses

$ 26,704,924
5,011,124
4,399,316
3,645,319
365,479
153,006
40,279,168

Enterprise Funds
Airport
Non-major

(19,099)

94,204,217
$ 95,182,782

$

$

2,467,979
2,467,979

1,034
1,034

10,220,480

418,085

(9,261,014)

-

959,466

418,085

3,434,973

97,639,190

303,655

3,415,874

$ 98,598,656

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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$

721,740

City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds
Year ended December 31, 2021

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
$
Cash received from internal customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services
Other operating receipts
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Cash Flows From Noncapital and Related Financing Activities
Interfund transfers
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital and
Related Financing Activities
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Sales tax revenue
Governmental grants
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest and fees paid on debt
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and
Related Financing Activities
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest on cash and certificates of deposit
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities
Net Change in Cash
Cash, Beginning of Year
Cash, End of Year
$
Presented on the Statement of Net Position Proprietary Funds as follows:
Cash and certificates of deposit
Restricted cash - noncurrent
Total Cash and Cash Equivalent
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation expense
Changes in:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Customer deposits
Due to other funds
Decrease in employee benefit plans
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

$

Utilities
39,707,574
(21,541,345)
(4,738,991)
153,006
13,580,244

Enterprise Funds
Airport
Non-major
$

Totals
$

40,323,294
(22,083,922)
(4,862,277)
161,606
13,538,701

$

2,467,979
(2,409,312)

58,667

(9,261,014)

-

(9,261,014)

-

(9,261,014)

-

(9,261,014)

-

4,446,741
2,527,311
(26,680,762)
23,595,406
(758,652)
(353,084)

350,260
(449,210)
-

4,446,741
2,877,571
(27,129,972)
23,595,406
(758,652)
(353,084)

-

2,776,960

(98,950)

2,678,010

-

65,533
65,533
7,161,723
20,872,170
28,033,893

(140,493)
324,858
184,365

65,533
65,533
7,021,230
21,197,028
28,218,258

1,034
1,034
59,701
303,655
363,356

$

$

$

15,892,361
12,141,532
28,033,893

$

5,977,441

$

615,720
(542,577)
(123,286)
8,600
(41,543)

Governmental
Funds
Internal
Service Funds

$

$

$

184,365
184,365

$

(428,504)

$

$

16,076,726
12,141,532
28,218,258

$

363,356
363,356

$

5,548,937

$

417,051

4,352,062

286,875

4,638,937

(418,588)
(1,261,890)
167,397
(13,127)
4,256,510
32,557
508,205
(20,323)
13,580,244

104,601
(19,450)
(1,001)
39,244
150
(23,458)
(41,543)

(313,987)
(1,281,340)
167,397
(14,128)
4,295,754
32,707
508,205
(43,781)
13,538,701

$

$

$

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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-

$

(369,602)
9,033
2,185
58,667

City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Statement of Net Position – Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2021

Assets
Cash
Certificates of deposit
Investments
Mutual funds
Receivables, net of allowance of $9,821
Total Assets

Pension
Trust Fund
Firemen's
Pension and
Relief
$
210,833
-

PrivatePurpose Trust
Fund
Oak Hill
Cemetary
Trust
$
138,201
286,893

3,896,965
317,546
4,425,344

4,638
429,732

558
558

-

308,133

-

4,116,653
-

429,732

4,116,653

429,732

Liabilities
Due to other funds
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes
Net Position
Net position restricted for pensions
Net position restricted for cemetary maintenance
Net Position Restricted for Pensions
and Other Purposes
Total Liablities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balance

$

4,425,344

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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$

429,732

City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Statement of Activities – Fiduciary Funds
Year ended December 31, 2021

Pension
Trust Fund
Firemen's
Pension and
Relief

Additions
Contributions
Property taxes
Future supplement
Intergovernmental

$

Total Contributions

132,826
25,207
-

PrivatePurpose Trust
Fund
Oak Hill
Cemetary
Trust

$

17,381

158,033

17,381

262,824
111,657

1,350
-

Net Investment Income

374,481

1,350

Total Additions

532,514

18,731

Deductions
Benefits paid
Administrative expenses

352,008
30,869

-

382,877

-

335

-

Change in Fiduciary Net Position

149,972

18,731

Net Position - Beginning of Year

3,966,681

411,001

Investment income
Interest and dividends
Net increase in fair value of investments

Total Deductions
Transfers in

Net Position - End of Year

$

4,116,653

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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$

429,732

City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021
NOTE 1: NATURE OF ACTIVITIES
The City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas, (the “City”), was incorporated in 1881 and is a municipal
corporation operating under the authority of Arkansas state statute. The City operates under a city
administrator form of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter:
public safety (police, fire and animal control), streets, electric, public works, general administrative
services, airport, municipal court, cemetery, parks and recreation, library, and community
development. Seven elected board members and the Mayor set policy of the City. The accounting and
reporting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America for the state and local governments as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB).
NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity
The accompanying government-wide financial statements present the financial statements of the City
of Siloam Springs, Arkansas. The City includes in its primary government all funds, account groups,
departments, agencies, boards and commissions.
The City’s defined benefit plan, being fiduciary in nature, was not evaluated as a potential component
unit but instead was reported as a fiduciary fund.
Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements
Basic financial statements are presented at both the government-wide and fund financial level. Both
levels of statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type.
Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for services.
Government-wide financial statements report information about the reporting government as a
whole. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
These statements focus on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in aggregate
financial position resulting from the activities of the year. These aggregated statements consist of the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.
The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or business-type activity are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or business-type activity. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or business-type activity and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or business type
activity. Taxes and other items not included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.
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City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021
Fund financial statements report information at the individual fund level. Each fund is considered to be
a separate accounting entity. Funds are classified as governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements. Non-major funds are consolidated into a single column in the
financial section of the basic financial statements
The City reports the general fund and street fund as its major governmental funds. The general fund
is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the City, except those
required to be accounted for in another fund. Revenues are derived primarily from property and other
local taxes, state and federal distributions, licenses, permits, charges for services and interest income.
The street fund account for resources related to street operations, including new projects and
maintenance activities.
The City reports one major enterprise fund. It accounts for the City’s combined electric, water, sewer
and sanitation system, whose operations are financed primarily through user charges. The City also
reports one nonmajor enterprise fund. It accounts for the City’s airport operations, which operations
are financed through fuel sales and rent income.
Additionally, the City reports the pension trust fund which accounts for assets held in trust for the
Firemen’s Relief and Pension Fund. Plan trustees must act in accordance with the specific purposes
and terms of the retirement plan. Then pension trust fund is accounted for in essentially the same
manner as proprietary funds.
The private purpose trust fund accounts for activities that are not the City’s programs but are
programs sponsored by private organizations or other governments. Although the City serves as fiscal
agent, the funds received and held under these programs are not available to support the City’s
activities and programs, but are received and held for the benefit of individuals, private organizations
or other governments participating in the sponsored programs. The programs accounted for within
this are expendable trust funds.
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting as is the proprietary fund in the fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
In proprietary funds, operating revenues and expenses are distinguished from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the
principal ongoing operations of the fund. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating items.
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City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021
Nonexchange transactions, in which the City receives (or gives) value without directly giving (or
receiving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, city and county sales tax, grants,
entitlement and similar items, and donations. Recognition standards are based on the characteristics
and classes of nonexchange transactions. Revenues from property taxes are recognized in the period
in which the taxes are levied. City and county sales taxes, franchise fees, licenses and permits and fines
and forfeitures are recognized as revenues, net of estimated refunds and uncollectible amounts, in the
accounting period when an enforceable legal claim to the assets arises and the use of resources is
required or is first permitted. Grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized as revenues, net of
estimated uncollectible amounts, as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
been met. Amounts received before all eligibility requirements have been met are reported as
unearned revenues. Grants and similar aid to other organizations are recognized as expenses as soon
as recipients have met all eligibility requirements. Amounts paid before all eligibility requirements
have been met are reported as prepaid items.
Governmental fund financial statements report using the “current financial resources” measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the current financial resources focus, only
current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating
statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period.
These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end
of the period. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
“measurable and available”. Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the
amount. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
current liabilities. The City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the fiscal year. Sales and use taxes, franchise taxes, hotel/motel taxes, court fines and
interest are considered susceptible to accrual. Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded
when the related fund liability is incurred. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable
and available only when cash is received by the City.
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as investment earnings,
result from non-exchange transactions.
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
State law requires that the following procedures be followed in establishing the budgetary data
reflected in the financial statements:
a. The City Administrator submits to the Board of Directors a proposed operating budget for
the City for the calendar year commencing the following January 1. The operating budget
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.
b. The approval of the budget by the Board of Directors shall amount to an appropriation, for
the purposes of the budget, of the funds which are lawfully applicable to the different items
therein contained.
c. Under certain conditions, the budget may be amended subsequent to year-end.
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The budgeted revenues and expenditures included in these financial statements represent the formal
operating budget adopted by the Board of Directors, as amended during the year.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, deferred inflows/outflows of resources and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statement and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses/expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes demand deposits, savings accounts and cash on hand. In order to facilitate cash
management, the operating cash of certain funds is pooled into a common bank account. The City
considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
At December 31, 2021, cash equivalents consisted primarily of money market accounts with brokers.
Investments and Investment Income
All investments are carried at fair value determined using quoted market prices except for
investments in nonnegotiable certificates of deposit which are carried at amortized cost.
Investment income includes dividends and interest income and the net change for the year in the fair
value of investments carried at fair value. Investment income is assigned to funds with which the
related investment asset is associated.
Accounts Receivables
Receivables consist primarily of property and other taxes and customer accounts receivable (billing
for customer services charges including unbilled utility services).
Property taxes – Property taxes are levied each November 1 on the assessed value listed as of January
1 for all real and personal property. The property tax is considered due on the first Monday in February
(the lien date) after the levy; however, the tax is not considered delinquent until October 16 of that
year. As a result, the majority of the tax is not collected within the time frame necessary to finance
the liabilities of the current period. Property taxes that remain delinquent for a period of three years
are certified to the land commissioner where a lien is recorded and held on file. If property taxes
remain delinquent for a period of seven years, the property will be subsequently sold by the land
commissioner.
In the governmental funds, property taxes are measurable when levied even though not available. As a
result, net property taxes receivable of $5,250,764 and related deferred inflows of resources of
$4,115,044 have been recorded in the governmental funds at December 31, 2021. In the governmentwide statements, property taxes are considered earned at the time levied. In addition to property
taxes levied, any delinquent taxes are recorded net of amounts considered uncollectible. The
appraised value of taxable property upon which the property tax is levied is determined by the county
assessor. The assessor estimates full market value of the property and applies the statutory rate of
20% to arrive at assessed value.
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Utilities and Ambulance – Utilities consist of credit extended to users in the normal course of business.
The City uses the allowance method to account for uncollectible accounts receivable. In circumstances
where management is aware of a specific user’s inability to meet financial obligations, a specific
reserve is recorded to reduce the receivable to the amount expected to be collected. In addition, the
City has established a general reserve based upon historical customer performance. Management also
performs ongoing credit evaluation of its accounts and those which are considered uncollectible are
reserved for through the allowance account. This includes management analyzing the aging of
outstanding balances in which certain percentages will be reserved based upon the type of payee and
the time period the account has been outstanding. The policy for determining when receivables are
past due or delinquent is based on how recently payments have been received. Amounts are written
off at the point when collection attempts have been exhausted. Management uses significant
judgement in estimating uncollectible amounts, which is based on management considering factors
such as current overall economic conditions, industry-specific economic conditions, historical
customer performance and anticipated customer performance. While management believes the
City’s processes effectively address its exposure to doubtful accounts, changes in economic, industry
or specific customer conditions may require adjustment to the allowance recorded by the City.
Unbilled Revenue
The City bills customers for electric, water and sewer services after usage based upon meter readings
made during the month. The City records a receivable for unbilled revenue at December 31 for
estimated usage for which bills have not been sent.
Inventories
Inventories, consisting primarily of fuel, electrical materials, waterline and sewer materials, are valued
at the lower of cost (first in, first out method) or net realizable value. The costs of governmental fund
type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed.
Prepaid Items
Prepaid items in governmental funds are accounted for under the consumption method.
Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets, are reported in the
government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements for proprietary funds.
Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated
capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.
Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial value or cost greater than or equal to $5,000 and an
estimated useful life of greater than two years.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of enterprise funds is included as part
of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.
Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other property, plant, equipment, and
infrastructure of the primary government are depreciated using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:
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Water distribution facilities
Sewer and solid waste collection and treatment facilities
Electric distribution facilities
Buildings
Building improvements
Furniture and equipment

20-43 years
20-50 years
5-40 years
20-40 years
10-25 years
3-10 years

Depreciation expense is charged directly to the department/function based on the department that
utilizes the related asset.
Long-Term Obligations
In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the columns for governmental activities and business-type activities. These
amounts are also reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements for proprietary funds. Debt
premiums, discounts and deferred gains on refundings are generally deferred and amortized using
the effective interest rate method. Long-term debt is reported net of the bond issue premium or
discount.
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize debt discounts and premiums,
as well as debt issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of the debt issued,
discounts given, and premiums received are reported as other financing sources (uses). Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual proceeds received are reported as debt service
expenditures.
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure/reduction of liability) until then. The
government has five items, which qualify for reporting in this category as of December 31, 2021. Each
of the five items are related to pensions and include:
•
•
•
•
•

The amount of contributions made to the pension plans after the measurement date
The difference in investment experience between actual earnings and projected earnings on
pension plan investments
The difference between expected and actual experience related to the plans
The amount related to any changes in assumptions or other inputs
The amount related to changes in proportion and differences between contributions
recognized and proportionate share of contributions

Deferred outflows related to contributions made after the measurement date will be used in the next
year to reduce net pension liability. The remaining amounts will be amortized to pension expense
over future periods as shown within Note 10.
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In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and balance sheet - governmental funds will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow outsources (revenue) until that
time. The government has two items that qualify as deferred inflows of resources as of December 31,
2021. Accordingly, the items reported in the statements are unavailable revenues in the governmental
funds balance sheet and deferred inflows - pensions. Governmental funds report unavailable revenue
from property taxes and grant receivables. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow
of resources in the period that the amounts become available. The other item, deferred inflows –
pensions, consists of the difference between the expected and actual experience related to the
pension plans. This amount is amortized to pension expense over future periods as shown within Note
10.
Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Firemen’s Relief and Pension Fund and the Local Police and Fire Retirement System
(together, the Plans) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plans. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
Compensated Absences
The City provides all eligible full-time employees sick leave and vacation benefits. Sick leave benefits
are accrued as a liability using the vesting method. Employees become 100% vested (up to the
maximum) after 20 years of continuous service. For employees with at least 5 years of service, but
less than 20, one-third of the allowable balance is considered vested. The cost of sick leave and
vacation is accrued when earned in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements
and reported as accrued expenses. A liability for those amounts is recorded in the governmental funds
only if the liability has matured as a result of employee resignations or retirements. In governmental
activities, amounts accrued are expected to be liquidated with available financial resources, generally
by the general fund.
Fund Balance – Governmental Funds
The fund balances for the City’s governmental funds may be displayed in up to five components:
Nonspendable – Nonspendable fund balances are not in a spendable form or are required to be
maintained intact.
Restricted – Restricted fund balance may be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by external
resource providers, constitutionally or through enabling legislation. Restrictions may be changed or
lifted only with the consent of resource providers.
Committed – Committed fund balances may be used only for the specific purposes determined by
resolution of the Board of Directors. Commitments may be changed or lifted only by issuance of a
resolution by the Board of Directors. The City currently has no committed fund balance.
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Assigned – Assigned fund balances are intended to be used by the City for specific purposes as
determined by management. In governmental funds other than the general fund, assigned fund
balance represents the amount that is not restricted or committed. This indicates that resources in
other governmental funds are, at a minimum, intended to be used for the purpose of that fund.
Unassigned – Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund and includes
all amounts not contained in the other classifications.
The City considers restricted amounts to have been spent when an expenditure is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available. The City applies
committed amounts first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts when an
expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance
classifications could be used.
Net Position
Net position of the City is classified in three components. Net investment in capital assets consist of
capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and are reduced by the outstanding balances of
borrowings used to finance the purchase or construction of those assets. Restricted net position
includes noncapital assets that must be used for a particular purpose as specified by creditors,
grantors, contributors or laws and regulations of other governments or are imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any related
borrowings. At December 31, 2021, net position restricted by enabling legislation was $8,798,917 for
governmental activities and $12,141,532 for business-type activities. Unrestricted net position is the
remaining assets less remaining liabilities that do not meet the definition of net investment in capital
assets or restricted.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, generally it is the City’s policy
to use restricted resources first.
Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements
The GASB has issued the following statements which the City has not yet adopted and which require
adoption subsequent to December 31, 2021:
GASB Statement No. 87 – Leases (GASB 87): GASB 87 addresses the recognition of certain lease assets
and liabilities for leases that were previously classified as operating leases and recognizing inflows of
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. Under this
statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use asset, and
a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby
enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activity. This
statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2021, with earlier application encouraged.
The City has not yet determined the potential impact, if any, that this statement could have on its
financial statements.
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GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations (GASB 91): GASB 91 clarifies the existing definition
of a conduit debt obligation, establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer;
establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and
voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt
obligations; and improving required note disclosures. This statement is effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2021, with earlier application encouraged. The City has not yet
determined the potential impact, if any, that this statement could have on its financial statements.
NOTE 3: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
Deposits
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a government’s deposits may not be
returned to it. The City’s deposit policy for custodial credit risk requires compliance with the provisions
of state law.
State law requires that deposits in financial institutions be collateralized with federal depository
insurance and other acceptable collateral in specific amounts. No legal opinion has been obtained
regarding the enforceability of any of the collateral arrangements.
At December 31, 2021, the City had bank balances of $53,970,584. The balances were all insured
(FDIC) or collateralized with securities held by the City or the City’s agent in the City’s name. The
carrying value of these deposits as of December 31, 2021, was $53,336,383.
Investments
Arkansas statutes authorize the City to invest in direct obligations of the U.S. government; obligations
on which the principal and interest are fully guaranteed, or are fully secured, insured, or covered by
commitments or agreements to purchase by the U.S. government; obligations of agencies and
instrumentalities created by act of the United States Congress and authorized thereby to issue
securities or evidence of indebtedness, regardless of guarantee of repayment by the U.S. government;
obligations of political subdivisions of the United States; certain obligations issued by the State Board
of Education; short-term warrants of political subdivisions of the State of Arkansas and municipalities;
the sale of federal funds with a maturity of not more than one business day; demand, savings or time
deposits fully insured by a federal deposit insurance agency; repurchase agreements that are fully
insured by obligations of the U.S. government, any U.S. state or any political subdivision thereof;
securities of, or other interest in, any open-end type investment company or investment trust
registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, and which is considered a money market fund,
provided that the portfolio is limited principally to U.S. government obligations and the investment
company or trust takes delivery of collateral either directly or through an authorized custodian; and
bank certificates of deposit. Arkansas statutes also authorize the City to invest no more than 20
percent of its capital base in corporate debt obligations; revenue bond issues of any U.S. state,
municipality, or political subdivision; industrial development bonds for corporate obligors issued
through any U.S. state or political subdivision; securities or interest in an open-end or closed-end
management type investment company or trust registered under the Investment Company Act of
1940 with certain limitations; securities or interests issued, assumed, or guaranteed by certain
international banks; and uninsured demand, savings, or time deposits or accounts or any depository
institution chartered by the United States, any U.S. state, or the District of Columbia.
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The pension trust funds are authorized to invest in U.S. government and agency securities, bank
certificates of deposit, common stocks, investment grade corporate bonds and other appropriate
securities.
Investments at December 31, 2021, consisted of the following:

Type
Bond mutual funds
Equity mutual funds

$

Fixed income

$

Fair
Value
1,707,702
2,189,263
3,896,965
7,452,612
11,349,577

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair
value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs
are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2021:
•

Fixed income, bond and equity mutual funds are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1
inputs).

Interest Rate Risk
The City’s investment policy does not specifically address interest rate risk. The Pension Fund
investment policy does not specifically address interest rate risk.
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The
City’s investment policy does not specifically address credit risk.
The Pension Fund investment policy limits its investments in fixed income securities and preferred shares
to a rating of “investment grade” by Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s) and Standard & Poor’s (S&P).
Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be
able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. While the City’s investment policy does not directly address custodial credit risk, all investments
held by the City or by an agent of the City in the City’s name are insured or collateralized or limited to
United States Treasury bonds.
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Concentration of Credit Risk
The City places no limit on the amount that may be invested in any one issuer.
Summary of Carrying Values
The carrying values of deposits and investments shown on the previous page are included in the financial
statements as follows:

Carrying value
Deposits
Cash on hand
Investments

$ 53,964,716
7,594
11,349,577
$ 65,321,887

Balance sheet - governmental funds
Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Restricted cash and certificates of deposit
Investments

$ 12,537,033
3,418,819
9,162,273

Fixed income

7,452,612

Statement of fund net position - proprietary funds
Cash
Certificates of deposit
Restricted cash
Statement of fiduciary net position
Cash
Certificates of deposit
Investments
Mutual funds

13,730,114
2,346,612
12,141,532

349,034
286,893
3,896,965
$ 65,321,887

NOTE 4: RECEIVABLES
Amounts are aggregated into a single accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles) line for
certain funds and aggregated columns. Below is the detail of receivables for the general, street, and
utilities funds and the nonmajor governmental and proprietary and fiduciary funds in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts.
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General
Fund
Governmental
Property taxes
Ambulance
Other
Gross receivables
Less allowance for uncollectibles
Net Total Receivables

Street
Fund

$

4,076,283
904,790
234,493
5,215,566
722,092

$

1,305,812
228,037
1,533,849
33,583

$

5,382,095
904,790
462,530
6,749,415
755,675

$

4,493,474

$

1,500,266

$

5,993,740

Utilities
Proprietary
Accounts
Sales taxes
Grants receivable
Gross receivables
Less allowances for uncollectibles
Net Total Receivables

Total

Airport

7,877,939
291,227
3,067,006
11,236,172
2,116,937
$

Fiduciary
Property taxes
Other receivables
Gross receivables
Less allowance for uncollectibles
Net Total Receivables
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9,119,235

Total

28,670
71,641
100,311
8,244
$

92,067

7,906,609
291,227
3,138,647
11,336,483
2,125,181
$

9,211,302

$

327,367
4,638
332,005
9,821

$

322,184
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NOTE 5: CAPITAL ASSETS
A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2021, is presented below:

Governmental Activities
Capital assets, non-depreciable
Land
Total Capital Assets, Non-Depreciable

Balance,
December 31,
2020
$ 9,361,930
9,361,930

Additions
$

28,378
28,378

Balance,
Transfers / December 31,
Retirements Adjustments
2021
$

-

$

-

$ 9,390,308
9,390,308

Capital assets, depreciable
Buildings
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Infrastructure
Construction in progress
Total Capital assets, Depreciable

35,259,703
19,790,419
49,393,040
2,315,706
106,758,868

686,449
1,315,272
699,510
878,054
3,579,285

(202,248)
(202,248)

1,575,629
65,647
583,118
(2,158,747)
65,647

37,521,781
20,969,090
50,675,668
1,035,013
110,201,552

Accumulated depreciation
Buildings
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Infrastructure
Total Accumulated Depreciation

(11,943,399)
(13,849,352)
(32,197,831)
(57,990,582)

(1,116,364)
(1,247,985)
(1,837,135)
(4,201,484)

170,754
170,754

(35,616)
(335,211)
20
(370,807)

(13,095,379)
(15,261,794)
(34,034,946)
(62,392,119)

Total Government Activities, Net

$ 58,130,216

$ (593,821) $ (31,494) $ (305,160) $ 57,199,741
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Business-type Activities
Capital assets, non-depreciable
Land
Total Capital Assets, Non-Depreciable

Balance,
December 31,
2020
$ 1,209,271
1,209,271

Balance,
Transfers / December 31,
Retirements Adjustments
2021

Additions
$

-

$

-

$

-

$ 1,209,271
1,209,271

Capital assets, depreciable
Buildings
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Infrastructure
Construction in progress
Total Capital Assets, Depreciable

9,100,376
14,975,823
115,607,955
7,758,571
147,442,725

443,891
1,029,102
1,825,513
23,786,465
27,084,971

-

112,500
112,500

9,544,267
16,117,425
117,433,468
31,545,036
174,640,196

Accumulated depreciation
Buildings
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Infrastructure
Total Accumulated Depreciation

(5,874,631)
(9,258,709)
(58,327,003)
(73,460,343)

(301,034)
(774,875)
(3,563,028)
(4,638,937)

-

(67,498)
(67,498)

(6,175,665)
(10,101,082)
(61,890,031)
(78,166,778)

$ 75,191,653

$ 22,446,034

45,002

$ 97,682,689

Total Business-type Activities, Net

$

-

$

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities
General government
Public safety and judiciary
Police
Fire
Other
Transportation
Cultural, parks and recreation
Community development
Total depreciation expense

$

529,884
316,737
529,732
11,148
2,070,358
691,765
51,860
4,201,484
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Business-type Activities
Electric
Water utilities
Wastewater utilities
Sanitation
Airport
Total depreciation expense

1,173,397
1,281,842
1,445,598
451,225
286,875
4,638,937

Total depreciation expense-Primary Government

$ 8,840,421

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Governmental Activities
Sales and Use Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2012
Original issue amount of $1,795,000 dated December 1, 2012; issued by the City of Siloam Springs,
Arkansas, to refund the City’s outstanding Sales and Use Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2004; secured by a
pledge of the City’s share of countywide sales tax collections; with an interest rate of 2.00%. The bond
matured on February 1, 2021 and the final payment of principal and interest was made at that time.
Business Type Activities
Revolving Loan Fund #00254-CWRLF-L
Administered by the Arkansas Soil and Water Conservation Commission; Original loan amount of
$5,500,000, dated October 16, 2003; principal and interest is payable on the outstanding balance
beginning October 2005; bonds pledged as collateral for loan held by the Arkansas Development Finance
Authority, to provide funds to finance extensions, betterments and improvements to the City’s sewer
system; secured by utility system revenues; interest rate of 2.50% with final maturity dated April 15, 2025.
Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2012
Original issue amount of $3,905,000, dated December 1, 2012; issued by the City of Siloam Springs,
Arkansas, to provide funds to refund the Utility System Refunding and Construction Revenue Bonds, Series
2003; secured by the utility system revenues; interest rate of 1.00% to 2.65% with final maturity dated
October 1, 2022.
WTP ANRC Bond
Original issue amount of up to $31,000,000, dated July 7, 2020; issued by the City of Siloam Springs,
Arkansas; proceeds to provide funds for the cost of acquiring, constructing, furnishing, and equipping
the water facilities; secured by the utility system revenues; interest rate of .75%; servicing fee of 1.0%
per annum of the outstanding principal amount; final maturity dated April 15, 2042.
The original disbursement cut-off date for the bond issuance is April 15, 2022. Subsequent to December
31, 2021, the City requested a waiver to extend the disbursement cut-off date due to delays in
construction. The waiver was granted and the disbursement cut-off date was extended to October 15,
2022. As of December 31, 2021, there has been $29,513,288 in disbursements on this bond issuance.
35

City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021
Note Payable – Walton Family Foundation
The City working in conjunction with the Walton Family Foundation, the Grand River Dam Authority,
and several other related parties determined that the construction of a national caliber kayaking and
water park facility (the “Park”) south of Siloam Springs in Adair County, Oklahoma at the Lake Frances
Dam (the “Dam”) would provide ongoing outdoor recreational opportunities to Arkansas and
Oklahoma residents. The Park would draw a large volume of visitors to the Siloam Springs area which
would generate significant economic activity and benefit the City and its residents.
During the year ended December 31, 2021, the City entered into an agreement with the Walton Family
Foundation for a program related loan in the amount of $700,000. The loan bears no interest and is
due in three equal annual payments with the first payment coming due no later that December 31,
2022. The proceeds of the loan are to be used to support the costs of dam and spillway rehabilitation
and improvement activities at the Dam which will improve the safety and structural integrity of the
Dam along with extending its useful life indefinitely and enable the construction of the Park and its
use by the general public.
Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2021, were as follows:

Governmental Activities
Bonds payable
Sales & Use Tax Refunding Bonds,
Series 2012
Bonds payable, net
FD - Capital lease payable
PD - Capital lease payable
Compensated absences
Other postemployment benefits
liability
Net pension liability
Total Governmental Activities
Long-Term Liabilities

Balance
December 31,
2020

$

255,000
255,000
67,095
37,652
1,037,872

Increases

$

370,910
33,552

1,898,545
9,900,403

132,929
-

$ 13,196,567

$ 537,391
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Decreases

Balance
Amounts Due
December 31,
Due in
2021
One Year

$ (255,000) $
(255,000)
(67,095)
(96,957)
311,605
1,071,424
(1,044,435)

$

101,518
1,071,424

2,031,474
8,855,968

-

$ (1,463,487) $ 12,270,471

$ 1,172,942
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Business-type Activities
Bonds payable
Revolving Loan Fund
Utility System Refunding Revenue
Bonds, Series 2012
WTP ANRC Bond
Unamortized bond premium
Bonds payable, net
Note payable - Walton Family Foundation
Compensated absences
Other postemployment benefits
liability
Total Business-Type Activities
Long-Term Liabilities

Balance
December 31,
2020

Increases

$ 1,562,923

$

Decreases
-

Balance
Amounts Due
December 31,
Due in
2021
One Year

$ (327,992) $ 1,234,931

$ 338,737

860,000
6,617,882
5,661
9,046,466
420,896

22,895,406
22,895,406
700,000
35,328

(425,000)
(5,661)
(758,653)
-

435,000
29,513,288
31,183,219
700,000
456,224

435,000
650,622
1,424,359
233,333
456,224

702,201

-

(60,682)

641,519

-

$ 10,169,563

$ 23,630,734

$ (819,335) $ 32,980,962

$ 2,113,916

Annual Debt Service Requirements
The following schedule shows the annual business-type activities debt service requirements to pay
principal and interest on the revenue bonds and note payable outstanding at December 31, 2021.

Business-type Activities
Fiscal Year
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027-2042

Principal
$

Interest and
Servicing Fee

Total

1,657,692
1,901,541
1,936,176
1,550,188
1,389,119
23,448,503

$

153,674
243,371
225,505
207,204
194,839
1,561,201

$

1,811,366
2,144,912
2,161,681
1,757,392
1,583,958
25,009,704

$ 31,883,219

$

2,585,794

$ 34,469,013

NOTE 7: CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
The City from time to time will enter into a lease agreements as a lessee for financing the acquisition
of police, fire, and other department vehicles. The capitalized value of vehicles under lease
agreements amounted to $411,337 at December 31, 2021 with accumulated depreciation of $8,226.
These vehicles are capitalized at five-year estimated useful lives. During 2021, depreciation expense
of $8,226 was recorded in association with these leases. These lease agreements qualify as capital
leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the net present value of future
minimum lease payments as of their inception dates.
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The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments
as of December 31, 2021 were as follows:

Year ending
December 31,

Governmental
Activities

2022
2023
2024
2025
Total minimum lease payments
Less: amount representing interest
Present value of minimum lease payments

$

106,182
106,182
104,147
3,548
320,059
(8,454)
311,605

$

NOTE 8: INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
Interfund receivables and payables as of December 31, 2021 are as follows:

Government funds
General fund
Street fund
Internal service fund
Total governmental funds
Proprietary funds to/from nonfiduciary funds
Utilities
Fiduciary funds
Firemen's pension and relief fund
Total

Interfund
Receivables
$

$

421,265
160
369,602
791,027

Interfund
Payables
$

2,486,788
62,385
30,118
2,579,291

2,297,027

508,205

3,088,054

558
3,088,054

$

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates (1) interfund
goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the
accounting system and (3) payments between funds are made.
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NOTE 9: INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Amount of interfund transfers between funds are summarized as follows:

Transfers
In
Governmental funds
General fund
Street fund
Debt service fund
Total governmental funds
Proprietary funds
Utilities
Fiduciary funds
Firemen's pension and relief fund
Total

$

Transfers
Out

9,289,785
262,500
141,446
9,693,731

$

433,052
433,052

-

$

335
9,694,066

9,261,014
9,694,066

$

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund where collected to the appropriate fund.
NOTE 10: BENEFIT PLANS
The City participates in two defined benefit pension plans; which are comprised of one single employer
defined benefit pension plan and one cost-sharing multiple- employer defined benefit pension plan,
each of which are described and illustrated in detail below. Aggregate amounts for the two pension
plans are as follows:

Net pension liability
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows of resources - contributions
Deferred inflows of resources
Pension expense

$

FRPF
184,534
50,759
491,093
351,877

$

LOPFI
8,671,434
1,428,493
1,128,861
2,653,059
1,600,838

$

Total
8,855,968
1,479,252
1,128,861
3,144,152
1,952,715

Firefighters’ Relief and Pension Fund (FRPF)
Plan Description
The Firemen’s Relief and Pension Fund (FRPF) is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by a Board of Trustees, established in accordance with legislation enacted by the
Arkansas General Assembly. The Board of Trustees consists of two members of City Management and
five members elected by the plan members. The elected members are required to be participants
within the plan. Benefit provisions are established by State of Arkansas Act #14, as amended. Fund
assets are administered by the Board of Trustees.
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Benefits
The FRPF provides retirement benefits for firefighters who have completed 20 years of service
regardless of age. The benefit is equal to 70% of the member’s final salary, but not less than $4,200.
If service exceeds 20 years, the annual benefit is increased by $240 for each year over 20, not to
exceed $1,200 and if service exceeds 25 years, the member will receive an additional 1.25% for each
year over 25 years, however, the total benefit cannot exceed 100% of the member’s final salary.
Disability benefits are available to firefighters who become permanently disabled, unless the disability
is the direct result of gainful employment performed outside of the fire department. The benefit for
non-duty disability is the same as noted above, however, cannot be less than $4,200 per year. For
duty-related disability, the benefit cannot be less than 65% of the member’s final salary. The FRPF
also provides benefits for surviving spouses and dependent children in which a widow would receive
the same amount the member would receive or would be eligible to receive. Dependent children
would receive $1,500 per year until age 19. No participants’ benefits vest until normal retirement age.
At normal retirement, participants may elect to continue working and enter the Deferred Retirement
Option Plan (DROP) for up to 5 years. All firefighters hired after January 1, 1983, participate in the
Arkansas Local Police and Fire Retirement System created by Act 364 of 1981 described later in this
footnote. Therefore, the Firemen’s Fund is effectively closed to new members. The FRPF does not
issue a separate, publicly available financial report.
Method Used to Value Investments
Investments are stated at fair value in the accompanying statement of fiduciary net position. The fair
value of marketable investments, including U.S. government securities and corporate bonds and
stocks, is determined by the latest bid price or by the closing exchange price at the statement of
fiduciary net position date.
Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date basis. Interest income is recorded on
the accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date.
Net increase or decrease in fair value of investments reflected in the accompanying statement of
changes in fiduciary net position represent gains or losses realized during the year plus or minus the
change in the net unrealized gains or losses on investments. Net unrealized gains or losses on
investments represent the change in the difference between the cost and market value of the
investments at the beginning versus the end of the year.
Contributions
Contributions to the FRPF are set forth in Arkansas statute. The City’s contribution to the FRPF consists
of one half of a mill of real and personal property tax collections and an insurance premium tax
turnback collected by the State Insurance Commissioner. Administrative costs are financed by the
FRPF. Total 2021 contributions to the FRPF were $158,033. The City’s share of contributions was
$132,826 and consisted entirely of property taxes. On behalf payments (state insurance premium
taxes) are recognized as revenues and expenditures in the appropriate fund.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the
time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and
plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
The State of Arkansas Fire and Police Pension Review Board is responsible for the coordination of the
actuarial valuations performed on the FPRF. Actuarial valuations are performed annually and the last
evaluation was as of December 31, 2021. The actuarial assumptions used in evaluating the fund were
based on an experience study conducted from 2006 to 2012 and are as follows:
Salary increases
Inflation
Mortality table
Investment rate of return

4.20% to 8.00%
2.50%
1983 Group Annuity Table
5.00%, net of pension plan investment
Expense, including inflation

Membership Information
Membership of the FPRF consisted of the following at December 31, 2021:
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits
Active plan members
Total

14
14

Components of the Net Pension Liability

Measurement Date
December 31, 2021

Total Pension
Liability
$
4,292,332

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position
$
4,107,798

Net Pension
Liability
$
184,534

Plan Net
Position as a %
of Total Pension
Liability
95.70%

Long-term Expected Return on Plan Assets
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return. The rates were
built on a target allocation for all pension funds, and therefore the target for an individual fund may
vary within the guidelines of Arkansas law and regulation.
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The long-term expected rates of return are shown in the table below:

Target
Allocation
80%
10%
0%
10%
100%

Asset Class
Domestic fixed income
Domestic equity
Foreign equity
Cash and equivalents
Total

Long-term
Expected Real
Rate of Return
2.25%
4.75%
6.25%
0.25%

Expected inflation

2.50%

Discount Rate
In the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation, a single discount rate of 5.0% was used to measure the
total pension liability. This single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension
plan investments of 5.0%. The projection of cash flows, based on the assumptions made, found that
the pension plan’s net position was available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following table presents the City’s net pension liability for the FRPF using the current rate as
compared to what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Net Pension Liability

1% Decrease
4.00%
$
617,397

Current Rate
5.00%
184,534
$

1% Increase
6.00%
$
(183,956)

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows, and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to Pensions
For the year ended December 31, 2021, the City recognized pension expense from the FRPF Plan of
$351,877. At December 31, 2021, the City reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related
to pensions from the following source:

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments
Total
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Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

$
$

$
$

50,759
50,759

(491,093)
(491,093)
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:
Year
Ending
December 31,
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter

Net Deferred
Outflow/(Inflow)
of Resources
$
(132,898)
(183,657)
(93,567)
(30,212)
-

Total

$

(440,334)

Money-weighted Rate of Return
The annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan investments is calculated as the internal
rate of return on pension plan investments net of pension plan investment expense and adjusted for
the changing amounts actually invested. The money-weighted rate of return for 2021 was 8.91%.
Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Balances at December 31, 2020

$

Changes for the Year
a. Service cost
b. Interest on TPL
c. Differences between expected and
actual experience
d. Employee contributions
e. Employer contributions
f. Net investment income
g. Benefits and refunds
h. Administrative expenses
i. Benefit changes
j. Assumption changes
k. Other/reconciliation

Total
Pension
Liability
4,225,248

Plan
Fiduciary
Net Position
$
3,958,053

203,135

-

$

203,135

76,038
(325,108)

132,718
344,097
(325,108)

76,038
(132,718)
(344,097)
-

113,019
-

(1,962)
-

1,962
113,019
-

67,084

149,745

(82,661)

Net Changes
Balances at December 31, 2021

$

Net
Pension
Liability
267,195

4,292,332
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Local Police and Fire Retirement System (LOPFI)
Plan Description
The Arkansas Local Police and Fire Retirement System (LOPFI) is a statewide cost-sharing multipleemployer defined benefit pension plans administered by the LOPFI Board of Trustees. LOPFI provides
retirement, disability and survivor benefits to police and fire employees of political subdivisions of the
State of Arkansas. LOPFI was created by Act 364 of the 1981 General Assembly. Employees hired after
January 1, 1983, whose political subdivision had a retirement system in effect at July 1, 1981 are
eligible to participate in the plan. LOPFI issues a publicly available report which may be obtained by
writing to LOPFI, P.O. Drawer 34164, Little Rock, Arkansas, 72203, or by calling 501.682.1745.
Benefits Provided
LOPFI provides for a retirement benefit paid to its’ Members on a monthly basis. The monthly benefit
is based on a formula provided by law for the Member’s lifetime. The Member has several options in
calculating the benefit, which is normally the result of these factors: age at retirement, retirement
multiplier, amount of credit services (years and months), and final average pay (FAP). Each option
available to the Member provides for a different calculation based on these factors.
Contributions
Contributions to LOPFI are made by both the members and employers. Member contribution rates
are established by the LOPFI Board of Trustees. The employer contributions are actuarially
determined on an annual basis. The current employee contribution rate is 2.5% of covered payroll for
police officers and 8.5% of covered payroll for firefighters. The City contributed 23.50% of covered
employee’s salaries to the Plan for police officers and 23.50% of covered employee’s salaries to the
Plan for firefighters for the year ended December 31, 2021. Contributions made to the Plan by
employees and the City for the year ended December 31, 2021 amounted to $280,203 and $1,128,861,
respectively.
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pension
At December 31, 2021, the City reported a liability of $8,671,434 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2020, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of that date. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the ratio of the City’s
actual contributions to the Plan during the measurement period to the total employer contributions
to the plan of the group for the measurement period. At December 31, 2020, the City’s proportion
was 1.2613%, which was a increase of .0147% from the December 31, 2019 proportion of 1.2466%.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021, the City recognized pension expense related to the LOPFI plan
of $1,600,838. At December 31, 2021, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to the pension from the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual
experience
Changes in assumptions or other inputs
Difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pensio plan investments
Changes in proportion
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date
Total

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
$

$

979,022
241,721

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
$

-

207,750

2,225,664
427,395

1,128,861

-

2,557,354

$

2,653,059

The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $1,128,861 will be recognized as a reduction
of the net pension liability for the year ended December 31, 2021. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the Plan will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending
December 31,
2021
2022
2023
2024
Thereafter
Total

$

(41,474)
(164,378)
(692,455)
(326,259)
-

$

(1,224,566)

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
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Price inflation
Wage inflation
Investment rate of return

2.50%
3.25%
7.00%, net of pension plan investment
expense, including inflation
Actuarial cost method
Entry age normal
Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Combined Healthy Mortality Table Projected to 2018, set
forward two year for men.
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2016. As a result of the
2011 actuarial experience study, the expectation of life after disability was adjusted in the December
31, 2017 actuarial evaluation to more closely reflect actual experience.
Long-term Expected Return on Plan Assets
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return. The rates were
built on a target allocation for all pension funds and therefore, the target for an individual fund may
vary within the guidelines of Arkansas law and regulation. The long-term expected rates of return are
shown in the table below:

Long-term Expected Real Rate of Return
Target
Allocation
25%
42%
18%
15%
100%

Asset Class
Fixed income
Domestic equity
Foreign equity
Alternative investments
Total

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return
0.90%
5.10%
7.10%
7.40%

Discount Rate
In the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation, a single discount rate of 7.00% was used to measure
the total pension liability based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.00%.
The projection of cash flows, based on the assumptions made, found that the pension plan’s net
position was available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate
The following table presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using
the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.00%) or 1percentage-point higher (8.00%) than the current rate.
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Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability
Current
Single Rate
1% decrease
Assumption
6.00%
7.00%
City's proportionate share of
the net pension liability
$ 14,804,223 $ 8,671,434

1% increase
8.00%
$

3,725,069

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued LOPFI financial report which can be obtained from the LOPFI website, lopfi-prb.com.
Deferred Compensation Plan
The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. International City Management Association Retirement Corporation
(ICMARC) administers the Plan. All assets and income of the trust are for the exclusive benefit of
eligible employees and their beneficiaries. The City does not have a fiduciary responsibility or
administrative duties relating to the deferred compensation plan other than remitting employee and
City matching contributions to the trustees. Accordingly, the City has not presented the assets and
liabilities from the plan in these basic financial statements. Deferred compensation investments are
held by outside trustees. Plan investments are chosen by the individual participant (employee) and
include mutual funds whose focus is on stocks, bonds, treasury securities, money market-type
investments or a combination of these.
Employees with 12 months of employment are required to contribute 3% of pay and the City
contributes a minimum of 6% of pay, excluding certain exempt employees for whom the City makes
a contribution based on the employees’ gross earnings, as defined by the agreement based on their
respective position with the City. During 2021, the City’s contributions totaled $600,215.
NOTE 11: OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)
Plan Description
The City sponsors and administers an informal single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan.
Retirees who are vested in their retirement plan and are eligible to receive a retirement benefit (and
actually apply for and receive the retirement benefit) are entitled to purchase continued health
benefits coverage for him or herself and their dependents until Medicare eligibility. The City’s Board
of Directors has the authority to establish and amend the requirements of this plan. The City does not
issue stand-alone financial statements of the healthcare plan but all required information is presented
in this report.
56
Net OPEB liability
$
2,672,993
Deferred outflows of resources
245,887
Deferred inflows of resources
29,562
OPEB expense
110,807
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Funding Policy
The contribution requirements of plan members are established by City ordinance and may be
amended as needed. Retiree coverage is the same as the coverage provided to active City employees.
Retirees pay premiums ranging from $108.20 per month to $499.83 per month depending on the
coverage elected. (This, of course, is besides the two that had City paid employee only medical
coverage.) The City’s policy maintains that retirees who retire after age 62 must pay 100% of the extra
cost of premiums for dependent coverage and the City pays 100% of the contribution for the retiree.
Employees who leave employment due to disability receive the same benefit for 2 years. Retirees with
20 years of service retiring before age 62 pay 60% of the entire premium cost. All retirees become
ineligible for City insurance once they become eligible for Medicare. The cost of retiree healthcare
benefits is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis and is recorded as an expense in the applicable fund as
liabilities are incurred.
Active employees
Inactive not yet receiving benefits
Inactive or beneficiaries receiving benefits

214
6
220

Total OPEB Liability
The total OPEB liability was determined based on an alternative measurement method valuation
performed as of December 31, 2021 which is also the measurement date.
Actuarial Assumptions
The total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2021 valuation was determined using the following
assumptions:
•
•
•
•

Actuarial Cost Method – Entry Age Normal Cost Method
Discount Rate – 2.12% based on the Bond Buyer GO Bond 20 Index
Retirement Age – 62 with 20 years of service,
Medical Trend Rates

Year
2020
2025
2030
2035
2040
2045+

Rate
5.99%
5.86%
5.99%
5.87%
5.33%
5.15%
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Changes in Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB
Liability
$
2,600,747

Balances at Beginning of Year
Changes for the Year:
Service cost
Interest expense
Benefits paid
Net Changes

107,675
56,446
(91,875)
72,246

Balances End of Year

$

2,672,993

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB
For the year ended December 31, 2021, the City recognized OPEB expense of $202,682. At December
31, 2021, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to OPEB from the following sources:

Changes of assumptions
City contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Total

$
$

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

91,875
91,875

$
$

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

-

Sensitivity of the City’s total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate
The following presents the City’s net OPEB liability, as well as what the City’s net OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (1.12% percent) or 1percentage-point higher (3.12% percent) that the current discount rate:
Current
1% Decrease
Discount Rate
1% Increase
(1.12%)
(2.12%)
(3.12%)
Employers' total OPEB liability
$ 2,332,080 $
2,672,993 $ 3,088,405
Sensitivity of the City’s OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates
The following presents the City’s net OPEB liability, as well as what the City’s net OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (3.50%) or
1-percentage-point higher (5.50%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:
Current
1% Decrease
Discount Rate
1% Increase
(3.50%)
(4.50%)
(5.50%)
Employers' total OPEB liability
$ 2,395,950 $
2,672,993 $ 2,985,640
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NOTE 12: CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
The City purchases electricity from Grand River Dam Authority under a 35-year agreement executed
during 2007. The agreement also has a 10-year extension option. This is the City’s only contracted
source of electric power. The City’s service area is limited to the Northwest Arkansas geographic area
within the City limits and the immediate surrounding area of the City.
NOTE 13: RISK MANAGEMENT
The City has various insurance policies to cover its potential liability risk areas (e.g., automobile,
personal property, contents and outside structures and worker’s compensation). Coverage is provided
both commercially and through the Arkansas Municipal League (the “AML”), which is an association
of local governments. The AML provides the City with automobile and legal defense coverage and
sets annual fixed premiums based on such factors as claims experience, employee class multipliers and
population. For risks covered by the AML, the City pays no deductible; however, the City pays a $3,000
fee to the AML for each legal matter it handles. There have been no significant reductions in coverage
from 2020 to 2021; nor have settlement amounts exceeded insurance coverage for the current year
or the three prior years.
NOTE 14: CONTINGENCIES
The City, its agencies and its employees are defendants in various legal proceedings, many of which
occur normally in governmental operations. Such litigation includes, but is not limited to, claims
assessed against the City for property damage and personal injury and other alleged torts and alleged
violations of state and federal laws. Based on the current status of all of these legal proceedings, it is
the opinion of the city attorney and management that the ultimate outcome will not have a material
adverse impact on the City’s financial position.
NOTE 15: FUND BALANCES
The City classified governmental fund balances as follows:

Fund balances
Nonspendable
Prepaid expenses
Inventories
Spendable
Restricted
Capital outlay and debt service

General
Fund

$

Street
Fund

161,803
112,212

$

15,399
-

Debt Service
Funds

$

-

Total

$

177,202
112,212

2,659,715

6,134,323

4,879

8,798,917

Assigned
Capital outlay

1,933

4,445

-

6,378

Unassigned
General fund

19,856,752

286,111

27,832

20,170,695

$ 22,792,415

$ 6,440,278

32,711

$ 29,265,404

Total fund balances
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Original
Budget

Revenues
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Government grants
Private grants and contributions
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Investment income
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

$

1,383,290
7,353,280
268,700
993,131
4,244,259
310,897
39,500
367,325
40,200
101,070
15,101,652

Final
Budget
$

1,383,290
7,353,280
268,700
993,131
4,244,259
310,897
68,043
383,635
40,200
101,070
15,146,505

Actual
$

1,333,275
8,879,112
427,169
1,005,780
4,499,644
290,394
216,662
401,937
(120,431)
145,876
121,420
17,200,838

Variance with
Final Budget
$

(50,015)
1,525,832
158,469
12,649
255,385
(20,503)
148,619
18,302
(120,431)
105,676
20,350
2,054,333

Expenditures
General government
Administration
Finance
Construction
Maintenance
Total General Government
Public safety and judiciary
Police
Fire
Municipal court
Total Public Safety and Judiciary
Cultural, parks and recreation
Library
Parks
Total Cultural, Parks and Recreation
Community development
Building inspections
Total Community Development

4,682,413
1,737,566
586,897
381,316
7,388,192

4,688,413
1,737,566
586,897
381,326
7,394,202

1,364,067
1,638,416
522,789
347,176
3,872,448

(3,324,346)
(99,150)
(64,108)
(34,150)
(3,521,754)

4,682,413
5,226,267
283,861
10,192,541

4,688,413
5,226,267
283,861
10,198,541

4,733,319
5,296,430
255,696
10,285,445

44,906
70,163
(28,165)
86,904

565,921
1,624,941
2,190,862

571,843
1,624,941
2,196,784

556,065
1,412,674
1,968,739

(15,778)
(212,267)
(228,045)

1,650,270
1,650,270

1,885,270
1,885,270

1,749,849
1,749,849

(135,421)
(135,421)

Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

1,137,993
22,559,858

1,216,561
22,891,358

1,380,197
19,256,678

163,636
(3,634,680)

(7,458,206)

(7,744,853)

(2,055,840)

5,689,013

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

8,579,325
(76,726)
8,502,599

8,579,325
(76,726)
8,502,599

9,289,785
(433,052)
8,856,733

710,460
(356,326)
354,134

Net Change in Fund Balance

1,044,393

757,746

6,800,893

6,043,147

15,991,522

15,991,522

15,991,522

-

$ 17,035,915

$ 16,749,268

$ 22,792,415

Excess Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year
Fund Balance, End of Year
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$

6,043,147

City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Street Fund
Year ended December 31, 2021

Original
Budget

Revenues
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Government grants
Investment income
Miscellaneous

$

Total Revenues

450,883
1,723,300
50,300
1,123,685
125,000
700
2,000

Final
Budget
$

450,883
1,723,300
50,300
1,123,685
530,000
700
2,000

Actual
$

454,320
2,147,585
220,094
1,284,784
405,000
1,388
2,355

Variance with
Final Budget
$

3,437
424,285
169,794
161,099
(125,000)
688
355

3,475,868

3,880,868

4,515,526

634,658

1,685,479
2,804,080

1,685,479
3,597,162

1,582,100
1,739,793

(103,379)
(1,857,369)

4,489,559

5,282,641

3,321,893

(1,960,748)

Excess Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

(1,013,691)

(1,401,773)

1,193,633

2,595,406

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in

262,500

262,500

262,500

-

262,500

262,500

262,500

-

(751,191)

(1,139,273)

1,456,133

2,595,406

4,984,145

4,984,145

4,984,145

-

$ 4,232,954

$ 3,844,872

$ 6,440,278

Expenditures
Current:
Transportation
Streets
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

Total Other Financing Sources
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year
Fund Balance, End of Year
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$

2,595,406

City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Schedule of Changes in the City’s Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios – FRPF
Year ended December 31, 2021
Fiscal year ended December 31,
Total Pension Liability
Interest
Difference between actual & expected experience
Benefit changes
Benefit payments

2021
$

Net Change in Total Pension Liability

2020

203,135
76,038
113,019
(325,108)

$

2019

185,817
(238,472)
728,930
(334,722)

$

2018

191,320
28,952
(325,936)

$

2017

186,211
(82,332)
331,468
(340,436)

$

2016

191,591
36,445
(330,817)

$

2015

196,914
27,641
(331,227)

$

2014

209,522
(129,297)
(333,537)

$

212,376
88,933
(383,251)

67,084

341,553

(105,664)

94,911

(102,781)

(106,672)

(253,312)

(81,942)

Total Pension Liability - Beginning

4,225,248

3,883,695

3,989,359

3,894,448

3,997,229

4,103,901

4,357,213

4,439,155

Total Pension Liability - Ending (a)

$ 4,292,332

$ 4,225,248

$ 3,883,695

$ 3,989,359

$ 3,894,448

$ 3,997,229

$ 4,103,901

$ 4,357,213

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer
State insurance turnback - supplements
Net investment income
Benefit payments
Supplements
Administrative expense
Other/reconciliation
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position

132,718
24,807
344,097
(325,108)
(24,807)
(1,962)
-

125,117
26,544
495,206
(334,722)
(26,544)
(5,083)
1,751

121,622
25,200
608,938
(325,936)
(25,200)
(2,735)
600

119,801
22,792
(80,530)
(340,436)
(22,792)
(5,401)
1,554

115,002
27,412
492,563
(330,817)
(27,412)
(2,776)
-

108,897
28,836
172,776
(331,227)
(28,836)
(2,800)
324

107,204
25,200
10,113
(333,537)
(25,200)
(2,912)
-

114,685
22,230
204,312
(383,251)
(22,230)
(2,359)
-

149,745

282,269

402,489

(305,012)

273,972

(52,030)

(219,132)

(66,613)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning

3,958,053

3,675,784

3,273,295

3,578,307

3,304,335

3,356,365

3,575,497

3,642,110

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)

$ 4,107,798

$ 3,958,053

$ 3,675,784

$ 3,273,295

$ 3,578,307

$ 3,304,335

$ 3,356,365

$ 3,575,497

City's Net Pension Liability (a) - (b)

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of Total Pension Liability
Covered Payroll
City's Net Pension Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll

184,534

95.70%
$

-

N/A

267,195

93.68%
$

-

N/A

207,911

94.65%
$

-

716,064

82.05%
$

N/A
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-

N/A

316,141

91.88%
$

-

N/A

692,894

82.67%
$

-

N/A

747,536

81.78%
$

-

N/A

781,716

82.06%
$

-

N/A

City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Schedule of Contributions – FRPF
Year ended December 31, 2021

Year ended
December 31,
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

Actuarially
Determined
Contribution
(ADC)
$
342,732
231,615
179,714
176,258
168,551
156,231
71,282
161,455
46,879
60,246

Actual
Contribution
$
137,154
127,028
114,685
107,204
108,897
115,002
119,801
121,622
125,117
132,826

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)
$
205,578
104,587
65,029
69,054
59,654
41,229
(48,519)
39,833
(78,238)
(72,580)

$

Covered
Payroll

-

Actual
Contribution as
a % of Covered
Payroll
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Key Assumptions for ADC:
Cost Method
Amortized Method
Remaining Amortization
Asset Valuation
Investment Rate of Return
Mortality

Entry Age Normal
Level Dollar, Open
5 Years
Market Value of Assets
5.00%
1983 Group Annuity Mortality

Note: Information in this schedule has been determined as of the City's most recent year-end. This
schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.
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City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Schedule of Investment Returns – FRPF
Year ended December 31, 2021

Year ended
December 31,
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

Annual
Return
12.73%
14.55%
5.83%
0.29%
5.33%
15.42%
-2.32%
19.21%
13.87%
8.91%

Note: This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.
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City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability – LOPFI
Year ended December 31, 2021

Year ended December 31,
City's proportion of the net pension
liability

2021
1.26%

2020
1.25%

2019

2018

1.34%

1.38%

2017
1.26%

2016
1.27%

2015
1.19%

City's proportionate share of the
net pension liability

$ 8,671,434

$ 9,633,208

$ 12,129,315

$ 9,776,206

$ 7,194,342

$ 6,685,605

$ 4,325,604

City's covered payroll

$ 4,772,205

$ 4,581,565

$ 4,455,409

$ 5,061,610

$ 4,304,318

$ 3,795,488

$ 3,718,254

City's proportionate share of the
net pension liability as a
percentage of its covered payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension
liability

181.71%

210.26%

272.24%

193.14%

167.14%

176.15%

116.33%

77.79%

73.21%

66.09%

71.48%

72.87%

72.92%

79.14%

Note: Information in this schedule has been determined as of the measurement date (December 31 of the year prior to the most recent fiscal
year-end) of the City's net pension liability. This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However,
until a full year 10-year trend is compiled under the provisions of GASB 68, the City will only present available information.
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City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Schedule of City Contributions – LOPFI
Year ended December 31, 2021
Year ended December 31,

2020

2019

2018

2017

Statutorily required contribution

$ 1,115,584

$ 1,040,334

$ 1,040,563

$ 1,049,727

$

Contributions in relation to the
statutorily required contribution

$ (1,115,584)

$ (1,040,334)

$ (1,040,563)

$ (1,049,727)

$ (984,507)

$ (830,071)

$ (790,948)

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

City's covered payroll

$ 4,772,205

$ 4,581,565

$ 4,455,409

$ 5,061,610

$ 4,304,318

$ 3,795,488

$ 3,718,254

23.38%

22.71%

23.36%

20.74%

22.87%

21.87%

21.27%

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll

-

-

-

2016

-

2015

984,507

-

$

2014

830,071

-

$

790,948

-

Note: Information in this schedule has been determined as of the measurement date (December 31 of the year prior to the most recent fiscal
year-end) of the City's net pension liability. This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However,
until a full year 10-year trend is compiled under the provisions of GASB 68, the City will only present available information.
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City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Year ended December 31, 2021

Year ended December 31,
Total OPEB Liability
Service cost
Interest
Difference between actual and expected experience
Changes in assumptions (discount rate)
Expected net benefit payments
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability

2021
$

107,675
56,446
(91,875)

2020
$

62,548
92,683
(40,100)
333,547
(91,875)

2019
$

62,548
88,280
(120,099)

2018
$

60,085
89,533
(120,099)

72,246

356,803

30,729

29,519

2,600,747

2,243,944

2,213,215

2,183,696

Total OPEB Liability - Ending

$ 2,672,993

$ 2,600,747

$ 2,243,944

$ 2,213,215

Covered Payroll

$ 4,772,205

$ 4,581,565

$ 4,455,409

$ 5,061,610

56.01%

56.77%

50.36%

43.73%

Total OPEB Liability - Begnning

City's Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll

Note: This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full year 10-year trend is compiled
under the provisions of GASB 74, the City will only present available information.
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Additional Supplementary Information

City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Combining Schedules of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Year ended December 31, 2021
Major Enterprise Fund Departments
Electric

Water

Wastewater

Sanitation

Totals

$ 26,704,924
365,479
137,062
27,207,465

$ 5,011,124
9,429
5,020,553

$ 4,399,316
1,342
4,400,658

$ 3,645,319
5,173
3,650,492

$ 39,760,683
365,479
153,006
40,279,168

19,359,283
2,313,331
115,168
1,198,210
281,838
26,047
1,173,397
24,467,274

891,476
6,090
760,310
29,099
188,821
1,281,842
3,157,638

662,237
1,423
993,304
27,384
346,952
1,445,598
3,476,898

886,952
4,490
1,787,045
54,151
16,054
451,225
3,199,917

19,359,283
4,753,996
127,171
4,738,869
392,472
577,874
4,352,062
34,301,727

Operating Income

2,740,191

1,862,915

923,760

450,575

5,977,441

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Sales tax revenue
Government grants
Interest income
Interest expense
Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

1,143,597
50,490
41,083
1,235,170

3,355,602
20,996
(302,841)
3,073,757

1,856
(45,911)
(44,055)

1,598
(4,332)
(2,734)

4,499,199
50,490
65,533
(353,084)
4,262,138

Income Before Capital Contributions and
Transfers

3,975,361

4,936,672

879,705

447,841

10,239,579

Transfers Out

(5,432,909)

(1,727,345)

(1,318,434)

(782,326)

(9,261,014)

Change in Net Position

(1,457,548)

3,209,327

(438,729)

(334,485)

978,565

Operating Revenues
Charges for services
Penalties
Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses
Cost of goods sold
Cost of power
Personal services
Contracted services
Maintenance and operating expenses
Other services and charges
Utilities
Depreciation and amortization
Total Operating Expenses

Net Position, Beginning of Year

94,204,217

Net Position, End of Year

$ 95,182,782
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and Board of Directors
City of Siloam Springs
Siloam Springs, Arkansas
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas (the “City”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City’s basic financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon October 6, 2022.
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Honorable Mayor and Board of Directors
City of Siloam Springs
Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of This Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fort Smith, Arkansas
October 6, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE
Honorable Mayor and Board of Directors
City of Siloam Springs
Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
We have audited the compliance of the City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas (the “City”) with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the City’s major federal programs for the year December 31,
2021. The City’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended December 31, 2021.
Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.
We are required to be independent of the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above.
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the City’s
federal programs.
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Honorable Mayor and Board of Directors
City of Siloam Springs
Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is
higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about
the City’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we:
•
•

•

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
a test basis, evidence regarding the City’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.
Obtain an understanding of the City’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
Report on Internal Control over Compliance
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
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Honorable Mayor and Board of Directors
City of Siloam Springs
Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance may exist that were not identified.
Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fort Smith, Arkansas
October 6, 2022
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City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year ended December 31, 2021
Federal
CFDA
Number

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Direct Program
Cooperative Forestry Assistance
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture
U.S. Department of Justice
Pass through Arkansas Department of Finance & Administration
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program
Total U.S. Department of Justice

10.664

Total Federal
Revenues

Total Federal
Expenditures

$

$

1,000
1,000

1,000
1,000

16.738

2,550
2,550

2,550
2,550

20.106

349,964

349,964

Pass through Arkansas Department of Aeronautics
Airport Improvement Program

20.106

-

59,441

Pass through Arkansas Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction

20.205

176,963

250,000

20.600
20.616

25,341
7,920
560,188

27,572
10,938
697,915

45.310
45.312

19,234
10,427
29,661

13,312
10,427
23,739

66.468

20,474,776
20,474,776

22,895,407
22,895,407

93.366
93.498

50,490
34,162
84,652

50,490
34,162
84,652

$ 21,152,827

$ 23,705,263

U.S. Department of Transportation
Direct Program
Airport Improvement Program

Pass through Arkansas State Police
State and Community Highway Safety
National Priority Safety Programs
Total U.S. Department of Transportation
Institute of Museum and Library Services
Pass through Arkansas State Library
American Rescue Plan Act
Cares Act Grants for Museums and Libraries
Total Institute of Museum and Library Services
Environmental Protection Agency
Pass through Arkansas Department of Agriculture
Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds
Total Environmental Protection Agency
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Pass through Arkansas Department of Health
State Actions to Improve Oral Health Outcomes
Provider Relief Fund and American Rescue Plan Rural Distribution
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Total Federal Awards

See Independent Auditor’s Report.
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City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year ended December 31, 2021
Scope of Audit Pursuant to the Uniform Guidance
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal grant
activity of the City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas (the “City”) for the year ended December 31, 2021. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of the City, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net
position, or cash flows of the City.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Grant Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in OMB Circular A-87, Cost
Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal Governments, or the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.
Relationship to Federal Financial Reports
Grant expenditures reports as of December 31, 2021, which have been submitted to grantor agencies will,
in some cases, differ slightly from amounts disclosed herein. The reports prepared for grantor agencies
are typically prepared at a later date and often reflect refined estimates of the year-end accruals. The
reports will agree at termination of the grant as the discrepancies noted are timing differences.
10% De Minimis Indirect Cost Rate
The City has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
Subrecipients
No awards were provided to subrecipients.
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City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year ended December 31, 2021
I. SUMMARY OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S RESULTS
1. The opinion expressed in the independent auditor’s report on accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America:
☒ Unmodified

☐ Qualified

☐ Adverse

☐ Disclaimer

2. The independent auditor’s report on internal control over financial reporting disclosed:
☐ Yes ☒ None reported
☐ Yes ☒ No

Significant deficiency(ies)?
Material weakness(es)?

3. Noncompliance considered material to the financial statements was disclosed by the audit?
☐ Yes ☒ No
4. The independent auditor’s report on internal control over compliance with requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on each major federal awards program disclosed:
☐ Yes ☒ None reported
☐ Yes ☒ No

Significant deficiency(ies)?
Material weakness(es)?

5. The opinion expressed in the independent auditor’s report on internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal awards program
were:
☒ Unmodified

☐ Qualified

☐ Adverse

☐ Disclaimer

6. The audit disclosed findings required to be reported by the Uniform Guidance?
☐ Yes ☒ No
7. The City’s major program was:

Cluster / Program

CFDA Number

Capitalization Grant for Drinking Water

66.468

8. The threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as those terms are defined in
the Uniform Guidance was $750,000.
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City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year ended December 31, 2021
9. The City qualified as a low-risk auditee as that term is defined in the Uniform Guidance?
☒ Yes ☐ No
II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT AS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
There were no audit findings for the year ended December 31, 2021.
III. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS
There were no audit findings for the year ended December 31, 2021.
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City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings
Year ended December 31, 2021
There were no prior year audit findings for the year ended December 31, 2020.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
COMPLIANCE WITH ARKANSAS STATE REQUIREMENTS
Honorable Mayor and Board of Directors
City of Siloam Springs
Siloam Springs, Arkansas
We have examined management’s assertions that the City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas (the “City”) complied
with the requirements of Arkansas Act 15 of 1985 and the following Arkansas statutes during the year ended
December 31, 2021.
Municipal Accounting Law, §14-59-101 et seq.;
City Courts and City Courts, §16-10-201 et seq.;
Improvement Contracts, §§22-9-202 – 22-9-204;
Budgets, Purchases, and Payments of Claims, Etc., §14-58-201 et seq. and
14-58-301 et seq.;
• Investment of Public Funds, §19-1-501 et seq.;
• Deposit of Public Funds, §§19-8-101 – 19-8-107.
•
•
•
•

Management is responsible for the City’s compliance with these requirements. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the City’s compliance based upon our examination.
Our examination was made in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with specified
requirements.
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the
year ended December 31, 2021.
These conditions were considered in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit tests applied in our
audit of the 2021 financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated October 6, 2022 on
those financial statements.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors, the Mayor,
Arkansas Division of Legislative Audit, and applicable bonding agencies and funding sources and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Fort Smith, Arkansas
October 6, 2022
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MINUTES OF THE WORKSHOP OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
CITY OF SILOAM SPRINGS, BENTON COUNTY, ARKANSAS
HELD OCTOBER 4, 2022
The Board of Directors held a Workshop at 5:30 pm on October 4, 2022, on the 2023 Budget, at
the Siloam Springs Administration Building.
The workshop was called to order by Mayor Nation. She turned the floor over to Christina
Petriches, Finance Director. Petriches had previously provided copies of the proposed budget to
all directors. She announced future workshop dates; the process, including meeting objectives;
gave a 2022 budget recap; pointed out various investments made in infrastructure to the 2022
budget, along with the projects’ costs; and gave a 30,000-foot overview of the 2023 budget.
Following questions and comments from the Board, the workshop was adjourned at
approximately 6:30 pm.
APPROVED:
ATTEST:

___________________________________
Judy Nation, Mayor

Renea Ellis, City Clerk, CAMC/CMC
{seal}

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
CITY OF SILOAM SPRINGS, BENTON COUNTY, ARKANSAS,
HELD OCTOBER 4, 2022
The City of Siloam Springs, Arkansas, met in regular session at the City of Siloam Springs
Administration Building on October 4, 2022.
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Judy Nation at 6:30 pm.
Roll Call: Smiley, Rissler, Sappington, Burns, Allen, Carroll; Hunt – Present.
City Representatives Present: Phillip Patterson, City Administrator; Renea Ellis, City Clerk; Chief
Jeremey Criner, Fire Department; Chief Allan Gilbert, Police Department; Don Clark, Community
Development Director; Justin Bland, City Engineer; and Jay Williams, City Attorney.
Opening prayer. Director Hunt led the opening prayer.
The mayor led the Pledge of Allegiance.
The mayor asked if there were any comments from the audience regarding an item not on the City’s
agenda. No one came forward.
Item A: Lieutenant Brett Duncan / Fire Department / Retirement. Chief Criner introduced Duncan
and presented him with a Certificate of Appreciation. Mayor Nation read a letter she received from a
citizen praising the fire department. Duncan stated he was proud of the 19-year career he had with
the department; that he had worked under 3 chiefs; that he was a member of the honor guard and
would continue to be involved with that; and thanked the city, the department and his parents for
their support.
Item B: Curtis Smith, Siloam Springs Country Club. Curtis Smith, 218 S. Wright, President of the
Siloam Springs Country Club, gave a background of how he became involved with golf; a history of
the course and the trouble it is facing; and a proposal for Bryan Minnis with Maxim Golf Solutions to
turn the course around with the help from the city, Simmons, and public and private donors.
Comments from several Board members in favor of the proposal were received.
Consent Agenda:
C. Workshop Minutes / September 20, 2022
D. Regular Meeting Minutes / September 20, 2022
E. 2022 Surplus Declaration
F. Dedication of Utility Easements and Right-of-Way / 1700 Block of Hwy. 412 East
G. Dedication of Utility Easements / 900 Block of West Benton Street
H. Dedication of Utility Easements and Right-of-Way / 1800 Block of East Main Street
I. Dedication of Utility Easements / 220 and 302 South College Street
J. Dedication of Utility Easements / 21733 Carousal Drive
K. Dedication of Utility Easements / 3095 North Mt. Olive Street
L. Dedication of an Emergency Turn-Around Easement / 400 Block of West Cattleman Lane
M. Resolution 55-22 / Revised Final Plat Development Permit / Heritage Ranch Addition, Phase 3 /
2200 Block of North Carl Street
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N. Resolution 56-22 / Final Plat Development Permit / Fox Tail Addition, Phase 2 / 2400 to 2600
Block of East Kenwood Street
O. Grant Acceptance / Fire Department / Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response Grant
/ Department of Homeland Security / $1,171,666.32.
Director Rissler requested Item E be removed from consent.
Director Burns requested Item O be removed from consent.
A motion was made by Smiley and seconded by Carroll to approve the remaining items on the
Consent Agenda. Nation asked for a roll call vote. Motion passed unanimously.
Item E. Director Rissler said she was contacted by an online auctioneer who had some questions
about the surplus declaration as to the bidding process, how auctioneers are chosen and how to get on
our list. City Clerk Ellis responded by saying a request for quotes was sent out on January 28, 2022,
and there was only one response. She said she looks online and in the yellow pages to locate those
most local to Siloam Springs, and if someone would like to be added to the list, they can contact her.
Director Allan asked if all the departments review the auction list in case there is an item from one
department that another department would like to have. Administrator Patterson said they all get to
review the list. Motion to approve Item E was made by Smiley and seconded by Rissler. Motion
passed unanimously.
Item O. Director Burns thought it was important to recognize Fire Chief Criner in getting this grant.
They are not easy do; staffing at that Fire House, long before he was there, was always an issue and it
is exciting the staffing levels we are providing to the citizens. A grant of this size should be
recognized. Director Allan asked Chief Criner about the number of staffers mentioned in this grant
process and wanted to congratulate him for applying to the federal government for this non-matching
grant. Criner explained the way the staffing works. Director Sappington also congratulated Chief
Criner. Motion to approve Item O was made by Allen and seconded by Smiley. Motion passed
unanimously.
Item P: Ordinance 22-24 / 1st Reading / Amending Section 102-21 of the City Municipal Code /
Rezoning from I-1 to C-2 / 800 Block of Hwy. 412 West. Don Clark, Community Development
Director stepped to the podium, introducing the city’s new Planner, Maegan Thomas, who then
briefed the item. A motion to place Ordinance 22-24 on its first reading, suspending the rules and
reading title only, was made by Rissler and seconded by Allen. Motion passed unanimously.
An ordinance entitled: An Ordinance Amending Section 102-21 of the Siloam Springs Municipal
Code (City Zoning Map); Rezoning (from I-1 to C-2) Property Located at 650 Highway 412 West;
was read on its first reading.
Item Q: Resolution 57-22 / Significant Development Permit / 1800 Block of East Main Street (East
Cornerstone Plaza. Maegan Thomas briefed the item. Director Hunt had comments/questions
regarding preserving trees and about buffers; Director Burns had comments/questions regarding
previous discussions about E. Main and Country Club and widening that road to Lincoln with a
turning lane, and the need for a crosswalk at Skilern Street to the school, and this needed to be done
before this is operational, for kids’ safety. Sappington also commented on this area and concerns for
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the kids’ safety. Maegan, Don and Patterson were able to respond; accordingly, staff will bring a
dollar amount back to the board regarding the widening portion. At this point in the meeting, City
Clerk Ellis left the meeting for personal reasons. A motion to approve Resolution 57-22 was made by
Carroll and seconded by Rissler. Motion passed unanimously.
Item R: Resolution 58-22 / Significant Development Permit / 4171 Hwy. 412 East (Taco Bell).
Maegan Thomas briefed the item. Smiley asked about being able to turn either way when exiting.
Clark responded that yes, you could turn right or left. Director Allen asked about whether Jiffy Trip
had a problem with their exit. Don mentioned the tight drive access and that was the reason for the
cross-access agreement and explained the exit strategy as it also related to Atwoods. It was also
mentioned that Taco Bell and Jiffy Trip would have a shared entrance. A motion to approve
Resolution 58-22 was made by Smiley and seconded by Hunt. Motion passed unanimously.
Item S: Resolution 59-22 / Fee Waivers / Siloam Springs School District / Administration Building.
Patterson briefed the item. Shane Patrick, Assistant Superintendent stepped to the podium and
addressed the board, thanking them for this opportunity for furthering this partnership between the
city and the school district. Director Burns asked about the timeframe to expand the ball fields with
Patrick stating meetings were starting next week, but overall, probably looking at 2 years to
complete. A motion to approve Resolution 59-22 was made by Burns and seconded by Sappington.
Motion passed unanimously.
Item T: Contract Approval / Fire Department / Outdoor Warning Siren System Replacement / ATI
Systems / $222,748.01. Chief Criner briefed the item. Director Allen addressed concerns about
certain areas that the outdoor sirens do not reach and wondering why a siren is going in at the Kayak
Park, stating sirens not needing to go on city-owned land, but could go on easements. Allen asked
about needing an engineer to review the plan and commented on concerns for people inside not
hearing the sirens. Criner responded that the company designs these warning sirens with their
acoustical engineers; he stated these are outdoor sirens and are not designed to be heard inside, and
city-owned property like City Lake and the Kayak Park were chosen for a siren because of the
outdoor use at these locations by citizens. Allen questioned the company using our current locations.
Criner responded that the company’s acoustical design indicates that the current sites, with the
additional sites, provided the best coverage for the city. Criner added that the city’s electric
department could look at the sites to give opinion on whether the current sites are not the best, as
they would be doing the installation. Director Rissler asked about radius of the sirens. Criner
responded that because of that language being proprietary to the company, the radius was redacted,
but in that redaction, it did give a radius based on 60, 70 and 80 decimals surrounding each site.
Director Sappington agreed, saying if they could have seen the overlay map and the radius where it
goes, and there are different elevations within our city, and that should be taken into consideration as
well. Director Burns commented on when this conversation first came up, they talked about doing
away with the sirens, but outside of this system, he would encourage the Fire Department to continue
to use CodeRed Alert, other technology out there; technology is different now and in the future we
will come back to develop the warning system to the best of our ability. Director Carroll thanked
Criner for his due diligence. Allen questioned if this is self-monitoring. Criner responded they do still
recommend a monthly test like we are currently, the first Monday of the month, and it is also selfmonitoring. A motion to approve the item was made by Allen and seconded by Sappington. Motion
passed unanimously.
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Item U: August Financials. Patterson pointed out that a copy of the financials had been provided and
questions should be directed to him or Christina Petriches.
Item M: Administrator’s Report: Patterson reviewed the Administrator’s report attached hereto. After
discussing the various options for an ANRC grant for County Acres Phase 2 sewer and city sewer in
the Coons Addition (county subdivision), the consensus was for staff to not apply for a ANRC grant
at this time due to number of unknown issues, and for staff to start the process of developing a plan
for financing and constructing Country Acres Phase 2 sewer in the future.
Directors’ reports: Director Smiley congratulated Brett Duncan on his retirement and service to the
City; and informed citizens of Meet the Founders event provided through Siloam Springs Museum
and Sager Creek Arts Center on October 15th, at The Park House. Director Allan wanted to express
appreciation to Lieutenant Brett Duncan and his family, and his shift for being here for his
retirement; thanked Patterson for all his work on the ANRC sewer grant talked about tonight, Dawn
Hill sewer; these no end situations relating to sewer; and congratulated Chief Criner on two great
projects tonight. Director Hunt replied to a question from the last meeting on the sale of the
Oklahoma property stating she did not think it was a good time to sell the property; congratulated
Chief Criner for the grant and outdoor siren projects; thanked all the partners of the City who assisted
with the Hispanic Heritage Festival; thanked Holland Hayden for all the work she did on behalf of
the City; thanked Brett Duncan for all his 19 years of service with the City; thanked the Sanitation
Department for the Fall cleanup; Homegrown Festival is this Saturday and pancake breakfast; and
mentioned a Clean-up Siloam day on October 22 for all of us to pitch in and do some clean up
around Siloam. Director Burns said the Hispanic Heritage Festival was fantastic; thinks the city
should start looking at beer gardens again at these gatherings; Tap Into History is what is happening
at the Museum, it’s historical characters; IRWP is doing a float trip Friday that will start at the Logan
Cave/Conservation Area; the pancake breakfast is at Firehouse 1, 7 am to Noon; Heritage
HomeGrown Festival is going to be fantastic; bikes and blues is kicking up; long history with Brett
Duncan, commented on his servitude and involvement in Honor Guard; it’s good to be in Siloam.
Director Sappington commented on the Fire Department years ago and how fortunate we are to have
the services we have, it’s about progress; we have a lot of volunteers, qualified employees and such
concerned citizens; talked about Brett Duncan and the Siloam family and culture, we welcome the
new and embrace the old; and apologized for being late to the meeting. Director Rissler reminded
everyone of the post put out by Parks and Rec on the Sager Creek plans; expressed congratulations to
Lieutenant Duncan on his retirement, once family, always family. Director Carroll mentioned the
Indian Summer we are having; the HomeGrown Festival this weekend along with JBU homecoming;
and said he saw report of 300,000 for Bikes, Blues and BBQ this weekend.
With no further business, a motion to adjourn was made by Carroll and seconded by Sappington.
Nation called for a voice vote. Motion passed unanimously.
Meeting adjourned.
ATTEST:

APPROVED:

Renea Ellis, City Clerk, CAMC/CMC

Judy Nation, Mayor
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Administrator'

1.

s

Report

Expenditures:

Lead Jet- A Fuel— Resupply
33, 760. 00— Airport— 8, 000 gallons 100 Low
46, 392. 00— Fire—

Emergency response staff vehicle.

47, 616. 40— Electric-

2.

Thermal detection

traffic

signal

system

intersection(

Lincoln&

E. Main)

ANRC ARPA Funding for Sewer Projects

2021 ANRC Wastewater Needs Survey- 503 projects submitted totaling over$ 1. 9B
135, 000,000 available for sewer and stormwater projects

ANRC has $

County Acres Sewer Phase 2 estimated cost is$ 3, 137, 000
Coons Addition( county

subdivision)

Sewer estimated cost is$ 1, 318, 800

Total estimated cost is $4,455, 800
Cost

Sharing

Requirement is 50%

if Median Household Income is greater than$ 50, 000

2020 MHH for Siloam Springs- $ 52, 073
2020 MHH for Benton
A 50%

cost share for both projects would require $2,227,900 from City.

A 50% cost
A 50%

County - $ 71, 556

share

for only

County

Acres Phase 2 would

require $

1, 568, 500 from City

cost share for only Coons Additions would require$ 659, 400

Application Deadline is November

4th

STAFF REPORT
TO:
FROM:
Cc:
DATE:
RE:

Phillip Patterson, City Administrator
Maegan Thomas, Planner 1
Justin Bland, PE, City Engineer
Don Clark, Community Development Director
Ben Rhoads, AICP, Senior Planner
October 6, 2022
Dedication of Utility Easements / 930 E. Jefferson St.

Recommendation: Approve the dedication of utility easements at 930 E. Jefferson St.
Background: The applicant, RC Holley Properties, requests a lot-consolidation permit to consolidate
the two lots into one lot. Following City policy, the proposed easements for dedication are presented to
the Board for approval. The easements will primarily be used for City and franchise utilities per the
dedication language shown on the attached plat. City staff has approved the plat subject to authorization
from the Board to accept the easements as shown.
Fiscal Impact: Staff is not aware of any fiscal impact associated with accepting the dedication of the
shown utility easements.
Attachments:
Lot Consolidation Plat

STAFF REPORT
TO:
FROM:
Cc:
DATE:
RE:

Phillip Patterson, City Administrator
Maegan Thomas, Planner 1
Justin Bland, PE, City Engineer
Don Clark, Community Development Director
Ben Rhoads, AICP, Senior Planner
October 6, 2022
Dedication of Utility Easements / 1803 N. Dawn Hill Rd.

Recommendation: Approve the dedication of utility easements at 1803 N. Dawn Hill Rd.
Background: The applicant, Jeff Stewart, requests a lot-split permit to split the property into two lots.
Following City policy, the proposed easements for dedication are presented to the Board for approval.
The easements will primarily be used for City and franchise utilities per the dedication language shown
on the attached plat. City staff has approved the plat subject to authorization from the Board to accept
the easements as shown.
Fiscal Impact: Staff is not aware of any fiscal impact associated with accepting the dedication of the
shown utility easements.
Attachments:
Lot Split Plat

STAFF REPORT
TO:
FROM:
Cc:
DATE:
RE:

Phillip Patterson, City Administrator
Travis Chaney, Parks and Recreation Manager
Don Clark, Community Development Director
October 11, 2022
Grant Acceptance / Walton Tree Initiative Grant / Parks and Recreation / $79,532.00

Recommendation: Accept a grant from the Walton Personal Philanthropy Group for the tree planting
initiative in the amount of $79,532.00
Background: In March of 2022, the City of Siloam Springs was awarded a $79,532 Tree Initiative
Grant from the Walton Personal Philanthropy Group. The purpose of the grant is to fund the planting
and maintenance of trees in several City parks, and to provide trees to residents during Spring and Fall
tree giveaways. The grant funds 100% of the cost of 350 trees for Spring and Fall giveaways.
Additionally, the grant funds 100% of the cost to hire a contractor to plant 59 large, 2” caliper trees at
the Kayak Park, City Park, and along the Dogwood Springs Trail. The grant also provides 100% of the
funding for a contractor to water the trees twice weekly for one full growing season. The grant funding
must be spent by March of 2023. The purchase, delivery, and installation of the trees will be managed
by Patti Erwin, Tree Program Consultant for the Walton Family Foundation, on behalf of the Walton
Personal Philanthropy Group, in coordination with Parks & Recreation Manager, Travis Chaney.
Fiscal Impact: Subject to the Board’s acceptance of the grant, the 2022 Parks budget will be amended to
account for the revenue and expense.
Attachments: None

STAFF REPORT
TO:
FROM:
Cc:
DATE:
RE:

Phillip Patterson, City Administrator
Ben Rhoads, AICP, Senior Planner
Don Clark, Community Development Director
September 21, 2022
Ordinance 22-24 / Amending Section 102-21 of the City Municipal Code / Rezoning from I1 to C-2 / 800 Block of Hwy. 412 West
Recommendation: Place Ordinance No. 22-24 on its _____ (1st, 2nd or 3rd) reading, suspending the
rules and reading by title only.

Background: The applicant, CCV DT Rogers Holdings, LLC, desires to rezone the 800 Block of Hwy.
412 West, also associated with the address 650 Hwy. 412 W., in Lot 1 of the Siloam Warehouse
Addition, consisting of 1.30 acres, from I-1 District (Industrial) to C-2 District (Roadway Commercial).
The Planning Commission reviewed the rezoning application at the September 13, 2022, regular
meeting. There were no comments from the public. The Commission recommended approval of the
rezoning permit by a 6-0 vote, with no abstentions. One Commissioner was absent.
According to the Land Use Code, a rezoning development permit shall only be authorized when the
applicant has convincingly demonstrated that the proposed zoning:
(a) Will not substantially interfere with other owners’ reasonable peace and enjoyment of
their neighboring properties;
(b) Will not substantially damage any property value in the neighborhood;
(c) Will be compatible with and respect the context of its location and the character of the
surrounding existing neighborhoods;
(d) Will not, whether by the nature of the allowed uses in the proposed zone, or by the
allowed siting, height, or design of structures or landscaping in the proposed zone, tend to
burden the present or future use of neighboring properties in accordance with current
zoning standards;
(e) Is adequately supported by infrastructure, including without limitation, streets and
parking; and
(f) Compared to present zoning of the property, is equally or more consistent with:
1. Sound planning of the city’s growth; and with
2. Public health, safety, and convenience within the neighborhood:
Please consult staff’s memo to the Planning Commission for the analysis and findings on these criteria.
Fiscal Impact: No fiscal impact is anticipated.
Attachments:
Staff report to Planning Commission
Ordinance No. 22-24

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT
TO:
FROM:
Cc:
DATE:
RE:

Planning Commission
Maegan Thomas, Planner 1
Don Clark, Community Development Director
Ben Rhoads, AICP, Senior Planner
August 29, 2022
Rezoning Development Permit, RZ22-08 / Rezone from I-1 to C-2 / 650 Hwy.
412 West.

Recommendation: Motion to approve RZ22-08 (Rezone Development Permit).
Section A: Background:
A-1) APPLICATION REVIEW DATES
Planning Commission review:
September 13, 2022
Board of Directors review:
October 4, 2022
A-2) APPLICANT AND AGENT
Applicant/Owner: CCV DT Rogers Holdings, LLC
Agent: Cross Capital Ventures, Blake Crossno
A-3) SUBJECT PROPERTY ADDRESS
650 W. Hwy. 412
A-4) PROJECT SUMMARY
The applicant desires to rezone Lot 1 of the Siloam Warehouse Addition, consisting of 1.3
acres, from and I-1 District (Industrial) to C-2 District (Roadway Commercial).
A-5) LEGAL NOTICE
 Site posted: August 03, 2022.
 Newspaper legal notification: August 28, 2022 (Arkansas Democrat Gazette).
 Letter legal notification: August 22, 2022.
 Staff has received no correspondence on the request.

A-6) EXISTING LAND USES AND ZONING
EXISTING LAND USE
EXISTING ZONING
Vacant
I-1 District (Industrial)
PROPOSED LAND USE
PROPOSED ZONING
General Commercial1
C-2 District (Roadway Commercial)
SURROUNDING LAND USE
SURROUNDING ZONING
North: Commercial- Retail/Office
North: C-2 District (Roadway Commercial)
Separated by Hwy. 412
Separated by Hwy. 412
South: Industrial- Warehousing
South: I-1 District (Industrial)
East:
Industrial- Warehousing
East:
I-1 District (Industrial)
West:
Commercial- Retail
West:
C-2 District (Roadway Commercial)
Separated by S. Carl St
Separated by S. Carl St.
1

The precise land usage has not been determined at this time.

Figure A-6 (1): Site View

9/8/22 P.N. 03-00280-000; RZ22-08

North

2

Figure A-6 (2): General Area Map
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Section B: Site Analysis
B-1) PROJECT ANALYSIS AND APPROVAL CRITERIA
I. The following criteria are shown to indicate if this proposal meets the minimum criteria for
approval. Criteria I-II is a subsection of Sec. 102-53 of the Municipal Code and Criterion
III is Sec. 54-37 of the Land Use Code.
II.

ZONING USE UNIT CONSISTENCY: C-2 (Roadway commercial)

(a) Purpose
The district is established to protect the accessibility, efficiency, utility and value of
intensive commercial enterprises located on major thoroughfares and patronized by
businesses or by the general public.
(b) Planned uses
This property is planned for a commercial business, the precise use unit is not known at
this time. See below uses permitted within the C-2 zoning district.
The C-2 zoning district allows Use Units 2, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, and 18 by right.
These use units permit such uses as, but not limited to, parks, small to large office, small
to large retailer and/ or commercial facility, small motel, small motor vehicle service
station, small to large institution, recreational vehicle park, and a commercial parking lot.
(c) Special uses
Special use for the proposed zone includes Use Unit 13 (Utilities), Use Unit 19 (Antenna
Tower or Mast), Use Unit 20 (Light Industry), and Use Unit 21 (General Industry).
II.

LOT STANDARDS CONSISTENCY
The minimum C-2 zone standards are compared with the subject property below.
MINIMUM (C-2) ZONING
REQUIREMENTS
Lot Area: 8,000 sq. ft.
Lot Width: 80 ft.
Maximum Lot Coverage: 80%
Maximum Floor to Area Ratio: 0.6 (60%)

9/8/22 P.N. 03-00280-000; RZ22-08

SUBJECT PROPERTY PROPOSAL
56,628 sq. ft. or 1.3 acres
269 ft.
0%
0%
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III.

LAND USE CODE REQUIREMENTS
According to the Land Use Code, a rezoning development permit shall only be
authorized when the applicant has convincingly demonstrated that the proposed zoning:
(a) Will not substantially interfere with other owners’ reasonable peace and enjoyment
of their neighboring properties:
City staff is aware of no evidence that the proposed rezoning for commercial use
will cause a consistent disturbance to the peace and enjoyment of the neighboring
properties. The neighboring properties are generally industrial/commercial in
nature and are generally considered equal intensity of land use from the proposal.
Enforcement of the City Code’s nuisance chapter will ensure that excessive
noise, or unsightly debris, etc. is mitigated. These rules ensure that the proposal
will not inherently decrease the City’s quality of life standards.
(b) Will not substantially damage any property value in the neighborhood:
Commercial uses in this area are not anticipated to impact property values due to
the existing commercial land use established to the north, east and west of the
property and the abutting industrial zoning to the south and east of the subject
property.
(c) Will be compatible with and respect the context of its location and the character
of the surrounding existing neighborhoods:
The proposed zoning is of similar use classes and is generally compatible with
the industrial and commercial uses in the neighborhood.
(d) Will not, whether by the nature of the allowed uses in the proposed zone, or by
the allowed siting, height, or design of structures or landscaping in the proposed
zone, tend to burden the present or future use of neighboring properties in
accordance with current zoning standards:
Commercial uses in this area are not anticipated to burden the present or future
uses of neighboring properties due to the proposed use being equal or lesser
intensity than the land uses abutting the subject property.

9/8/22 P.N. 03-00280-000; RZ22-08

5

(e) Is adequately supported by infrastructure, including without limitation, streets and
parking:
Water System
There is an existing 12” water main that runs on the west side of the property. Staff
finds this existing infrastructure to be adequate for fire and domestic water needs.
Sanitary Sewer System
There is an existing 8” sewer main that runs on the south side of Hwy. 412 to this
east of this lot. A sewer main extension will be needed to extend the sewer to the
subject property upon development. Staff finds this existing infrastructure to be
adequate for wastewater needs.
Storm Sewer System
Detention will be determined upon future development of the property.
(f) Compared to present zoning of the property, is equally or more consistent with:
1. Sound planning of the city’s growth; and with
2. Public health, safety, and convenience within the neighborhood:
The proposed rezoning does not appear to inhibit sound planning of the City’s
growth. Nothing in the proposal will consistently inhibit or harm the public health,
safety, and convenience within the neighborhood.
B-2)

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONSISTENCY
The 2040 future land use map describes this area as regional commercial. The
following zone(s) are appropriate according to the designation: C-I, C-1A, C-2. The
proposed C-2 zone is compliant with all existing and future land uses.

9/8/22 P.N. 03-00280-000; RZ22-08
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Figure B-2 (1) Future Land Use Map

Subject Property

9/8/22 P.N. 03-00280-000; RZ22-08
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B-3)

STAFF DISCUSSION

General Summary
 The applicant is requesting to rezone a 1.3-acre Key Points:
lot located at 650 W. Hwy. 412 from I-1 to C-2.
• The lot complies with
 The applicant has not yet determined the final
Zoning
land use. The proposed use will be determined at
• Consistent with the land
the development stage, as appropriate in the C-2
use plan
zone.
• Use unit determined at a
 The rezoning meets the minimum lot
later stage
requirements (see B-1) and is appropriate for a
corner retail use or restaurant.
 The future land use map calls for office and commercial uses in this area.
Existing and Future Land Uses
 This property is Lot 1 of the Siloam Warehouse Subdivision final plat that was previously
approved in June 2022 and is presently an undeveloped lot.
 The Future Land Use map calls out this area as “Regional Commercial”, which is
appropriate for the proposed commercial zoning classification.
 According to the 2040 Future Land Use map, this area is intended to be comprised of
commercial uses such as, retail and office uses.
Neighborhood Context and Compatibility
 This area primarily consist of commercial retail/office uses which is compatible with the
proposed zoning request.
Conditions and Staff Conclusions
 Based on the future land use map, this request is in line with the intended use of the property
and therefore staff is recommending approval of this request with no needed conditions.
Fiscal Impact:
Staff is not aware of any fiscal impact at this time.
Attachments:
Site Plan

9/8/22 P.N. 03-00280-000; RZ22-08
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REZONE LOT 1 FROM I-1 TO C-2

ORDINANCE NO. 22-24
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 102-21 OF THE
SILOAM SPRINGS MUNICIPAL CODE (CITY ZONING MAP);
REZONING (FROM I-1 TO C-2) PROPERTY LOCATED AT
650 HIGHWAY 412 WEST
Whereas, the landowner, CCV DT Rogers Holdings, LLC, has requested that the below-described land
be changed from the present zoning district of I-1 (Industrial) to C-2 (Roadway Commercial); and
Whereas, a public hearing on the proposed change was held on the 13th day of September 2022, before
the City of Siloam Springs Planning Commission, after proper notice required by law; and
Whereas, after receiving and considering a staff report, a motion recommending approval of the rezone
was passed by the Planning Commission; and
Whereas, upon review and deliberation it appears that the zoning change is in the best interest of the City
of Siloam Springs; Now Therefore:
Be It Enacted, by the Siloam Springs Board of Directors, as follows:
The zoning map of the City (Municipal Code Section 102-21) is hereby amended to include within the C2 zoning district the property located 650 Hwy. 412 W., described as follows:
LOT 1 OF THE SILOAM WAREHOUSE ADDITION, FURTHER DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
A PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION
07, TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 33 WEST, BENTON COUNTY, ARKANSAS, BEING
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, TO-WIT: BEGINNING AT A POINT ON
THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SOUTH CARL STREET WHICH IS S87°40'41"E 24.98' AND
N02°44'35"E 1011.85' FROM THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID FORTY ACRE TRACT
AND RUNNING THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY N02°44'35"E 218.81' TO THE
SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF U.S. HIGHWAY #412, THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY
THE FOLLOWING: N50°32'04"E 11.52', N09°25'37"E 25.50', N39°10'19"E 15.81', S68°44'49"E
269.33', THENCE LEAVING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY S20°49'21"W 188.39', THENCE
N87°15'25"W 217.83' TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 1.30 ACRES, MORE OR
LESS. SUBJECT TO THAT PORTION IN SOUTH CARL STREET MASTER STREET PLAN
RIGHT-OF-WAY ON THE WEST SIDE OF HEREIN DESCRIBED TRACT AND SUBJECT TO
ALL OTHER EASEMENTS AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF RECORD.

Ordained and Enacted this ____ day of

2022.

ATTEST:

APPROVED:

Renea Ellis, City Clerk, CAMC/CMC

Judy Nation, Mayor

(SEAL)

STAFF REPORT
TO:
FROM:
DATE:
RE:

Mayor and Board of Directors
Phillip Patterson, City Administrator
October 11, 2022
Resolution 60-22 / Golf Course Improvements / Siloam Springs Country Club / $30,000

Recommendation: Approve Resolution No. 60-22
Background: At the October 4, 2022, Board meeting, the President of the Siloam Springs Country
Club. Mr. Curt Smith, briefed the Board on the history of the Country Club and golf course, and on the
current financial status of the Club. As stated, the Club in the process of hiring a new golf course
management company, Maxim Golf. However, in order for Maxim Golf to be able to take over the
maintenance of the golf course a number of improvements are needed.
The needed improvements include irrigation and $ equipment upgrades totally approximately $100,000.
In addition, Maxim Golf’s proposal request that one-half of their annual management fee ($17,500) be
banked. In order for the Club to continue operations, $120,000 is needing to be raised to make the
needed improvements and contract with Maxim Golf for management of the facility. A number of
community entities, both public and private, have expressed an interest in assisting the Club to ensure its
continued operations. To that end, Simmons Foods has committed $30,000, and the Club has requested
the City to match that amount, subject to the Club raising the remaining $60,000.
The attached resolution agrees to provide the Club with $30,000 for maintenance and improvements to
the golf course, subject to the Club raising the remaining $90,000, and providing the City with a detailed
report every 90 days on how the $30,000 is utilized.
Fiscal Impact: Subject to approval of the resolution, the 2022 budget will be amended accordingly and
the funds will be appropriated from the General Fund’s fund balance.
Attachments:
Resolution No. 60-22

RESOLUTION NO. 60-22
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING $30,000.00 TO BE USED
TOWARDS GOLF COURSE IMPROVEMENTS CONTINGENT
ON THE RAISING OF $90,000.00 IN MATCHING FUNDS.
Whereas, the City of Siloam Springs is the owner of the nine-hole golf course at Cheri
Whitlock and Country Club Rd., subject to a long-term lease to the Siloam Springs Country
Club; and
Whereas, the course is operated as a public facility open to local residents, school groups
and similar users; and
Whereas, it is in the public interest to have a golf course available in Siloam Springs, which
provides a variety of recreational, educational, fitness and social opportunities; and
Whereas, in order for said course to remain viable, it requires maintenance, upgrades and
modernization that are beyond the financial capabilities of the current leasee; and
Whereas, the total sought for course improvements is $120,000.00; and
Whereas, it is proposed that to raise said amount, the City of Siloam Springs will contribute
$30,000. Simmons Industries will contribute $30,000, and the remaining $60,000 will be
split between a variety of private and public donors; and
Whereas, the City’s contribution is contingent upon the remainder of the funds being raised
from these other sources; and
Whereas, in order to provide donations, donors expect a commitment from the City that
funds will be available, and the project will proceed when the contingency conditions are
satisfied; Now Therefore:
Be It Resolved, by the Board of Directors of the City of Siloam Springs:
1.) Subject to obtaining additional donations of at least $90,000.00, the City of Siloam
Springs shall provide up to $30,000.00 to the management of the Siloam Springs
golf course for site maintenance, moderation and improvements.
2.) That management of the Siloam Springs golf course shall prepare and provide
periodic reports detailing how the appropriated funds were utilized, at intervals not
to exceed ninety (90) days, commencing upon the initial receipt of City funds and
concluding with an ending report within ninety (90) days of the final expenditure.
3.) That the City Administrator is authorized to suspend fund distribution and/or demand
the return of distributed funds upon determination that the recipient has used said
funds for any improper purpose or failed to adequately account for the expenditure of
public funds, and to take such other and further actions, not inconsistent with this

Res. 60-22
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resolution, as may be reasonable and necessary to carry out the intents and purposes
thereof.

Done and Resolved this ________ day of _______________________, 2022.
Approved:
Attest:
___________________________
Renea Ellis, City Clerk, CAMC/CMC

Res. 60-22

__________________________
Judy Nation, Mayor

Page 2 of 2

STAFF REPORT
TO:
FROM:
DATE:
RE:

Phillip Patterson, City Administrator
Misty McGlothlin, Human Resources Manager
October 12, 2022
Resolution 61-22 / 2023 Compensation Plan

Recommendation: Approve Resolution 61-22 adopting the 2023 Compensation Plan.
The City partnered with the JER HR Group to conduct a Compensation Study. The study was presented
to the board on September 6, 2022. Since that time, staff forwarded a copy of the report showing all pay
ranges along with a narrative of how those ranges were adjusted to bring minimum pay up to $15.75 per
hour for employees working a 40-hour work week.
Staff has reviewed and updated the current compensation plan and is recommending the following
changes:
•
•
•
•
•

Implementing the new JER HR compensation study as presented.
Implementing the JER HR step compensation plan for Fire and Police to be more
competitive.
Reclassifying the HR Manager to HR Director.
Reclassifying the Cemetery Groundskeeper to Sexton and assigning one Parks Maintenance
position to the Cemetery as a Technician.
Reclassifying the Groundsman position to a Lineman position in the Electrical Department.

Fiscal Impact: The changes to the Compensation Plan that increase wages have been accounted for in
the 2023 budget. Subject to the 5% COLA, the compensation plan will add $878,622 to the overall
payroll budget as follows:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Dispatch
Police
Fire
Other General Fund divisions
Enterprise Fund (utilities)
Streets

$76,378
$237,058
$296,159
$156,624
$81,432
$30,971
$878,622

Attachments:
Resolution No. 61–22 with Compensation Plan attached

RESOLUTION NO. 61-22
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING COMPENSATION PLAN
AMENDMENTS
WHEREAS, the Siloam Springs annual budget includes salary ranges for individual positions
within the City; and
WHEREAS, city staff recently contracted with JER HR Group to review the City's
Compensation Plan comparing information contained from various sources, including the
American Public Power Association, various entities providing electrical power, and various
cities located in Northwest Arkansas as well as entities participating in Northwest Arkansas
Human Resources Association (NOARK); and
WHEREAS, staff has updated the City's Compensation Plan that groups similar jobs into
salary ranges based on the recommendation of JER HR Group and has adjusted the salary ranges to
those in the compensation plan study.
NOW THEREFORE:
Be It Resolved, the Siloam Springs Compensation Plan, attached to this resolution as Exhibit A, is
hereby adopted.
DONE AND RESOLVED this

day of October 2022.
APPROVED:

Judy Nation, Mayor
ATTEST:
Renea Ellis, City Clerk CAMC/CMC

EXHIBIT A
RESOLUTION 61-22
TOTAL OF 12 PAGES

City of Siloam Springs
Compensation Plan
2023

Introduction

Siloam Springs Compensation Philosophy:
In an effort to attract, motivate, and retain quality employees committed to providing a high level
of public service, it is the City of Siloam Springs’ philosophy to maximize external market
competitiveness while maintaining internal equity. At no time shall race, religion, creed, color,
gender, national origin, age, or disability be considered in making any classification or
compensation decisions.
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Siloam Springs Compensation Plan Policy:
Internally consistent pay relationships are based on the content of the work performed, the skills
required and the relative contribution of the work to the City's overall objectives. Positions are
evaluated at the time of creation and when duties and responsibilities have significantly changed.
Several methods are used to evaluate jobs to determine their relative worth and may include point
factor analysis, a review of market data relative to that job and internal equity within the
department and city-wide. Based on the results of the job evaluation, a pay grade is assigned. In
certain cases, because of market demand for a particular job title, a job may have an expanded
range.
The City will review and update this compensation plan as a whole at least every 5 years.
Individual positions may be reviewed on an as needed basis.
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Table of Contents
Pay
Grade
155
230
130
115
115
115
200
105
170
115
220
135
*
205
105
110
*
210
195
220
220
100
110
125
100
100
170
110
100
160
115
115
130
135
180
220
225
220

Position
Accountant, Staff
Administrator, City
Analyst, System Support
Assistant II, Administrative
Assistant II, Administrative
Assistant II, Administrative
Assistant Superintendent, Electric
Assistant, Administrative
Assistant, Executive
Assistant, Purchasing
Attorney, City
AutoCAD / Draftsman
Captain, Fire Operations
Captain, Police
Cashier, Utility
Cataloguer
Chief, Battalion
Chief, Deputy Fire
Chief, Division EMS
Chief, Fire
Chief, Police
Clerk I, Library
Clerk II, Accounting
Clerk III, Acct Pay / RCV
Clerk, Bond
Clerk, Bond & Civil
Clerk, City
Clerk, Deputy
Clerk, Records
Coordinator, Facilities
Coordinator, Program / Children's Librarian
Coordinator, Program / Young Adult Librarian
Coordinator, Public Safety Communications
Coordinator, Recreation
Court Clerk
Director, Community Development
Director, Electric
Director, Finance / City Treasurer

Workers
Comp Code
8810
8810
8810
8810
8810
8810
7538
8810
8810
8810
8810
8810
7710
7720
8810
8810
7710
7710
7710
7710
7720
8810
8810
8810
8810
8810
8810
8810
8810
8810
8810
8810
8810
9102
8810
8810
8810
8810

Page
8
10
8
7
7
7
10
7
9
7
10
8
11
10
7
7
11
10
9
10
10
7
7
8
7
7
9
7
7
9
7
7
8
8
9
10
10
10

* See Department Step Plan
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Pay
Grade
215
220
105
115
210
190
195
195
*
*
195
130
130
130
130
130
120
130
160
180
120
120
120
120
120
120
*
140
150
165
175
190
100
180
125
180
205
180
185
185

Position
Director, HR
Director, Public Works
Driver
Driver, Semi Truck
Engineer, City
Engineer, Network
Engineer, Project
Fire Marshal
FIrefighter-EMT
Firefighter-Paramedic
Foreman, Line Crew
Foreman, Parks Maintenance
Foreman, Street / Infrastructure
Foreman, Wastewater Plant
Foreman, Water / Wastewater Service
Foreman, Water Plant
Generalist, Human Resources
GIS Analyst
Inspector, Building
Inspector, Senior Building
Lead, Infrastructure Crew
Lead, Recycle
Lead, Street Crew
Lead, Street Mowing
Lead, Transfer Station
Leadsman, Concrete
Lieutenant, Fire
Lineman YR I, Apprentice
Lineman YR II, Apprentice
Lineman YR III, Apprentice
Lineman YR IV, Apprentice
Lineman, Journeyman
Maintenance, Parks
Manager, Accounting
Manager, Assistant Library
Manager, Community Services
Manager, IT
Manager, Library
Manager, Parks & Rec
Manager, Purchasing

Workers
Comp Code

Page

8810
7520
9403
7229
8601
8810
8810
7710
7710
7710
7538
9102
5506
7580
7520
7520
8810
8810
9015
9015
5506
5506
5506
9102
5506
5506
7710
7538
7538
7538
7539
7538
9102
8810
8810
8831
8810
8810
9102
8810

10
10
7
7
10
9
9
9
11
11
9
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
9
9
8
8
8
8
8
8
11
8
8
9
9
9
7
9
8
9
10
9
9
9

* See Department Step Plan
4

Pay
Grade
145
100
115
180
100
105
105
115
115
115
115
115
120
120
125
125
110
100
100
100
160
180
*
*
*
*
180
115
130
110
115
185
115
120
110
140
150
165
175
190

Position
Mechanic
Meter Reader
Officer, Animal Control
Officer, Public Information
Operator I, Equipment
Operator II, Equipment
Operator II, Wastewater
Operator III, Equipment
Operator III, Heavy Equipment, Water - Certified
Operator III, Service Equipment, Water - Certified
Operator III, Wastewater
Operator III, Water
Operator IV, Heavy Equipment, Water - Certified
Operator IV, Service Equipment, Water - Certified
Operator IV, Wastewater
Operator IV, Water
Operator, Chipper
Operator, Sanitation Equipment
Operator, Service Equipment, Water Service
Operator, Transfer Station
Planner I
Planner, Senior
Police Corporal
Police Lieutenant
Police Officer
Police Sergeant
Server Analyst
Serviceman
Sexton, Cemetery
Solid Waste Driver-Chipper Operator
Specialist, Code Compliance
Specialist, Fire Prevention
Specialist, Flight Operations
Specialist, Public Safety Communications
Specialist, Senior Records
Substation Technician YR I, Apprentice
Substation Technician YR II, Apprentice
Substation Technician YR III, Apprentice
Substation Technician YR IV, Apprentice
Substation Technician, Journeyman

Workers
Comp Code
8385
7539
8831
8810
5506
5506
7580
5506
7580
7580
7580
7520
7580
7520
7580
7520
7539
9403
7580
9403
8810
8810
7720
7720
7720
7720
8810
7538
9102
9403
8831
7710
8810
7403
8810
7538
7538
7538
7538
3724

Page
8
7
7
9
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
8
8
8
8
7
7
7
7
9
9
11
11
11
11
9
7
8
7
7
9
7
8
7
8
8
9
9
9

* See Department Step Plan
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Pay
Grade
205
170
190
200
190
190
190
155
155
185
100
120
100
110
105
110
125

Position
Superintendent, Construction
Superintendent, Maintenance
Superintendent, Solid Waste
Superintendent, Street
Superintendent, Wastewater Plant
Superintendent, Water / Wastewater Service
Superintendent, Water Plant
Supervisor, Billing
Supervisor, Public Safety Communications
Surveyor
Technician, Cemetery
Technician, Evidence & Intelligence
Technician, Kennel
Technician, Permit
Technician, Recreation
Technician, Water / Wastewater Service
Welder / Fabricator

Workers
Comp Code
7538
8385
8810
5506
7580
5183
7520
8810
8810
8601
9102
8810
8831
8810
9102
7520
5506

Page
10
9
9
10
9
9
9
8
8
9
7
8
7
7
7
7
8
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Pay
Grade Position
100
Clerk I, Library
Clerk, Bond
Clerk, Bond & Civil
Clerk, Records
Maintenance, Parks
Meter Reader
Operator I, Equipment
Operator, Sanitation Equipment
Operator, Service Equipment, Water Service
Operator, Transfer Station
Technician, Cemetery
Technician, Kennel
105
Assistant, Administrative
Cashier, Utility
Driver
Operator II, Equipment
Operator II, Wastewater
Technician, Recreation
110
Cataloguer
Clerk II, Accounting
Clerk, Deputy
Operator, Chipper
Solid Waste Driver-Chipper Operator
Specialist, Senior Records
Technician, Permit
Technician, Water / Wastewater Service
115
Assistant II, Administrative
Assistant, Purchasing
Coordinator, Program / Children's Librarian
Coordinator, Program / Young Adult Librarian
Driver, Semi Truck
Officer, Animal Control
Operator III, Equipment
Operator III, Heavy Equipment, Water - Certified
Operator III, Service Equipment, Water - Certified
Operator III, Wastewater
Operator III, Water
Serviceman
Specialist, Code Compliance
Specialist, Flight Operations

Pay
Exempt Period

Min

Salary Range
Mid

Max

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
15.75
$
629.80
$ 32,749.60

$
19.68
$
787.25
$ 40,937.00

$
23.62
$
944.70
$ 49,124.40

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
16.71
$
668.40
$ 34,756.80

$
20.89
$
835.50
$ 43,446.00

$
25.07
$ 1,002.60
$ 52,135.20

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
17.68
$
707.00
$ 36,764.00

$
22.09
$
883.75
$ 45,955.00

$
26.51
$ 1,060.50
$ 55,146.00

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
18.64
$
745.60
$ 38,771.20

$
23.30
$
932.00
$ 48,464.00

$
27.96
$ 1,118.40
$ 58,156.80
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Min

Salary Range
Mid

Max

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
19.61
$
784.20
$ 40,778.40

$
24.51
$
980.25
$ 50,973.00

$
29.41
$ 1,176.30
$ 61,167.60

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
20.57
$
822.80
$ 42,785.60

$
25.71
$ 1,028.50
$ 53,482.00

$
30.86
$ 1,234.20
$ 64,178.40

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
20.92
$
836.80
$ 43,513.60

$
26.15
$ 1,046.00
$ 54,392.00

$
31.38
$ 1,255.20
$ 65,270.40

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
21.86
$
874.29
$ 45,463.20

$
27.32
$ 1,092.87
$ 56,829.00

$
32.79
$ 1,311.44
$ 68,194.80

Lineman YR I, Apprentice
Substation Technician YR I, Apprentice

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
22.08
$
883.20
$ 45,926.40

$
25.40
$ 1,015.82
$ 52,822.88

$
27.37
$ 1,094.80
$ 56,929.60

Mechanic

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
22.79
$
911.78
$ 47,412.80

$
28.49
$ 1,139.73
$ 59,266.00

$
34.19
$ 1,367.68
$ 71,119.20

Lineman YR II, Apprentice
Substation Technician YR II, Apprentice

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
23.18
$
927.20
$ 48,214.40

$
25.56
$ 1,022.60
$ 53,175.00

$
29.05
$ 1,162.00
$ 60,424.00

Accountant, Staff
Supervisor, Billing
Supervisor, Public Safety Communications

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
23.73
$
949.29
$ 49,363.20

$
29.67
$ 1,186.62
$ 61,704.00

$
35.60
$ 1,423.94
$ 74,044.80

Pay
Grade Position
120
Generalist, Human Resources
Lead, Infrastructure Crew
Lead, Recycle
Lead, Street Crew
Lead, Street Mowing
Lead, Transfer Station
Leadsman, Concrete
Operator IV, Heavy Equipment, Water - Certified
Operator IV, Service Equipment, Water - Certified
Specialist, Public Safety Communications
Technician, Evidence & Intelligence
125
Clerk III, Acct Pay / RCV
Manager, Assistant Library
Operator IV, Wastewater
Operator IV, Water
Welder / Fabricator
130
Analyst, System Support
Coordinator, Public Safety Communications
Foreman, Parks Maintenance
Foreman, Street / Infrastructure
Foreman, Wastewater Plant
Foreman, Water / Wastewater Service
Foreman, Water Plant
GIS Analyst
Sexton, Cemetery
135
AutoCAD / Draftsman
Coordinator, Recreation
140

145

150

155

Pay
Exempt Period

8

Pay
Grade Position
160
Coordinator, Facilities
Inspector, Building
Planner I
165

Pay
Exempt Period

Lineman YR III, Apprentice
Substation Technician YR III, Apprentice

170
Assistant, Executive
Clerk, City
Superintendent, Maintenance

E
E
E

Min

Salary Range
Mid

Max

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
23.94
$
957.77
$ 49,804.00

$
29.93
$ 1,197.21
$ 62,255.00

$
35.92
$ 1,436.65
$ 74,706.00

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
24.43
$
977.20
$ 50,814.40

$
28.29
$ 1,131.74
$ 58,850.40

$
32.25
$ 1,290.18
$ 67,089.46

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
25.31
$ 1,012.35
$ 52,642.40

$
31.64
$ 1,265.44
$ 65,803.00

$
37.96
$ 1,518.53
$ 78,963.60

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
26.22
$
987.00
$ 51,324.00

$
30.84
$ 1,233.75
$ 64,155.00

$
37.01
$ 1,480.50
$ 76,986.00

175
Lineman YR IV, Apprentice
Substation Technician YR IV, Apprentice
180

185

190

195

200

Court Clerk
Inspector, Senior Building
Manager, Accounting
Manager, Community Services
Manager, Library
Officer, Public Information
Planner, Senior
Server Analyst

E
E
E
E
E
E
E

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
27.13
$ 1,085.14
$ 56,427.20

$
33.91
$ 1,356.42
$ 70,534.00

$
40.69
$ 1,627.71
$ 84,640.80

Manager, Parks & Rec
Manager, Purchasing
Specialist, Fire Prevention
Surveyor

E
E
E

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
28.07
$ 1,122.85
$ 58,388.00

$
35.09
$ 1,403.56
$ 72,985.00

$
42.11
$ 1,684.27
$ 87,582.00

Engineer, Network
Lineman, Journeyman
Substation Technician, Journeyman
Superintendent, Solid Waste
Superintendent, Wastewater Plant
Superintendent, Water / Wastewater Service
Superintendent, Water Plant

E

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
29.84
$ 1,193.43
$ 62,058.40

$
37.29
$ 1,491.79
$ 77,573.00

$
44.75
$ 1,790.15
$ 93,087.60

Chief, Division EMS
Engineer, Project
Fire Marshal
Foreman, Line Crew

E
E
E

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
31.60
$ 1,264.02
$ 65,728.80

$
39.50
$ 1,580.02
$ 82,161.00

$
47.40
$ 1,896.02
$ 98,593.20

Assistant Superintendent, Electric
Superintendent, Street

E
E

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
33.37
$ 1,334.60
$ 69,399.20

$
41.71
$ 1,668.25
$ 86,749.00

$
54.22
$ 2,168.73
$ 112,773.70

E
E
E
E
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Pay
Grade Position
205
Captain, Police
Manager, IT
Superintendent, Construction
210
Engineer, City
Chief, Deputy Fire

Pay
Exempt Period

Salary Range
Mid

Max

E
E
E

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
36.89
$ 1,475.77
$ 76,740.00

$
46.12
$ 1,844.71
$ 95,925.00

$
55.34
$ 2,213.65
$ 115,110.00

E
E

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
38.66
$ 1,546.35
$ 80,410.40

$
48.32
$ 1,932.94
$ 100,513.00

$
57.99
$ 2,319.53
$ 120,615.60

Director, HR

E

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
43.43
$ 1,737.35
$ 90,342.40

$
54.29
$ 2,171.69
$ 112,928.00

$
65.15
$ 2,606.03
$ 135,513.60

Attorney, City
Chief, Fire
Chief, Police
Director, Community Development
Director, Finance / City Treasurer
Director, Public Works

E
E
E
E
E
E

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
46.85
$ 1,874.11
$ 97,453.60

$
58.57
$ 2,342.63
$ 121,817.00

$
70.28
$ 2,811.16
$ 146,180.40

Director, Electric

E

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
48.36
$ 1,934.57
$100,597.60

$
60.46
$ 2,418.21
$ 125,747.00

$
72.55
$ 2,901.85
$ 150,896.40

Administrator, City

E

Hourly
Weekly
Annually

$
54.09
$ 2,163.46
$112,500.00

$
67.61
$ 2,704.33
$ 140,625.00

$
81.13
$ 3,245.19
$ 168,750.00

215

220

225

Min

230

10

Police Department Step Plan
5.0% Yearly
Adjustment to
Mid
Officer

3% Yearly
Adj. After
After initial
year 5
Minimum certification After year 1 After year 2 After year 3 After year 4
After year 6*
$ 40,962.00 $ 43,010.10 $ 45,160.61 $ 47,418.64 $ 49,789.57 $ 52,279.05 $ 53,847.42 $ 55,462.84

3% Yearly
Adjustment
Corporal

After year 10
After year 7 After year 8 After year 9 After year 10 After year 11 Maximum
$ 57,126.72 $ 58,840.53 $ 60,605.74 $ 62,423.91 $ 64,296.63 $ 66,225.53

3% Yearly
Adjustment
Sergeant

After year 10
Minimum After year 1 After year 2 After year 3 After year 4 After year 5 After year 6 After year 7 After year 8 After year 9 Maximum
$ 61,411.23 $ 63,253.57 $ 65,151.17 $ 67,105.71 $ 69,118.88 $ 71,192.45 $ 73,328.22 $ 75,528.07 $ 77,793.91 $ 80,127.72 $ 82,531.56

Lieutenant

$ 69,394.69 $ 71,476.53 $ 73,620.82 $ 75,829.45 $ 78,104.33 $ 80,447.46 $ 82,860.89 $ 85,346.71

$ 87,907.12

$ 90,544.33 $ 93,260.66

*Officers automatically promote to corporal after year 7.

Fire Department Step Plan
5.0% Yearly
3.5% Yearly
Adjustment to
After initial
After year 4 Adj. After
After year 9
Mid
year 5
Minimum certification After year 1 After year 2 After year 3 Midpoint
After year 6 After year 7 After year 8 Maximum
Firefighter/EMT $ 39,127.00 $ 41,083.35 $ 43,137.52 $ 45,294.39 $ 47,559.11 $ 49,937.07 $ 51,684.87 $ 53,493.84 $ 55,366.12 $ 57,303.93 $ 59,309.57
4.5% Yearly
Adjustment to
Mid
Lieutenant

3.7% Yearly
After year 5 - Adj. After
After year
year 6
Minimum After year 1 After year 2 After year 3 After year 4 midpoint
After year 7 After year 8 After year 9 10 Maximum
$ 48,500.00 $ 50,682.50 $ 52,963.21 $ 55,346.56 $ 57,837.15 $ 60,439.82 $ 62,676.10 $ 64,995.11 $ 67,399.93 $ 69,893.73 $ 72,479.80

Captain

$ 54,726.00 $ 57,188.67 $ 59,762.16 $ 62,451.46 $ 65,261.77 $ 68,198.55 $ 70,721.90 $ 73,338.61

$ 76,052.14

$ 78,866.07 $ 81,784.11

Battalion Chief

$ 65,737.00 $ 68,695.17 $ 71,786.45 $ 75,016.84 $ 78,392.60 $ 81,920.26 $ 84,951.31 $ 88,094.51

$ 91,354.01

$ 94,734.11 $ 98,239.27

Specialty Pay
Paramedic pay added to base pay -

$ 6,000.00
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STAFF REPORT
TO:
Phillip Patterson, City Administrator
CC:
Don Clark, Community Development Director
FROM: Kevin Moore, Project Engineer
DATE:
10/10/2022
RE:
Contract / Highway 412 Median Improvements Phase 1 / Oelke Construction / $309,957.73
Recommendation: Approve the contract with Oelke Construction for the Highway 412 Median
Improvements Phase 1 project for $309,957.73.
Background: The planting of trees and reduction of maintenance within the Highway 412 median was
a Board of Directors goal for 2017-2018. In 2019 the Board accepted a $263,000 grant from the Walton
Family Foundation for these improvements. Complications and scope-of-work concerns have delayed
this project. City staff presented the current plan to the Board at a workshop on May 18th, 2021, detailing
a phased construction plan without mulch or irrigation. The bids below are for phase one of this plan –
from State Line Road to Dogwood Street. As proposed, this project will add trees and a concrete border
behind the existing curb that will act as a buffer to improve safety for maintaining the medians. The
advertisement for this project was run in the local paper, posted to the City’s website, and the State’s bid
website.
City staff opened sealed bids for the Highway 412 Median Improvements project on September 23rd.
The three received bids are summarized below:
Oelke Construction:
$309,957.73
Midland Industrial Services: $541,689.35
Diamond C Construction:
$715,637.52
Staff has reviewed these bid proposals and recommends that the City enter a contract with Oelke
Construction for the Highway 412 Median Improvements Phase 1 project in the amount of $309,957.73.
Fiscal Impact: The phase one estimate presented in the May 18,2021, workshop was $261,000. In the
2022 budget $262,708 was allocated under account number 02-20-599999-867 for this project. The
amount of $47,249.73, exceeding the 2022 budgeted amount, would come from reserves by amending
the 2022 budget. One third, $87,666.67, of the WFF grant will be allocated to this phase so the out of
pocket expense to the City will be $222,291.06.
Attachments:
Contract – Section 00400 from the Specifications for Highway 412 Median Improvements and
exhibit for improvements.

STAFF REPORT
TO:
Mayor and Board of Directors
FROM: Phillip Patterson, City Administrator
DATE:
October 10, 2022
RE:
Utility Commission Interview Committee
Recommendation: Approve the appointment of a Board of Directors subcommittee to interview and
nominate candidates for the Utility Commission.
Background: On September 6, 2022, the Board adopted Ordinance 22-23 establishing a five (5)
member Utility Commission. The Commissioners are required to be qualified electors of the City for a
minimum of one (1) year, a municipal utility customer, and should represent diverse interests in the
community.
Public notices for applying for appointment to the Commission have been published in the Herald
Leader on September 21st and October 12th, posted on the City’s social media on October 7th and
October 16th, and listed on the City’s website. Applications are being accepted through October
31st.
State statutes vest the authority to appoint members of any board or commission established by the City
Board to the City Administrator, subject to approval by the Board. However, during previous Board
discussions the Board indicated that they would like to establish a Board subcommittee to conduct
interviews and nominate individuals for the Utility Commission for approval by the City Board.
Staff suggest that the subcommittee consist of three (3) Board members. Per the Board’s adopted Rules
of Order and Procedures, selection of a Director appointed to a committee is to be made by a majority
vote of the Board, and each Director shall vote by naming their choice by voice vote if there is more
than one nominee for a position. In this case, since the Board is establishing a subcommittee of Board
members, staff suggests that the Mayor accept nominations for membership and make a
recommendation to the City Board for approval.
Once the subcommittee is established, and once the deadline for applications has come and gone, staff
will provide all of the applications to the subcommittee members and begin scheduling an interview
date.
Fiscal Impact:
subcommittee

Staff is not aware of any fiscal impact associated with the appointment of this

Attachments: None

STAFF REPORT
TO:
FROM:

Phillip Patterson, City Administrator
Misty McGlothlin, Human Resources Manager
Christina Petriches, Finance Director
DATE:
October 11, 2022
SUBJECT:
Employee Benefits Comparison Summary
The Board requested a summary of the employee benefits of the same entities we compared our salaries
and wages to earlier this year in the Compensation Plan Study. Attached is the summary as provided by
JER HR Group along with a brief summary below.
Health insurance benefits for a High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP) break down as follows:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Siloam Spring’s employee contribution is 11% ($41.24 employee; $130.92 employee plus
family)
Fayetteville’s employee contribution averages 15% ($52.60 employee; $168.62 employee plus
family)
Bella Vista’s employee contribution is 16% for employee only ($58.80) and 25% for employee
plus family ($285.24).
Bentonville’s employee contribution is 25% ($131.72 employee; $354.90 employee plus family)
Springdale’s employee contribution 30% ($98.48 employee; $270.53 employee plus family)
Rogers’ (no HDHP plan) employee contribution is 9% for employee only ($50.05) and 19% for
employee plus family ($244.08)

Health Savings Account contributions by Siloam Springs are up to $1,710. Other cities contributions for
an HSA are less than Siloam Springs, except for employee plus for Springdale and employee plus family
for Fayetteville.
Retirement benefits break down as follows for those not in LOPFI or APERS:
•
•
•
•

Siloam Springs contribution ranges from 6% to 18% depending upon position. Employee
contribution is 3% with immediate vesting.
Springdale contributes 6% with employees contributing 3% with 5-year vesting.
Bella Vista contributes up to 10%. They match employee contributions 2% for every 1% the
employee contributes up to 5% with immediate vesting.
Fayetteville contributes 12% with employees contributing 3% with immediate vesting.

•

Bentonville, Rogers and Centerton participate in APERS. Employers contribute 15.32%. The
current employee contribution rate is 5.25% with an increase of .25% each year for 8 years.
Vesting takes 5 years.

All of the cities observe 12 annual holidays, except Bella Vista which observes 11. Siloam Springs and
Bella Vista provide one (1) additional personal day, Fayetteville provides two (2), and Bentonville
provides three (3).
Siloam Springs, Fayetteville, Bella Vista, and Rogers (current employees only) provide 12 annual sick
days. Bentonville and Springdale provide 20.
Siloam Springs, Fayetteville, Springdale, and Rogers (current employees only) provide 10 annual
vacation days for years 1-5. Bentonville and Bella Vista provide 15 days for years 1-5. For new
employees Rogers has moved to a PTO plan and provide a total paid time off of 17-32 annual days
depending upon years of service.
Attachments:
Consolidated Results Benefits Spreadsheet 2022

Consolidated Results Benefits Spreadsheet 2022
RETIREMENT

CITY

Retirement Plans For Merit Positions

Plan Offerings

MEDICAL & DENTAL PLANS

Insurance Premium Cost
Share % and $

Deductibles

Out of Pocket

H.S.A. Contributions

Siloam Springs

401a-City pays from 6%-18% depending
HDHP w HSA (BCBS) Delta
on position/employee pays at least 3%
Dental/Vision
into a 457 plan plus voluntary Roth IRA

See Cost Shares Table

HDHP Individual $2,000
and Family $4,000

HDHP
Individal $4,000
Family $8,000

Wellness bonus $750 /
Employer match up to $40
per pay period ($960)

Bentonville

APERS: City pays 15.32% of gross wages
and employee pays 5.5%*, vested after 5
years of service plus vol. 457 plan.

See Cost Shares Table

PPO Individual/ $1,000
and Family/ $3,000
HDHP Individual/ $3,000
and Family/ $6,000

HDHP
Individual/ $3,000
Family/$6,000

No

See Cost Shares Table

PPO Individual/ $1,000
and Family/ $2,000
HDHP Individual/ $3,000
and Family/ $6,000

PPO Individual/ $3,000
and Family/ $6,000
HDHP Individual/ $3,000
and Family/ $6,000

Employer Paid
EE Only: $850
EE/Family: $1,880
HDHP Only

See Cost Shares Table

PPO Individual/ $750
and Family/$1,500

PPO Individual/ $2,250
Family/$5,500

No

PPO Individual/ $2,000
and Family/ $6,000
HDHP Individual/ $2,800
and Family/ $5,600

Employer Paid
EE Only - $1,016
EE/Spouse - $2,032
EE/Child+ - $1,831
EE/Family - $2,797

Fayetteville

Co-pay PPO (BCBS) and
Delta Dental

HDHP w/HSA (BCBS) is the
City pays 12% and employee pays at
most popular Medical Plan
least 3% to 457 plan plus voluntary 457
Option with 95%
Roth plan.
participation and Delta
Dental

Rogers

APERS: City pays 15.32% of gross wages
and employee pays 5.5%*, vested after 5
years of service plus voluntary 457 plan

Springdale

VOYA: City pay 6% of gross wages and
Co-pay PPO,
employees pays 3%, vested after 5 years HDHP w/ HSA (BCBS) and
of service plus 457 plan.
Delta Dental

See Cost Shares Table

PPO $1,000
HDHP $2,800

Bella Vista

Voluntary 457. City matches up to 2
times Employee's contribution up to 5%
of the participants pay. Uniformed
police and Fire are covered under LOPFI

Co-pay, PPO (2 plans);
HDHP; Cigna

See Cost Shares Table

PPO $1,500
PPO $3,500
HDHP $2,800

PPO $3,500
PPO $5,500
HDHP $3,500

EE $600
EE/Dependent $1,200

Centerton

APERS: City pays 15.32% of gross wages
and employee pays 5.5%*, vested after 5
years of service.

PPO AML - Municipal
Health Benefit Plan

Individual/ $2000
Family/ $6,000

Individal $4,000
Family $8,000

No

NOARK Study
Averages

80% 401(k) or 403(b)
17% Defined Benefit
12% Profit Sharing
1.5% - 12% 401(k) Contributions
Average Contribution 4.74%
Mode
4%

85% offer Medical and
Dental Plan Coverages
83% are PPO plans

Co-pay PPO (BCBS) and
Delta Dental

*Employee contributions will increase 0.25% per year up to 7%

See Cost Shares Table

Average of $4,812 for
Survey Averages: PPO Individual/ combination of Individuals
$1,985 and Family/ $4,049
and Families Range of
$1,000 to $9,000

https://www.apers.org/blog/245-apers-director-s-update-october-2-2020

54% offer H.S.A or HRA
plans

Flexible Spending Account

Wellness Program
Employee reaches 120 points in a year to
receive $750 wellness bonus; flu shots,
wellness visits, dental/vision visits, gym
memberships, etc..

Medical reimbursement

Health Assessment Screening, Weight
Control and Health Center Fees

PPO: Medical, limited
purpose dental/vision and Annual Health Assessments; Flu Shots; Hep B
dependent care. HDHP:
shots; Wellbeing Day; Free City Gym;
H.S.A., limited purpose
Individualized Health Coaching and Wellness
dental/vision and
Incentives
dependent care.

Voluntary Flu Shots. Some departments offer
voluntary biometric screening.

Medical reimbursement and
dependent care

Free Access to City Gym and Free
Membership to Springdale Rec. Center

Medical reimbursement and Discount on Health Preimum with Wellness
Visit.
dependent care

48% offer FSA's

58% Offer Wellness Programs Top Three
Programs included Bio-metric Screenings,
Smoking Cessation and Fitness Center
Memberships.

Consolidated Results Benefits Spreadsheet 2022 (Continued)
TIME OFF PLANS FOR MERIT POSITIONS

CITY
Siloam Springs

Bentonville

Fayetteville

Rogers

Springdale

Bella Vista

Centerton

NOARK Study
Averages

SHIFT / ON CALL PAY

EDUCATION REIMBURSEMENT

Holidays

Vacation Days

Sick Days

Personal Days

Shift Differentials

On-Call Pay

Tuition Reimbursement

12 plus birthday

Years of Service - Days
1 year = 10 days/year
After 5 = 15 days/year
After 10 = 20 days/year

12/year

None

No

$25 per day for
non-uniformed
positions.

Full reimbursement with a passing
grade/must stay 2 years with City.

12

1 year = 15 days/year
After 5 = 18 days/year
After 11 = 20 days/year
21-25 years = 22 to 24 days/yr

20/year

3/year

No

Non-uniformed
$15 per day

$1,500 maximum per year with a
passing grade of a "B" of better.

12

Years of Service - Days
1 year = 10 days/year
After 5 = 15 days/year
After 10 = 20 days/year
After 20 = 25 days/year
20+ = 26 days/year

12/year

2/year

No

$18.03 per day

No

11 plus birthday

Current Employees
Years of Service - Days
1-5 = 10 days/year
5-10 = 15 days/year
10+ = 20 days/year

Current EEs 12/yr
New EEs PTO Plan
Years of Service - Days
1-5 = 17.88 days/year
5-10 = 22.88 days/year
10-15 = 27.88 days/year
15+ = 32.88 days/year

None

No

No

No

12

Years of Service - Days
1 year = 10 days/year
2-10 = 15 days/year
11-19 = 20 days/year
20+ years = 25 days/year

20/year

None

No

$15 per day for
non-uniformed
positions.

Student Paramedic pay $2,000 per
year

11

Years of Service - Days
1 5 = 15 days/year
5-10 = 18 days/year
11-15 = 20 days/year
15-20 = 22 days/year
20+ years = 24 days/year

96 Hours Non Uniform
161.2 Hours Police
240.5 Hours Fire

1

No

12

Current Employees
Years of Service - Days
1-5 = 10 days/year
5-10 = 15 days/year
10-15 = 20 days/year
15+ = 25 days/year

None

No

Average of 9

83% Offer Vacation Days
Ranging from 4 - 22 Days
43% Offer PTO Days Ranging
from 13-24 Days

2/year Mode

Shift Pay Per Hour
$0.59 2nd Shift
$0.71 3rd Shift
$1.00 Saturdays
$1.00 Sundays

9/year

Police on call
Must have approval and the max is
hourly rate is time
$1,500
and a half .

No

NR

73% Offer Education
Reimbursement Plans

Consolidated Results Benefits Spreadsheet 2022 (Continued)
Employee Only
Employee & Spouse
Employee & Child(ren)
Employee & Family

Employee Only
Employee & Spouse
Employee & Child(ren)
Employee & Family

Employee
City
Employee
City
Employee
City
Employee
City

Employee
City
Employee
City
Employee
City
Employee
City

Bentonville HDHP
%
$
25%
$131.72
75%
$395.12

25%
75%

$354.90
$1,064.68

Bentonville
%
$
15%
$4.46
85%
$25.28

15%
85%

$11.56
$65.54

Fayetteville HDHP
%
$
14% $52.60
86% $321.56
15% $120.08
85% $686.88
15% $90.96
85% $520.32
15% $168.62
85% $964.56

Fayetteville
%
$
100%
$27.50
0%
$0.00
100%
$54.98
0%
$0.00
100%
$63.24
0%
$0.00
100%
$98.10
0%
$0.00

%
9%
91%

MONTHLY MEDICAL PREMIUM COST SHARES
Springdale HDHP
Bella Vista PPO Buy Up
$
%
$
%
$
$50.05
30%
$98.48
26%
$133.82
$506.00
70%
$229.80
74%
$375.11
30%
$196.75
35%
$374.24
70%
$459.10
65%
$694.63
$138.15
30%
$176.98
35%
$338.80
$629.00
70%
$412.95
65%
$628.29
$244.08
30%
$270.53
35%
$533.76
$1,041.00
70%
$631.22
65%
$993.19

Rogers

18%
82%
19%
81%

Rogers

%
100%
0%

$
$24.20
$0.00

100%
0%
100%
0%

$45.98
$0.00
$61.33
$0.00

DENTAL PREMIUM COST SHARES
Springdale
Bella Vista Low
%
$
%
$
30%
$9.12
18%
$4.72
70%
$21.29
82%
$21.48
30%
$19.03
27%
$14.90
70%
$44.41
73%
$40.34
30%
$17.11
27%
$18.16
70%
$39.93
73%
$49.12
30%
$29.07
27%
$28.06
70%
$67.84
73%
$75.86

Bella Vista PPO Basic
%
$
15%
$68.50
85%
$374.09
25%
$235.30
75%
$694.15
25%
$213.08
75%
$627.88
25%
$335.28
75%
$992.52

Bella Vista High
%
$
28%
$8.12
72%
$21.48
35%
$22.16
65%
$40.34
31%
$22.12
69%
$49.12
32%
$36.24
68%
$75.86

Bella Vista HDHP Centerton
%
$
16%
$58.80
84%
$317.37
25%
$200.28
75%
$589.66
25%
$181.38
75%
$533.33
25%
$285.24
75%
$843.25

NOARK Study
%
$
18%
$81.44
82%
$382.81
33%
$251.65
67%
$518.01
30%
$185.57
70%
$437.72
33%
$377.98
67%
$753.10

Siloam Springs HDHP
%
$
11%
$41.24
89%
$343.65
11%
$87.30
89%
$727.70
11%
$87.30
89%
$727.70
11%
$130.92
89%
$1,090.94

Centerton

NOARK Study
%
$
52%
$13.79
48%
$12.95
61%
$32.09
39%
$20.78
67%
$36.45
33%
$17.88
64%
$53.36
36%
$29.87

Siloam Springs
%
$
100%
$27.00
100%

$56.84

100%

$56.84

100%

$104.72

Siloam Springs Chamber of Commerce ‐ City Economic Development Report
Quarter 3 2022 ( July‐Sept 31, 2022)
HOURS
Hours
Date

Description

7/1/2022

Opportunity Arkansas Bootcamp‐LT; lawyers
from Little Rock‐LT

7/1/2022

Opportunity Arkansas Bootcamp‐LT; lawyers
from Little Rock‐AH

7/5/2022
7/7/2022
7/8/2022
7/11/2022
7/11/2022
7/12/2022
7/12/2022
7/13/2022
7/14/2022
7/15/2022
7/18/2022
7/18/2022
7/18/2022
7/20/2022
7/21/2022
7/21/2022
7/22/2022
7/22/2022
7/25/2022

Weekly Newsletter and Business Share ‐ JH
Survey to over 500 businesses at NW Council
Request Econ Dev and Follow up
worked with Simmons Foods on obtaining
new office space locations‐ah
Discover Siloam Events ‐ JH
Met with Chinese Delegation NW Council in
Fayetteville with Walmart, JB Hunt, and
Simmons Leadership
Weekly Newsletter and Business Share ‐ JH
Gave 2000 masks to CPG from Chamber
Downtown Breakfast Beat‐LT
NW Council Annual Meeting
City Employee Appreciation Cooking and Pool
Party
Weekly Newsletter and Business Share ‐ JH
Discover Siloam Events ‐ JH
Sent Phillip list/ answers to questions for big
company Burke; econ dev
NW Council Meeting Chamber Presidents
Springdale
City Econ Dev Meeting‐ Phillip, Stacy, Don etc
Work with Police Dept on Active Shooter
Training seminar, collecting funds for Stop
the Bleed Kits
HR Roundtable ‐ Workforce
Discussion/Brainstorming‐LT
HR Round Table ‐25 businesses
Weekly Newsletter and Business Share ‐ JH

1Q 2021 Chamber Report

#1
AEDC

#2
NWAEDD

#5 Local and #6 Local, state,
#4 City Econ
#7 Eco Dev.
#3 NW
Regional Eco and regional eco
Dev
Data Analysis
Council
Dev Conf and devo partner
Attendance
related work
Tradeshows
related work

4

1
4
4

60
2
1
2

3

2
2

60
4
2

2
1
4

60
1.5

3

2

Expenses

4

2
2
1

1.5

Miles

2

1

4

Supplies,
postage related Marketing/
Eco Dev.
Admin.
to Eco Dev.
Advertising
Travel
Expense
Welcome
for Eco Dev.
packets

2

2
4

2
1
2
3
4

#8 Community/
Commercial
Services and
Business dev.
related work

4

2

4
4

EXPENSES

3
2
2
2
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7/25/2022

7/25/2022
7/26/2022
7/27/2022
7/27/2022
7/27/2022
7/28/2022
7/28/2022
7/29/2022
7/29/2022
8/2/2022

Meeting with Ron with NW Council in Siloam‐
Regional Innovation Engine‐ NSF $160 Million
Meeting with NW Health leadership over the
region on Healthcare econ dev and Siloam
Opportunities
Meeting with Phillip and Nick Bachelor
Simmons‐ Golf Course
Discover Siloam Events ‐ JH
NWAEDD Meeing annual/ Harrison
work on candidate forum for city
Candidate forum and prep and clean up
Wataburger groundbreaking with Mayor etc.
Helped Insight Hypnosis LLC formation
State chamber meeting in fayetteville: state
Weekly Newsletter and Business Share ‐ JH

8/3/2022

Western Benton County Meeting‐ Mark
Simmons, Delia, etc.‐ Gentry

8/4/2022

CEO Roundtable‐ah

8/4/2022
8/4/2022
8/5/2022
8/8/2022
8/8/2022

Back to school Breakfast
CEO Round Table‐ Golf Course discussion
Endura Park Apartments/Townhomes Tour‐
Meeting with Dept of Rehab and Ar
Workforce Dev in Fay
Weekly Newsletter and Business Share ‐ JH
Community Relations Meeting

8/8/2022

Helped Insight Hypnosis business Dev

8/9/2022
8/10/2022
8/12/2022

Golf course meeting with phillip, brian, curtis
Downtown Breakfast Beat‐LT
CTE Business Partners Conference‐LT

8/16/2022

Weekly Newsletter and Business Share ‐ JH

8/5/2022

8/16/2022

Burk Collins Econ Dev‐ presentation and prep

8/17/2022

Discover Siloam Events ‐ JH

8/17/2022

ARI Process Modernization Introduction‐LT

8/17/2022
8/17/2022
8/18/2022
8/22/2022
8/23/2022
8/24/2022

Ar Rural impact ZOOM with Don Clark‐ah
Chamber Presidents Meeting Springdale
Western Benton County meeting with Mark
Western Benton County Meeting
Meeting with Mark Simmons and Ron
SHRPA Introduction (Discuss opportunities to

1Q 2021 Chamber Report

1

1

1.75

1.75

1
1
1
2
4
1
1
2.5
2
2.75

1
1

1

2
4
1
1

2.5

2

2.75

$

50.00 Registration

12

2

2

4
2
1
2

4
2
1

2
1
1

2

2
1

60

1

1.25
2
3
2

1.25

2

3
2

4

4
1

1
1
1
3.5
1
1
1
1

60

1
3.5

1
1
1
1
1

60
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8/24/2022

Formulated western benton county lett to
community leaders

8/25/2022

Discover Siloam Events ‐ JH

1.5
1.5
1

8/28/22‐8/30/22 AEDC Conference in Little Rock
8/29/2022
Discover Siloam Events ‐ JH
8/30/2022
Weekly Newsletter and Business Share ‐ JH
9/6/2022
Weekly Newsletter and Business Share ‐ JH
9/6/2022
Discover Siloam Events ‐ JH
9/7/2022
Meeting with AEDC to discuss Bio‐
9/8/2022

Discover Siloam Events ‐ JH

9/8/2022
9/9/2022
9/12/2022

Chamber Presidents Meeting Springdale‐ be
Assisted new business start up Hannah Sky
Eforall business judging of business plans

9/13/2022

Weekly Newsletter and Business Share ‐ JH

9/13/2022
9/14/2022
9/15/2022
9/15/2022
9/20/2022
9/27/2022
9/30/2020

Western Benton Co Consultant Meeting
Western Benton Co Meeting with Mark
Econ Dev Meeting Phillip and Don
Woka Park meeting with Mayor Nations and
Weekly Newsletter and Business Share ‐ JH
Weekly Newsletter and Business Share ‐ JH
Econ Development Roundtable, Rogers, AR

Expense
Expense

Total
Hotel AEDC State
Econ Dev Registration

Total

Hours

1Q 2021 Chamber Report

24
2
2
2
1
3
1

1
24

358.74 hotel

$

408.74

1
1.25

1

1

2

1
1
1
1
2
2
1.5

163.5
358.74
$50

$

2
2

1

3

1.25
1
1
2

$

430

2

1
1

1

1
2
2

1.5

27

1

15.75

3.5

4.25

48.75

5

58.25

60

0

0

0

0

862

163.5

163.5
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Main Street Quarterly Reports Dated 9-30-22
Main Street shall provide written detailed descriptions of work, expenses, and all other success used to measure itsperformance measures:

Hours

Expenses

1. Coordination of the Downtown & Connectivity Master Plan:
Support City staff in organizing and facilitating all meetings and projects as appropriate and
related to Master
Plan project
implementation.
Actively participate in social media, communication
and outreach
strategies
related to
Master Plan projects and implementation.

5

$82.50

2. Historic Preservation
Provide info, education, support concerning Historic Design & Style

6.5

$107.64

Assist downtown property owners with grant apps for restoration….

3

$49.68

Prepare all reports required by DAH, Natl Trust for Historic Pres, Main Street AR

10

$165.60

Social media component for promotion of revitalization and historic preservation

4

$66.24

3. Economic development of downtown Siloam Springs.
Develop and conduct ongoing public awareness and education programs designed to enhance
0.5
appreciation of the downtown’s assets while fostering an understanding of MSSS program goals and
Undertake
158
objectives joint activities w/community partners, special events, parking, bus recruit
Provide education, training, support to entrepreneurs and businesses
3

$49.68

Track and provide real estate information and stats to potential new investors

7.5

$124.20

Attend trainings as required by Main Street Arkansas and Natl Main Street Center

64

$1,059.80

Encourage cooperative climate between downtown interests & local public officials

3

$49.68

Help build strong and productive working relationships with appropriate public agencies at the local, regional and state levels.

2

$33.12

Coordinate public event calendar and approval w/City for events held in hist district

6

$99.36

Produce and direct evnts to include but not limited to…FM, GNO, Inivgorate

245

$4,057.20

$8.28
$2,616.48

4. Public event production, coordination and administration.

5. General administration.
Dev & maintain systems to track process/progress of MSSS programs/initiatives

25

$414.00

Provide a quarterly, written, detailed report w/hours & expenses to City Board

5

$82.80

Totals

547.5

$9,066.26

MSSS_2022 City Contract Report with detailed descriptions_Q3
Downtown and Connectivity Master Plan Communication &
Coordination:
Support City staff in organizing and facilitating all meetings and projects as appropriate
and related to Master Plan project implementation.

● Actively participate in social media, communication and outreach strategies
related to Master Plan projects and implementation.

Historic Preservation:
Provide information, education and support to property and business owners in the
Historic District on design & style

● Worked with 2 Gals Junk and State Preservation Techs on proper repair of brick
on their building; Researched ways to clean graffiti from historic
buildings;requested additional patrols downtown at night; discussion with Mark
Miller at MSA about using DTR Grant funds to put together a graffiti removal
kit;Lead monthly Design Committee meeting; determine use of DTR Grant funds
to promote and support local downtown businesses; communicate to businesses
the services available through Main Street Arkansas; Started researching solar
motion lights and outdoor cameras; received approval from MSA to use DTR
Funds to put together graffiti removal kit and to offer mini grants to downtown
business/building owners to purchase motion lights and cameras to help deter
graffiti
Assist downtown property owners in seeking out and applying for all applicable grants
and funding opportunities related to building restoration and rehabilitation, including
competitive funding from the Arkansas Historic Preservation Program, and state and
national historic preservation tax credit programs

● Assisted Don Clark with historic preservation for mausoleum at Oak Hill
Cemetery to include facilitating a local meeting with state preservation
techs and giving them a tour of the mausoleum; preservation techs visited
Moss House to check on needed repairs and qualifications for Historic
Preservation Restoration Grant

Prepare all reports required by the Department of Arkansas Heritage, the National Trust
for Historic Preservation, and Main Street Arkansas to keep accreditation as a Main
Street program and eligibility for Main Street grants

● Complete info for FY2023 Downtown Revitalization Grant contract with
Main Street Arkansas(MSA);Prepare monthly reinvestment report for MSA
to include gathering data from downtown business owners; Prepare Q1
FY2023 DTR Grant report; gather documentation , scan, submit to grant
report site; Prepare monthly reinvestment report for MSA to include
gathering data from downtown business owners
Social media component for promotion of revitalization and historic preservation

●Minute in History research, prep, video, Then & Now QR system design,
Newsletter, website updates to Then & Now/building/businesses
Develop and conduct ongoing public awareness and education programs designed to
enhance appreciation of the downtown’s assets while fostering an understanding of MSSS
program goals and objectives.

● Main Street Board President spoke to regional Chambers of Commerce about
the revitalization of downtown Siloam Springs

Undertake joint activities with community partners to encourage and support
promotional events, advertising, special events, business recruitment, retention and
expansion, and parking management

● KNWA morning show interviews promoting downtown and the SS community
events and activities; Work with CACHE and Lucas Cowan on artist contracts for
new round of art sculptures on Broadway; communications with U of A art dept
and students about final designs and next steps; worked with Jerry Cavness from
American Legion on parade permit, newsletter submission to the Chamber and
MS newsletters; Cross promotion with Plein Air festival, cross promotion with the
Hispanic Heritage Festival, Cross Promotion with Chalk it up, Billboard Design,
Event Promotion for Chamber/businesses/city, Social Media Posts Sharing for
partners/businesses/city/MSA, Art Installation, Public Art promotion/social media
posts, MSSS website upadates- businesses, events, public art, etc., Professional
Business Posts

Provide education on successful downtown management and training and support to
entrepreneurs and businesses

● Breakfast Beat meeting - prepare agenda, facilitate meeting, send notes
to all downtown businesses

Track and provide real estate information and statistics to potential new investors

●Assist Jared Briles with finding a new work space; assist Prime Care Medical
in finding a new space to move to downtown; Update Maestro with available
properties for lease/sale; communicate information to those who inquire
about available properties; communicate with Business Recruitment; check
in with owners of available properties to see if status has changed

Attend trainings as required by Main Street Arkansas and the National Main Street
Center
● MSA Required quarterly training; Building Codes on Main Street
workshop; Two staff members attended Destination Downtown, North
Little Rock, a 3 day training
Encourage a cooperative climate between downtown interests and local
public officials

● Encourage downtown stakeholders to attend board meetings or email
w/questions/concerns; Chamber Board Meetings
Coordinate public event calendar and coordinate approval with City entities for all public
realm events held within the National Register Historic District
● Work with Chamber, Museum, Parks & Rec to coordinate event calendars

Produce and direct events that include, but are not limited to, the Saturday
Farmers Market and related activities, Girls’ Night Out Series, Invigorate
Seminar Series, Tap Into History, Homegrown Festival, and Holiday Open
House. In addition to these major activities, MSSS will also continue to look for
means to attract people into the downtown area of Siloam Springs

● FM Design/ Promotion, Kids Day Design /Promotion; Vendor Orientation,Saturday

Online Pick-Up Prep, Committee/Volunteer/Vendor Communications, Graphic
Design for GNO; Updating/Maintaining Online Market, Customer
Communication; Promo/Events Committee Meetings: specifically discussing
GNO, Decide Goody Bags/giveaways, Social Media Schedule Created, Graphic
Design, Secure an Opening Reception Location, Order Balloons, Order Goody
Bag Items, Giveaway items, Giveaway Baskets Created, Google Form for
Giveaway, QR Code for Giveaway; Prep/Stuff Goody Bags, Hand Out Balloons,
Set-up Opening Reception Location, GNO Event:Take Picture, Visit with
Participating Businesses, Draw Giveaway Winners, Clean-up; Homegrown
Monthly Committee Meeting: Jurying Vendor, Food Trucks, Nonprofits, Music
applications; Farmers Market Posts, Stories; Girls Night Out Save the Date,
Professional Business Posts; Entering debits/credits for FM accts; Steering
Committee Meeting: Vetting applications, Vendor Communication, Farm Visits,
Online Market Updates, Weekly market map, Samples of the Season Planning;
Saturday Online Pick-Up Prep, Committee/Volunteer/Vendor Communications,
Updating/Maintaining Online Market, Customer Communication; Saturday market
execution - set up, tear down, managing Kids Day and Two Bite Club, Samples
of the Season cooking demos
Develop and maintain data systems to track process and progress of MSSS programs
and initiatives
● City Contract Hour Tracking Spreadsheet, Timesheet, Weekly Schedule Planning,
Maestro Work Plans
Provide a quarterly written report on downtown economic and event activity as achieved in
pertinence to this contract to the Siloam Springs Board of Directors, including the tracking,
logging, and reporting of hours and expenses directly related to the expenditure of the Contract
Funds

● Logging hours for City Contract, updating work plans, detailed documentation of
work being completed (4 staff members)

Museum Society Quarterly Reports
Dated: JULY - SEPTEMBER
Museum shall provide written detailed descriptions of work, expenses, and all other related data
used to measure its success related to the following performance measures:
Hours

1. Educational events, outreach, and fieldtrip programs:
July Kids Day at Farmers Mkt
August Kids Day at Farmers Mkt
September Kids Day at Farmers Mkt
Plein Air Art Show and Sale – scheduled for October thru January

2. Written documentation regarding fully staffed Board and regular board
meetings: Board members are: Allen Kimbrough, Alan Lamb, Jan
McGuirk, David Jones, Carla Wasson.
Board Meeting, July 21, 2022, 6:00 P.M.
Members present: Allen Kimbrough, David Jones, Carla Wasson, Alan
Lamb, Jan McGuirk.

Board Meeting: August 25, 6:00 pm Members present: Allen
Kimbrough, David Jones, Carla Wasson, Jan McGuirk
Board Meeting September 15, 6:00 pm, Members present: Allen
Kimbrough, David Jones, Carla Wasson, Alan Lamb, Jan McGuirk,
returning member Missy Morris

3. Development of three (3) year strategic plan: There are 4 areas of
emphasis for the strategic plan. Each of them is related and as we
move through the year the board will intentionally focus on each
phase.
Phase 1 – Finances and fundraising
established 1st set of goals
Phase 2 – Staff and volunteers
Phase 3 – Strengthen Board: created Board notebook and
orientation (4), add new member (1)
Phase 4 – Publicity & Marketing

2021 Museum Society Service Contract – 2nd of 4 Possible Renewals

Expenses

4
4
4
2

$120.00
$120.00
$120.00
$60.00

14

$420.00

3.5

$105.00

1

$30.00

3.5
8

$105.00
$240.00

2
2

$60.00
$60.00

4
3
11

$120.00
$90.00
$330.00
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4. Summary of patrons and donations:
Donations from visitors:
Patrons visiting: July 68 August 75 Sept 62 Total: 205
Books sold: Images of American – Siloam Springs by Don Warden
Received donation from Simmons Foods: $5,000.00

5. Summary of fundraising activities and new members:
Annual Tap into History event – Oct 15, Meet the founders
Increased the number of books written by Don Warden

6. Summary of grants researched and applied for:
Department of Arkansas Heritage – see additional page with notes
Small Museum GrantsArkansas Heritage Grant – for the Siloam Springs Heritage Festival

7. Summary of expenses related to contract objectives:
1. Educational events, outreach, and fieldtrip programs:
2. Written documentation regarding fully staffed Board and regular board
meetings:
3. Development of three (3) year strategic plan
4. Summary of patrons and donations
5. Summary of fundraising activities and new members:
6. Summary of grants researched and applied for:
8. Development of partnerships with other historic institutions, city
departments, and community organizations.
9. Demonstration of focused approach to operation of history museum:
10. Summary of management duties:

8. Development of partnerships with other historic institutions, city
departments, and community organizations.
Partnering with Main Street, The Center for the Arts, and Park House
Kitchen + Bar for annual event (see list of fundraising activities)

2021 Museum Society Service Contract – 2nd of 4 Possible Renewals

51.25

$1,537.50

15
2

$450.00
$60.00

17

$510.00

4

$120.00

Hours

Expenses

14

$420.00

8
11
51.25
17
4

$240.00
$330.00
$1537.50
$510.00
$120.00

5
5.5

$150.00
$165.00

7
122.75

$210.00
$3,846.50

5

$150.00
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9. Demonstration of focused approach to operation of history museum:
Meet with President of the board to discuss membership drive
Discussed/prepared report to City Board regarding contract for 2023.

10. Summary of management duties:
Met with building maintenance on leak from back wall of building.
Preparing reports
Review membership list and develop new membership benefits.

1.5
4
5.5
11

$45.00
$120.00
$165.00
$330.00

1
3
3
7

$30.00
$90.00
$90.00
$210.00

NOTES AND COMMENTS:
This has been a unique time for museum staff. Due to a fall in July, Mary has limited her hours
at the museum. Some work has been done from home.
Don was out for 1 week for surgery. For most of the quarter he has been carrying the load this
quarter.
There is a big event that is scheduled for October 15. Hoping that many of you can attend.
Tap into History – Meet the Founders. This is a wonderful collaboration between Main Street,
Center for the Arts and The Park House Kitchen + Bar. The Park House has been the driving
force in providing the venue and getting everyone on board.
The Siloam Springs Museum has received a few donations during this last quarter.
One is a unique collection of memorabilia from Mike Rabb’s estate. Mike recently passed away
and his family donated several boxes of items to the museum. Mike had a big heart for all things
Siloam Springs. Our thoughts and prayers are with his family.
The Simmons Foods corporation has generously donated $5,000.00 to the museum. This will be
a yearly donation for the next 5 years. We are grateful for all that Simmons provides for our
community.
Grants we have reviewed are:
1. The Division of Arkansas Heritage Small Museum Grant. This grant is for small
exhibits with a maximum award of $2,500.00. The museum has received this in the past.
2. Arkansas Heritage Grant is a larger grant up to $5,000.00 and would be used to support
the Heritage Festival that has been held the last 2 years. We would like to see this
Festival continue.
Submitted by:
Mary Nolan,
Director of Operations
October 7, 2022

2021 Museum Society Service Contract – 2nd of 4 Possible Renewals
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CITY OF SILOAM SPRINGS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
2021-2022 GOALS
Adopted: July 7, 2020
3 Q 2022 Update (10/13/2022)
rd

Growth
Goal Statement
A. Develop annexation strategies and policies.
Objective
A.1

Analysis:

Timeline:
Measurement:
Progress:

Assigned to:

Encourage voluntarily and fiscally sound annexations. Consider using other
forms of annexation (election/enclave) when voluntary annexations may not
be feasible.
Research all existing annexation policies, including policies related to the
extension of utilities. Draft policies requiring annexation, if possible, when
extending utilities. Work with property owners to discuss benefits of
annexation and review fiscal impacts of future annexations.
Ongoing. Progress updates will be provided.
Annexation proposals.
1st Q 2021: On 02/02/21 the Board approved Ord. 21-01 annexing 30 acres
off N. County Club for the Mission Hills subdivision.
2nd Q 2021: On 05/04/21 the Board approved Ord. 21-06 annexing 25 acres
at 23,006 Lawlis Road. Staff continues to discuss various annexations with
property owners and additional annexations will be presented to the board
later this year.
3rd Q 2021: On 7/6/21 the Board approved Ord 21-11 annexing 12 acres in
the 21,100 block of Highway 16, and Ord. 21-12 annexing 22 acres in the
23,300 block of Raines Road. On 8/3/21 the Board approved Ord 21-14
annexing 37 acres in the 15,000 block of Highway 59. As always, staff
continues to have conversations with various property owners about future
annexations. To date, 126 acres have been annexed in 2021.
4th Q 2021: Ord. 21-22 annexing 54 acres in the NE corner of the intersection
of Airport Road and Hwy 412 was tabled on November 2nd to February 1,
2022.
1st Q 2022: Ord 21-22 was approved on March 1st annexing the 54 acres
referenced above. Staff continues to have conversations with various
property owners about future annexations. To date, 180 acres have been
annexed since January 2021.
3rd Q 2022: On August 16th Ord. 22-20 was approved annexing 14 acres off
Hwy 16, and Ord.22-22 was approved annexing 1.96 acres on Carousel Drive.
To date, 196 acres have been annexed since January 2021.
Phillip Patterson, City Administrator, and Don Clark, Community
Development Director

3rd Q 2022 Update 2021-2022 Board Goals
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Economic Development
Goal Statement
B. Increase job opportunities and sales tax revenue by encouraging new businesses to locate in
Siloam Springs and expanding existing businesses.
Objective
B.1

Analysis:

Timeline:
Measurement:
Progress:

Focus economic development efforts on attracting entrepreneurs/startup
companies, small and large tech companies, new retail, and primary
manufacturing jobs.
Staff will work with the Chamber of Commerce, Main Street Siloam Springs,
AEDC, and the City’s retail consultant to develop a promotional campaign to
advertise that the City has to offer and programs to attract the desired jobs.
Ongoing. Progress updates will be provided.
Increased number of businesses, jobs, and sales tax revenues.
1st Q 2021: In addition to Sam’s Furniture opening in January 2021, with 9
new jobs, 10 additional business licenses were issued in the 1st quarter of
2021. One of these is Tugg Logistics which includes 30 employees.
2nd Q 2021: A total of 40 new business licenses were issued during the 2nd
quarter 2021 (18 for commercial businesses; 2 for food trucks; and 20 for
home occupations). Total number of employees listed with the 18 new
commercial businesses is 117. Notable new businesses include: 7 Brew
Coffee; Phoenix Rose Staffing; Top Dog Grooming; Bariola’s Pizzeria; and
Eat My Catfish.
3rd Q 2021: A total of 15 new business licenses were issued in the 3rd quarter:
8 for home occupations and 7 for new commercial establishments. The most
notable new businesses include: Arch and Axe, WRP Enterprises, LLC
(shipping company), and Burke’s Outlet. These last two (2) businesses both
listed a total of 10 new employees each.
4th Q 2021: A total of 5 new business licenses were issued in the 4th quarter.
All but one were for home-based businesses or food trucks. Staff continues
to have discussions with various restaurants, retailers, and other
commercial/industrial companies who are showing an interest in locating in
Siloam Springs.
1st Q 2022: Staff continues to work with various commercial developers
looking to do projects in the City. Attached to this goal update is a listing of
business licenses issued in the 1st quarter of 2022 as well as a listing of the
current status of various projects that have recently been approved by the City
Board.
2nd Q 2022: Staff continues to work on various potential developments and
is currently working with a commercial developer on an approximate 55,000
square foot building for three (3) new retailers. More information will be
presented to the Board in the 3rd quarter regarding this potential development.
Attached to this goal update is a listing of business licenses issued in the 2nd
quarter of 2022 as well as a listing of the current status of various projects that
have recently been approved by the City Board.

3rd Q 2022 Update 2021-2022 Board Goals
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Assigned to:

3rd Q 2022: On August 16th the Board approved an economic development
agreement for a new 50,000+ SF retail center for 3 new retailers that will
increase sales tax revenue and increase jobs within the City. A total of 259
dwelling units (141 SF; 52 duplex; and 66 MF) have been permitted through
the 3rd Q 2022, compared to 323 dwelling units (175 SF and 148 MF) during
the same time frame last year. Attached to this goal update is a listing of
business licenses issued in the 3rd quarter of 2022 as well as the summary of
various projects that have recently been approved by the Board.
Phillip Patterson, City Administrator, and Don Clark, Community
Development Director

Quality of Life
Goal Statement
C. Develop new and continue to enhance existing cultural facilities, events, and programs that
strengthen Siloam Springs’ quality of life, community character, cultural diversity, and
image.
Objective
C.1
Analysis:

Timeline:
Measurement:
Progress:

Provide a broad range of artistic, multi-cultural, and multi-generational
activities and events as part of City recreational and community events
Staff will review and categorize all existing, regularly scheduled, ongoing,
city-sponsored, and non-city sponsored events. Based on the categorizations,
staff will identify areas of need for more artistic, multi-cultural, and multigenerational activities/events.
2nd quarter 2021
The results of staff’s analysis will be presented to the Board as either a Staff
Report or as part of a Board Workshop.
2nd Q 2021: Staff provided an overview of activities to the Board on May 18,
2021, with a recommendation that the City needs to add more senior and
multi-cultural events. Staff will include such events in 2022 subject to Board
increasing events budget.
3rd Q 2021: Staff included additional funding for city events in the 2022
budget.
1st Q 2022: Staff continues to work to diversify programming at Memorial
Park and beyond. This year we are adding a Hispanic Heritage Festival and a
number of shows that are appropriate for multi-generations and seniors. In
addition, we are working to promote events in both English and Spanish.
Some shows that are multi-generational include: Siloam Springs Center for
the Arts live theatre, country artist Bobby Degonia, the Siloam Springs
Heritage Festival, Walton Arts Center Brass Band, the Siloam Springs
Community Band, singer-songwriter Traci Manos, NWA Ballet Theatre,
Opera in the Ozarks, Crystal Bridges’ CB2U, and more.
2nd Q 2022: City staff is currently working on a Hispanic heritage festival
scheduled for Saturday, September 17, 2022, at Memorial Park. We are
planning to have arts, performances, live music, and food vendors.

3rd Q 2022 Update 2021-2022 Board Goals
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Assigned to:

3rd Q 2022: The Hispanic Heritage Festival was held on September 17th at
Memorial Park and had an attendance of over 1,000.
Holland Hayden, Communications Manager, and Travis Chaney, Parks
Manager

D. Improve the water quality of Sager Creek and recognize its economic and quality of life
potential.
Objective
D.1

Analysis:

Timeline:
Measurement:
Progress:

Continue improving and developing Sager Creek and its park environs based
on the historical context, its economic potential, flooding and safety issues,
water quality issues, and its positive impact on downtown.
There have been numerous studies of Sager Creek dating back as early as
2001. Currently, a consulting engineering firm is completing a study of the
creek’s deteriorating rock lined walls, and the impacts of the creek’s eroding
of its natural rock banks. Upon the completion of this study, staff will
convene, subject to Board approval, a committee of property owners adjacent
to the downtown creek and residents to review all existing studies and develop
a recommendation to the Board for how to best improve and develop Sager
Creek in downtown.
3rd quarter 2021 (Committee recommendation to Board)
Staff will recommend membership of committee to Board. The committee
will make formal recommendation to Board.
1st Q 2021: Final report from engineer is to be issued in April 2021. In May
2021, staff will present a nomination for committee members to the Board for
confirmation.
2nd Q 2021: Staff will be recommending committee membership to Board in
August 2021.
3rd Q 2021: The proposed membership of the committee was presented to the
Board on 8/17/21. Based on the Board’s feedback, staff published a public
notice on 8/29/21 to increase the number of committee members by two (2).
The proposed membership was submitted to the Board on 10/5/21 and
approved. Staff will begin scheduling meetings of the committee.
4th Q 2021: The Sager Creek Advisory Committee has met twice with a 3rd
meeting scheduled for January 13th, at which time they will be discussing the
recommendations and the priorities. Staff is planning on potentially a fourth
meeting after that and then will bring the recommendation of the committee
to the Board.
1st Q 2022: The advisory committee is planning on presenting its
recommendations and plans to the City Board in June.
2nd Q 2022: The advisory committee is scheduled to present its
recommendations to the City Board on July 15, 2022.
3rd Q 2022: The committee presented its recommendations to the City Board
on July 15th. Staff has included monies in the proposed 2023 budget to
address the top priorities, which include stabilizing the bank overhang and
making repairs to the dam.
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Assigned to:

Travis Chaney, Parks Manager and Don Clark, Community Development
Director

E. Measure the satisfaction of residents regarding various city facilities and services.
Objective
E.1
Analysis:

Timeline:
Measurement:

Progress:

Assigned to:

Conduct citizen surveys on a regular intervals.
Citizen surveys are a kind of opinion poll that asks residents for their
perspectives on local issues, such as the quality of life, level of satisfaction
with the community and/or local government, etc. Some cities conduct
surveys in-house while others use third-party consultants. In order for the
survey results to be used by staff, elected officials, and other stakeholder
groups, the survey must be a statistically valid survey of resident opinions.
3rd quarter 2021 2nd quarter 2022 3rd Q 2022
Staff will research the pros and cons of in-house vs. third-party surveys,
including costs, and results will be presented to the Board as either a Staff
Report or as part of a Board Workshop so that any funding can be included in
the 2022 budget.
3rd Q 2021: Due to the proposed feasibility study for a municipal broadband,
and the citizen survey that will accompany that study, staff believes that any
general citizen survey would be best to occur after the broadband citizen
survey so this issue is being deferred to the 2nd quarter of 2022. Staff is
proposing funding for a general citizen survey as part of the 2022 budget.
3rd Q 2022: Staff presented a proposal to the Board on September 6th for a
community wide statistically valid survey. Staff is currently working with the
vendor to conduct the survey this fall.
Holland Hayden, Communications Manager Phillip Patterson, City
Administrator

Housing
Goal Statement
F. Increase housing opportunities within Siloam Springs, especially for workforce and market
rate housing that meets the economic and social needs of the City.
Objective
F.1

Analysis:

Timeline:
Measurement:

Support residential development that improves the spectrum of housing needs
in Siloam Springs, which includes first-time home buyer housing, entry-level,
mid-level, and executive level employee housing, and senior housing, by
providing a variety of housing types, prices, styles and sizes.
Staff will conduct a housing analysis to identify opportunities and challenges
for housing in Siloam Springs. The goal of the housing analysis is to conduct
an assessment of the levels of housing availability to help formulate priorities,
policy options, land use, and zoning decisions.
3rd quarter 2021
The results of staff’s analysis and will be presented to the Board as either a
Staff Report or as part of a Board Workshop.
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Progress:

Assigned to:

3rd Q 2021: Staff conducted their analysis of two (2) 12-months periods (July
2020 - June 2021 and July 2019 – June 2020) and presented the findings to
the Board on 10/5/21. Staff will include the analysis’s conclusions as part of
the Comprehensive Plan update.
Ben Rhoads, Senior Planner, and Don Clark, Community Development
Director

Streets
Goal Statement
G. Siloam Springs needs to strategically maintain its transportation system by targeting roadway
improvements that address major deficiencies and maintains street surface ratings of fair to
good rather than critical or lost.
Objectives
G.1
Analysis:

Timeline:
Measurement:
Progress:

Assigned to:

G.2
Analysis:

Timeline:
Measurement:
Progress:

Accelerate street repairs and street rebuilds by leveraging existing street funds
with grants and other funding opportunities.
Staff will review existing funding levels and will develop options to leverage
existing funds to accelerate street improvements. Staff will also review
options for additional funding.
2nd Quarter 2021
The results of staff’s analysis will be presented to the Board as either a Staff
Report or as part of a Board Workshop
2nd Q 2021: Staff will be presenting an overview of options for leveraging
existing funds at a Board workshop on July 20, 2021.
3rd Q 2021: Staff presented options to accelerate street rebuilds to the Board
at a workshop on 7/20/21. Many options were presented, and further
discussion will need to occur based on the Board’s feedback.
Christina Petriches, Finance Director, and Phillip Patterson, City
Administrator
Complete improvements to Lake Frances Drive.
Part 1: Staff will design full completion of Lake Francis Drive improvements
and develop estimated costs, and possibly develop phasing plan for
installation of improvements. Part 2: Staff will construct improvements.
Part 1: 3rd quarter 2021; Part 2: 3rd quarter 2022
Part 1: Staff will include cost of improvements in the 2022 budget; Part 2:
Construct improvements.
3rd Q 2021: Staff is close to completing the engineering design and once that
is completed, staff will be completing the bid specifications. Due to in-house
street rebuilds taking longer than anticipated during the last couple of years,
some street maintenance projects have not been able to be completed. For
this reason, staff is proposing to have this street project be completed by a
private company in 2022 rather than city crews. This will allow city crews to
catch up on previously deferred street maintenance. Staff is proposing
funding in the 2022 budget for this.
1st Q 2022: Staff has been working on the engineering design and is planning
to bid out the project in May or June, and proceed with construction thereafter.
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Assigned to:

2nd Q 2022: Staff is finalizing the design with the intent of letting the project
for bid before the end of September.
3rd Q 2022: Staff published the bid specifications for the project in late
September with a response deadline of October 21st. Once the bids are
received and reviewed staff will bring the proposal to the Board for approval
Justin Bland, City Engineer, Don Clark, Community Development Director,
Steve Gorszczyk, Public Works Director, and Christina Petriches, Finance
Director

Finance
Goal Statement
H. The City will maintain a broad-based, well-diversified portfolio of general fund revenues and
the revenue burden will be focused on sales and property taxes, user fees, and enterprise fund
transfer fees.
Objective
H.1
Analysis:

Timeline:
Measurement:
Progress:

Assigned to:

Fees for general fund services should cover a majority of the cost of such
service.
Review costs of individual services provided, review existing fees, and
compare existing fees with those charged by similar and competing
municipalities.
4th Quarter 2021 2nd Quarter 2022 2023-2024 Goals
The results of staff’s analysis will be presented to the Board as either a Staff
Report or as part of a Board Workshop, along with a staff recommendation.
3rd Q 2021: Staff has begun collecting information from various other cities
for comparison purposes.
4th Q 2021: Staff has collected fee data from a total of eight (8) cities in NW
Arkansas and across the state. Staff is currently reviewing the data and
attempting to assemble it for comparison purposes.
2nd Q 2022: Due to issues such as the Broadband Study, the Utility
Commission, the 1-cent sales tax split, the PSAP consolidation, and the
SSWRC land staff has not been able to fully review and analysis the fee data
previously collected. The Board’s 2023-2024 goals will include an objective
to reduce the General Funds dependency on utility transfers and consider of
ways to increase GF revenue. For these reasons, staff wishes to push this
objective to the 2023-2024 goals.
Christina Petriches, Finance Director, and Phillip Patterson, City
Administrator

Planning
Goal Statement
I. Improve placemaking and downtown design through regulatory means.
Objective
I.1
Create a unified development code that includes a form-based or hybrid code for the
historic downtown commercial area.
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Analysis:

Timeline:

Measurement:

Progress:

Assigned to:

A unified development code combines traditional zoning and subdivision
regulations, along with other desired city regulations such as sign regulations,
floodplain and stormwater management, landscape regulations. Form-based
codes differ from traditional zoning in that they prescribe specific urban
design standards and place fewer restrictions on land use. In addition, many
cities use hybrid codes, which combine elements of form-based codes with
traditional zoning, for unique local conditions. Staff will consultant with
various professional planning firms to develop an idea of the cost to hire a
consulting firm to assist with the development of such a code, and develop a
road map for planning, adoption, and implementation of such code.
Project will start after the completion of the Comprehensive Plan Update.
Projected start is late 2021 or early 2022, and completion is projected in 4th
quarter 2022.
Report preliminary budget findings to Board. Subject to funding, hire
consultant to assist with drafting codes. Final measurement is to submit
proposed code to Board for approval.
3rd Q 2021: As the comprehensive plan update continues, staff has been
identifying various code amendments/modifications that should be
considered as part of the development of a unified development code.
2nd Q 2022: The updated comprehensive plan is scheduled to be presented to
the City Board on July 19, 2022. The Board’s 2023-2024 goals will include
this same objective for a unified development code. Once the comprehensive
plan is adopted, staff will begin working on this objective.
Ben Rhoads, Senior Planner, and Don Clark, Community Development
Director

Parks and Recreation
Goal Statement
J. Provide residents with parks, trails, and high-quality recreational opportunities while
contributing to community identity.
Objective
J.1
Analysis:

Create a stand-along Parks and Recreation Department
Staff will research pros and cons of establishing a P&R Department versus a
P&R Division.
Timeline:
2nd Quarter 2022
Measurement: The results of staff’s analysis will be presented to the Board as either a Staff
Report or as part of a Board Workshop.
Progress:
1st Q 2022: The Parks Manager has recently resigned to pursue a private
business opportunity, and staff is currently in the process of reviewing
applications and scheduling interviews to fill the position.
2nd Q 2022: A new Parks Manager was hired at the beginning of the 3rd
quarter 2022. The new Manager will need time to assimilate into the new
position, and due to this objective also being included in the Board’s 20232024 goals staff is currently not working on this issue.
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Assigned to:

Travis Chaney, Parks Manager, Don Clark, Community Development
Director, and Christina Petriches, Finance Director

Communications
Goal Statement
K. Many modes of communicating with citizens are currently used by the City, however, there
are still citizens who are not aware of city issues, projects, events, etc. Increase citizen
communications by increasing and improving methods.
Objective
K.1

Analysis:

Timeline:
Measurement:
Progress:

Develop an overall communication plan that includes all modes of media and
educational platforms, including such things as “how to videos”. Educate
public on how to get involved in the community. Create a positive
communication campaign addressing all of the positive things about the
community. Consider electronic message board on Hwy 412.
Compile list of all outreach measures used. Inspect digital analytics to
establish a baseline engagement level and create a strategic communication
plan.
4th Quarter 2021
Staff will present data and proposed plan to the Board as either a Staff report
or as part of a Board Workshop.
4th Q 2021: Steps are taken to communicate with residents who speak both
English and Spanish. Additionally, social media and website content can be
translated into a plethora of additional languages. Throughout 2021 the City
placed ads, stories, and materials specifically for resident education using
many of the following outreach measures.
• Local newspaper;
• Regional media’
• City websites;
• Utility bill inserts;
• Brochures;
• Booths at special events;
• Flyers;
• Social media posts;
• Community bulletin boards; and
• Emergency messaging via text, phone call, and emails.
The City’s social media platforms and websites include:
• City Facebook;
• City Instagram;
• City Twitter;
• Parks and Recreation Facebook;
• Library Facebook;
• Fire Department Facebook;
• Police Department Facebook’
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•

Assigned to:

www.siloamsprings.com (229,756 visits, 429,048 pageviews, and
354,289 unique pageviews in 2021);
• www.whysiloam.com (13,638 visits, and 18,972 page views in 2021);
• www.siloamspringskayakpark.com (28,695 visits and 66,937 pageviews
in 2021); and
• www.discoversiloam.com (12,724 visits in 2021).
In 2022 staff will be researching the equipment required to create in-house
videos or the cost to work with a vendor to create the videos.
Holland Hayden, Communications Manager, and Don Clark, Community
Development Director

Public Works
Goal Statement
L. Provide fair and affordable rates for water, wastewater, electricity, and sanitation while at the
same time providing reliable and efficient delivery of these services to all residents.
Objective
L.1

Analysis:
Timeline:
Measurement:
Progress:

Assigned to:

Managing and regulating utilities is increasingly complicated and at times
very technical work. It can be difficult for part-time officials to develop deep
understandings of technical issues that is needed to provide the proper
oversight for the delivery of these types of municipal services while
simultaneously overseeing the breadth of other city functions. Creating a
utility board can separate the role of management from the role of regulator.
Staff will research the pros and cons related to creating a utility board.
1st Quarter 2022
Staff will present research to the Board as either a Staff report or as part of a
Board Workshop.
1st Q 2022: Staff researched a number of different municipalities utility
boards and presented a summary of its findings, along with pros and cons of
having a utility board, to the City Board on April 5, 2022. Based on that
discussion staff will begin drafting an ordinance for the establishment of a
Utility Board.
3rd Q 2022: Ordinance 22-23 establishing a Utility Commission was
approved by the Board on September 6th. Staff has begun advertising for
interested parties to submit applications. The application period closes on
October 31st.
Phil Stokes, Electrical Director, Steve Gorszczyk, Public Works Director,
Christina Petriches, Finance Director, and Phillip Patterson, City
Administrator
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PARKING LOTS GOALS
(Updated annually rather than quarterly)
Last updated 4th Q 2021
(These goals are not in ranked order and are to be addressed as time allows.)
1. Continue to actively pursue grant opportunities.
Assigned to: All Department Directors
Progress: In 2021, the City received a number of grants, including the following:
• $9,300 from ADEQ for the electric charging station at the library.
• $16,310 WFF grant for the BDO zone study;
• $300,000 from Street State Aid for Holly and University streets overlay;
• $19,234 from State ARPA funds for Library;
• $125,000 TAP grant from NWARPC for Lake Francis and Washington streets
sidewalk;
• $143,175 from WFF for E. Main Street Design
• $13,000 FAA grant for Airport operational expenses;
• $82,700 FAA grant for Airport runway rehabilitation;
• $73,746 ADA grant for pavement marking rehabilitation at the Airport.
• $32,000 from State ARPA funds for the Airport.
• $75,000 grant from ADEM for Willow Court Detention Basin improvements;
• $176,000 STBGP-A grant from NWARPC for E. Kenwood Street engineering
design;
• $50,489 from ADH for fluoridation equipment;
• $376,000 TAP grant from NWARPC for N. Mt. Olive sidepath
• $52,000 WFF grant for Kayak Park streambank restoration;
• $220,000 from IRWP for riparian restoration of Sager Creek at the Course at
Sager Crossing.
• $14,580 WFF grant for tree giveaway by Parks
• $25,244 ACT 833 grant for use by the Fire Dept.
• $11,689 grant from the Arkansas Trauma Systems for purchase of cardiac
monitor by Fire Dept.
• $2,500 grant from the Arkansas Ambulance Association for general EMS
related use by Fire Dept.
• $1,000 Firewise grant from Arkansas Dept. of Agriculture for wildfire
mitigation by Fire Dept.
• $34,162 grant from Health Resources & Services Administration - ARPA
funds for ambulance receivables.
• $2,550 Law Enforcement Block Grant for communications by Police Dept.
• $50,258 Selective Enforcement Program Grant for traffic enforcement
initiatives by Police Dept.
The following grants were applied for in 2021, but not received:
• ArDOT TAP grant for a N. Mt. Olive sidepath;
• ArDOT Recreational Trails grant for Dogwood Trail rehabilitation;
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2. Complete rate study for enterprise funds.
Assigned to: Christina Petriches, Finance Director
Progress: 4th Q 2021 – Rate study contract was approved by the Board on November 3, 2020,
and was completed and submitted to the Board on September 7, 2021.
3. Construct more sidepaths, especially near schools, civic organizations, and businesses.
Harvard Street sidepath needs grant monies and not be completely funded with street money.
Assigned to: Justin Bland, City Engineer and Don Clark, Community Development Director
Progress: 4th Q 2021 - Completed construction of 1,300’ of sidepath along N. Hico St. that
includes a new pedestrian bridge across Sager Creek. This connects the multiple
subdivisions on Hico St. north of Cheri Whitlock to the City’s Dogwood trail
system. The City received a TAP grant for the Lake Francis/Washington St.
sidewalk project that will add 3,400’ of sidewalk along those streets. This project
will connect the Autumn Glen and surround subdivisions to the city sidewalk
system. This project is pending final ArDOT approval and will go to bid after that
approval is received. The City received a TAP grant for construction of 2,400’ of
sidepath on N. Mt. Olive between Dawn Hill and Carl St. This will connect many
neighborhoods to the middle and elementary school. Construction is anticipated
to start in late 2022. The 2022 budget includes funds for a 2,000’ of sidepath
along Villa View Dr. to connect the sidewalks along Dogwood St. to the JBU
MTB trailhead. City crews will construct this project this fall. The City
previously applied for, and was denied, a TAP grant for the Harvard Street
Sidepath project. We will be reviewing other grant opportunities for this project
in 2022.
4. Develop marketing campaign that touts Siloam Springs as a great place to live, work, and
play.
Assigned to: Holland Hayden, Communications Manager
Progress: 4th Q 2021 – For 2021 the City placed tourism ads in the following print media:
• Arkansas State Tour Guide
• Water and Woods
• Bike Arkansas
• Arkansas Cycling
• Dallas Mavericks Game Programs
• Southern Travel and Lifestyle
• Northwest Arkansas Tourism Association (NATA) travel guide
• Walton Arts Center programs
In addition, the City also advertised tourism in the following digital/non-print
media outlets:
• KNWA
• Arkansas.com
• Northwest Arkansas Tourism Association (NATA) website
• Facebook
• Instagram
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•

E-newsletter submissions

5. Submit nominations for various city awards on a regular basis.
Assigned to: Holland Hayden, Communications Manager
Progress: In 2021 staff nominated the City for the following awards:
• Arkansas Municipal League Trendsetter City
• Arkansas Tourism’s Henry Awards
• Volunteer Community of the Year (won)
• Arkansas Business Best Places to Work

3rd Q 2022 Update 2021-2022 Board Goals

Page 13 of 13

2020 PROJECTS
Approval
Date

Work
Progress

14701 N Country Club
1000 Block of East Kenwood Street
1611 Cheri Whitlock Dr
1000 Block of S Washington St
3600 S. Lincoln St
3500 Highway 412 East
2301 & 2351 E. Main Street

11/17/2020
10/6/2020
7/7/2020
6/2/2020
3/3/2020
2/4/2020
2/4/2020

active
active
expired
expired
expired
occupied
occupied

Lawlis Ranch Prelim Plat, Phase 1 B
Mission Hill Prelim Plat
Fox Tail South
Carley Crossings
Endura Park
Reagan Court
Heritage Ranch, III
Lawlis Ranch Prelm Plat, Ph 2‐5

2800 Block of N. Teresa Drive
14505 N. Country Club
2000‐2500 Block of E Kenwood St
14800‐14900 Block Lawlis Road
14701 N Country Club Rd
3900 Block of Highway 412 East
2200 Block of N Carl Street
23006 Lalwis Road

12/1/2020
11/3/2020
8/4/2020
6/2/2020
6/2/2020
2/4/2020
2/18/2020
2/4/2020

active
active
completed
completed
completed
expired
active
active

Grandview Estates, Phase 1
Endura Park
Ashley Park, Phase 2
Revised Gunters Addition
Revised Elrod Addition
Busse Addition
Ridgestone Duplex

3901 E. Kenwood St GRANDVIEW ESTATES
14701 N Country Club
2200 Block of N. Hico St ASHLEY PARK
100 Blk of N Lincoln & 106 N Country Club
3000 Block Cheri Whitlock Dr
21400 Davidson Road
3897 E. Kenwood St

12/1/2020
11/17/2020
7/21/2020
7/7/2020
6/2/2020
4/7/2020
3/17/2020

occupied
active
completed
completed
active
active
occupied

SSPN

Resolution

Project Name

SD20‐05
SD20‐04
SD20‐03
SD20‐02
SD20‐01
SD19‐21
SD19‐11

53‐20
45‐20
33‐20
29‐20
14‐20
08‐20
07‐20

The Commons Apts. at Endura Park
Siloam Best Storage
New Life Church
Cornerstone Business Park
Camp Siloam Bunkhouse
Plaza Tire
Speedy's Splash & Flying Burger

PP20‐06
PP20‐05
PP20‐04
PP20‐01
PP20‐03
PP19‐09
PP19‐08
PP19‐07

57‐20
50‐20
39‐20
26‐20
27‐20
11‐20
10‐20
09‐20

FP20‐20
FP20‐06
FP20‐05
FP20‐04
FP20‐03
FP20‐02
FP20‐01

56‐20
52‐20
38‐20
32‐20
28‐20
21‐20
16‐20

Location

# Lots
Created

# Building Permits
% Complete
Issued

SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENT PERMITS
N/A
14
N/A
1
N/A
0
N/A
0
N/A
0
N/A
1
N/A
1
PRELIMINARY PLAT PERMITS
3
0
120
0
167
0
79
0
104
See Final Plat
28
0
52
See Final Plat
56
0
FINAL PLAT PERMITS
79
79
104
69
80
80
23
22
3
0
5
0
55
55

Status

90%
98%
0%
0%
0%
100%
100%

Ongoing finish out. Active occupied buildings.
Drainage finish out and landscaping
No building permit application received.
Issues with drive engineering, revised plans are needed. Work on the ditch.
Will be allowed to expire, applicant no longer pursuing this project.
Certificate of Occupancy issued.
Restaurant was never built, only the carwash

50%
50%
99%
99%
100%
0%
100%
30%

Construction plans are approved. Waiting on construction and first inspections.
Project underway
Final plat for Phase 1 approved, work nearing completion on Phase 2
Final plat for Phase 1 and 2 approved, work nearing completion on Phase 3

100%
80%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Expired
Final plat for Phase 2 approved, work has not begin on additional phases
Building permits are completed.
Building permits are active.
26 building permits still active.
Waiting on building permits.
Waiting on building permits from Benton County Building.

Project Name

Location

Approval
Date

Work
Progress

SSPN

Resolution

SD21‐13
SD21‐12
SD21‐11
SD21‐09
SD21‐10
SD21‐08
SD21‐03
SD21‐07
SD21‐05
SD21‐06
SD21‐03
SD21‐04
SD21‐01
SD20‐06

14‐22
10‐22
65‐21
62‐21
54‐21
51‐21
33‐21
31‐21
30‐21
20‐21
13‐21
07‐21
05‐21
04‐21

Whataburger
Sager Creek Crossing
Jiffy Trip
Springs Church of Christ
Hwy 59 Self Storage
Quaker Townhome Apartments
Timberline Bus Park
McReynolds RV Park
Camp Siloam Bunkhouse (New)
Rock Hill Foods
Timberline Bus Park
Car‐Mart
Simmons Expansion (Hico St)
Atwoods

2690 Highway 412 East
801 E. Lake Francis Drive
4295 E US 412 Hwy
3000 Cheri Whitlock Dr
15303 Hwy 59
610 W Tahlequah
22000 Hwy 16
4290 Highway 412 East
3600 South Lincoln Street
22100 Highway 16
22000 Hwy 16
2120 Hwy 412 E
316 N Hico
300 Block of North Arkansas Hwy 59

3/1/2022
2/1/2022
12/7/2021
12/7/2021
11/4/2021
10/5/2021
8/4/2021
7/8/2021
7/8/2021
6/1/2021
5/4/2021
4/6/2021
2/12/2021
2/2/2021

ACTIVE
ACTIVE
active
idle
active
active
idle
idle
occupied
idle
canceled
occupied
occupied
occupied

PP21‐08
PP21‐07
PP21‐05
PP21‐04
PP21‐02
PP21‐03
PP21‐01

60‐21
49‐21
45‐21
36‐21
35‐21
32‐21
14‐21

Hillcrest Prelim Plat
Carley Crossings Prelim Plat, Phase III
Somerset, Phase II Prelim Plat
Castlewood Prelim Plat
Bellevue Estates Prelim Plat
Whispering Oaks Prelim Plat
Fox Meadow Prelim Plat

200 Block of Airport Road
14900 Hwy 43
3200 Block of East Kenwood Street
22000 Block of Davidson Road
816 Arkansas Highway 16
300‐500 Block of Oak Crest Road
600‐700 E. Lake Francis Dr

2/1/2022
10/5/2021
10/5/2021
8/3/2021
8/3/2021
7/8/2021
5/4/2021

idle
active
active
idle
idle
idle
idle

FP21‐03
FP21‐02
FP21‐01

34‐21
23‐21
22‐21

Faulkner Final Plat
High School Addition Rec Plat
Sweet Homes Addition, Phase 2

21000‐22000 Block of Davidson Road
2900 Block of Cheri Whitlock Drive
2300 Block of North Mt Olive Street

8/3/2021
6/1/2021
6/1/2021

active
active
active

2021 PROJECTS
# Lots
# Building Permits
% Complete
Created
Issued
SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENT PERMITS
N/A
1
2%
N/A
2
2%
N/A
1
75%
N/A
0
0%
N/A
1
20%
N/A
1
85%
N/A
0
0%
N/A
1
50%
N/A
1
100%
N/A
0
0%
N/A
0
0%
N/A
1
100%
N/A
1
98%
N/A
1
100%
PRELIMINARY PLAT PERMITS
99
0
0%
57
0
60%
23
0
0%
100
0
0%
88
0
0%
58
0
0%
12
0
0%
FINAL PLAT PERMITS
6
0
100%
3
0
100%
14
2
100%

Status
FOUNDATION WORK
Clubhouse and buildings 1‐10, 12‐16. FOUNDATION WORK, STARTING VERTICAL CONSTRUCTION
INTERIOR FINISH OUT WITH ONGOING SITE WORK
Building permit application yet to be submitted and pre‐construction meeting not scheduled.
ONGOING VERTICAL CONSTRUCTION
INTERIOR FINISH OUT WITH ONGOING SITE WORK
Building permit application yet to be received and pre‐construction meeting not scheduled.
RV park on hold by developer
Finished
Land being cleared as of Jan 2022, no building permits application received.
Resolution 33‐21 replaces this resolution, applicant redesigned the site.
C OF O ISSUED
Temp occupancy. Final walk‐through inspection required for CO.
Certificate of Occupancy issued.
Waiting on construction plans and pre‐construction meeting.
Construction underway, final plat submitted.
Construction plans approved 09/21.
Construction plans approved 05/22, waiting on developer to begin construction.
Construction plans in approval process, however cost is higher than expected. Waiting on engineers next step.
Clearing has begun on‐site.
Applicant resubmitted plan for a different lot configuration.
No building permit applications received from Benton County Building.
No building permit applications received.
Building permits are active.

Project Name

Location

Approval
Date

SSPN

Resolution

SD22‐12
SD22‐11
SD22‐10
SD22‐09
SD22‐08
SD22‐07
SD22‐05
SD22‐06
SD22‐04
SD22‐03
SD22‐02
SD22‐01

TBD
TBD
TBD
TBD
58‐22
57‐22
41‐22
40‐22
25‐22
22‐22
21‐22
13‐22

Parachute Plasma Center
Jiffy Trip #2
Dogwood Place Apartments
The Reserve at Siloam Springs
K‐Mac Enterprises (Taco Bell)
East Cornerstone Plaza
SSSD Admin Office
Robert Phillpott Eye Center
Schlotzsky's
Simmons Cooler
Brick Oven Pizza
Dogwood Terrace

1995 Hwy 412 E
650 W US 412 Hwy
Hwy 16 S
400 Block of N Simon Sager
4171 E US 412 Hwy
1800 Block E Main St
3000 Block Cheri Whitlock Dr
1300 Block of N. Progress
400 Hwy 412 W
1113 East Ashley St.
3505 Hwy. 412 East.
1201 S. Holly Street

TBD
TBD
TBD
TBD
10/4/2022
10/4/2022
7/5/2022
7/5/2022
5/3/2022
4/5/2022
4/5/2022
2/1/2022

PP22‐05
PP22‐04
PP22‐03
PP22‐02
PP22‐01
PP21‐09

TBD
N/A
27‐22
26‐22
16‐22
09‐22

Castlewood
Sweet Homes (Phase 3)
Fox Meadow (Resubmittal of 14‐21)
Trail Point
Foxtail Village
The Commons

Davidson Rd
N Mt Olive St & N Carl St
600‐700 Block of Lake Francis Drive
2500 Block of S. Waukesha Rd.
600‐900 Block of Hwy 16
2000 Block of Dawn Hill Road

TBD
N/A
5/3/2022
5/3/2022
3/1/2022
2/1/2022

FP22‐11
FP22‐10
FP22‐09
FP22‐08
FP22‐07
FP22‐06
FP22‐05

55‐22
50‐22
49‐22
51‐22*
48‐22
45‐22

Fox Tail (Phase 2, resubmittal)
Heritage Ranch (hammerhead relocation)
Lawlis Ranch (Phase 1B)
Carley Crossing (Phase 3)
Fox Tail (Phase 2)
Mission Hills (Phase 1)
Siloam Warehouse

2400‐2600 E Kenwood St
2200 Block of N Carl St
2800 Block of N Teresa Dr
16000 Block of S Hwy 43
2400‐2600 E Kenwood St
14505 N Country Club Rd
650 W US 412 Hwy

10/4/2022
10/4/2022
8/2/2022
8/2/2022
N/A
8/2/2022
6/5/2022

FP22‐04
FP21‐04
FP22‐02
FP22‐03
FP22‐01
FP21‐05

35‐22
20‐22
19‐22
12‐22
11‐22
06‐22

Somerset, Phase 1
Lawlis Ranch, Phase 2
Heritage Ranch, Phase 3
Foxtail, Phase 1
Carley Crossing
The Reserve Addition

3100‐3400 Block of E. Kenwood St
23006 Lawlis Rd.
2200 Block of Carl St.
2400 Block of E. Kenwood
14900 Block of Lawlis Road
300 Block of N Simon Sager Avenue

6/7/2022
4/5/2022
4/5/2022
3/1/2022
3/1/2022
2/1/2022

Work
Progress

2022 PROJECTS
# Lots
# Building Permits
% Complete
Created
Issued
SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENT PERMITS

0%
50%
60%
60%
5%

Ongoing public notice phase
PZ 10‐11‐22
PZ 10‐11‐22 (being tabled)
PZ 10‐11‐22 (being tabled)
NEED ACCESS AGREEMENT
NO BUILDING PERMIT APP RECEIVED
Initial site prep has begun BP PENDING PAYMENT
NO BUILDING PERMIT APP RECEIVED
Construction in progress
Construction in progress
Construction in progress
Some initial dirt work has begun

0%
0%
0%
10%

PZ 10‐11‐22
Withdrawn by applicant
Waiting on construction plan submittal
Waiting on construction plan submittal
Construction plan review as of 6/3/22
Work has begun

0%
0%
IN ACTIVE
active
active
active
ACTIVE

Not Started
Not Started
Not Started
Not Started

N/A
N/A
1
N/A
1
N/A
1
N/A
Pending Payment
PRELIMINARY PLAT PERMITS

9
Not Yet Submitted
38
Not Yet Submitted
56
Not Yet Submitted
28
Not Yet Submitted
FINAL PLAT PERMITS

Status

*Withdrawn by applicant

Finished
Finished
Finished
Finished
Finished
In Process

75
19
52
75
79
4

0
0
0
12
12
0

90%
100%
100%
100%
100%
90%

Asphalt paving repair on some of the streets and general clean up, seed and straw. Applicant is filing deed restriction per the condition,
this is required before building permits can be issued.
Applicant contacted to file plat.
Applicant contacted to file plat.
1 started foundation. Waiting on lift station testing (was included with bond)
8 started foundation
Waiting on utility extension to the lots, condition No. 1 (prior to Certificate of Occupancy).

Business License Report
07/01/2022 - 09/30/2022

Entity Date

Business
Name

7/19/2022

Finished
Product

8/18/2022

Hen House

8/18/2022

8/23/2022
8/26/2022
9/7/2022
9/13/2022

Frontier Shed
Company
NWA (Siloam
Springs)
NWA Mobile
Fluid Power
Sweet Apple
Acres
Tame the
Mane Hair
Lounge
J&M
Trucking

9/20/2022

Total Records: 8

Page: 1 of 1

A&S
Concrete

Business
DBA

Number of
Employees

Services
Offered
(Detailed
Description)

Status

1

Carpentry

Active

2

In home daycare

Active

1

selling portable
buildings to the
public

Active

Business
Physical
Address

Type of
Business

1050 N. Britt
St.
498 Sunset
Lane

Home
Occupation
Home
Occupation

4198 Hwy 412
E

Commercial
Business

945 S. Cherry
Street
619 E. Rush
Rd.

Home
Occupation
Home
Occupation

1119 W Hwy
412

Commercial
Business

0

Men and Women
Haircuts

Active

405 W. Tulsa
St., Ste. A

Commercial
Business

18

Trucking

Active

3000
Waukesha

Home
Occupation

2

income tax
advisor,
preparation

Active

1
1

Traveling
Mechanic
Homemade
Apple Cider

Active
Active

10/12/2022

